Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, April 16, 2024 in the Board Room of the
Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listed items and
such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon. This meeting will
be live streamed on RTA’s Board Page www.RideRTA.com/board via the meeting date for staff
and members of the public. Members of the public may attend in person.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA’s website at (www.riderta.com/board), on RTA’s
Facebook page, and RTA’s Twitter page.

9:00 A M. Board of Trustees Meeting — agenda attached

India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

IBT:tab
Attachment

Scan this QR code to access the meeting schedule, live streams and meeting materials.




10.

11.

12.

13.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, April 16, 2024

9:00 am.
Call to order
Rall Call
Ceriification regarding notice of meeting
Approval of minutes:

a. March 19, 2024 Board Meeting
b, March 18, 2024 Annual Meeting

Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items:
a. In person
b. Phone; 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and
staff

Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
*  Chair; Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
»  Chair: Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
+  Chair: Mayor Paul A, Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
«  Chair TBD

Civilian Oversight Committee (COC)
»  Board Liaison: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
« Board Liaison: Ms. Deidre McPherson

Ad Hoc Committee reports:
v Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee - President Charles P. Lucas, Chair
»  Ad Hoc Technology Cammittee — Mr. Jeffrey W. Sleasman, Chair



RTA Board of Trustees

April 18, 2024

Page 2

14, Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions

15. Introduction of resolutions:

A

2024-24 - Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority who retired during the first quarter of
2024

2024-25 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-002 with Kennedy Railroad
Services, LLC for Project No. 66B - Port of Cleveland Connector Track in
an amount not to exceed $883,443.00 (RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget)

2024-26 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-5 with Freedman Seating
Company for the purchase of Railcar Vinyl Seat Upholstery, as specified,
in an amount not to exceed $298,490.72 (RTA Development Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget)

2024-27 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-6 with Premier Window
Cleaning LLC for Rapid Station Washing and Cleaning Services for a
period of three (3) years in an amount not to exceed $483,120.00
{General Fund, Rail Facilities Maintenance Department budget)

2024-28 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-023 with Northeast | ubricants
LTD. for the furnishing of transmission fluid, as specified and as required,
for a period of one (1) year in an amount not to exceed $103,000.00
{General Fund, Fleet Management Department Budget)

2024-29 - Approving the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's
2024-2027 Quadrannial Equal Employment Opportunity Program and
Affirmative Action Goals

2024-30 - Amending Chapter 464 Protection Against Internal Losses of
Public Assets and Section 460,06 Insurance Fund of the Codified Rules
and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2024-31 - Authorizing 2 renewal lease agreement with 2 Birds Shuttle and
Detail, LLC for property at the Puritas-West 150" Street Rapid Transit
Station, located at 4200 West 150" Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44135, fora
term of ten years at $12,000.00 per year for the first year and incremental
annual increases to $15,240.00 for the tenth year

2024-32 - License agreement for access and laydown areas to support
the West 117% Bridge Rehabilitation Project (RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget)

2024-33 - Authorizing a lease between the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority and Century Federal Credit Union for office space



RTA Board of Trustees
April 16, 2024

Page 3

16.

17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

22.

23,

located at the Hayden District Garage, 1661 Hayden Avenue, East
Cleveland, Ohio 44112

K. 2024-34 - Authorizing a salary adjustment for Anthony A. Garofoli,
Executive Directar of internal Audit

Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

a. General Fund Revenue — March 31, 2024 compared to March 31, 2023

b. General Fund Revenue - period ending March 31, 2024 compared to
budget

c. Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2024, actual receipts

through April 2024, -~ TO BE DISTRIBUTED AT A LATER DATE

fnventory of Treasury Investments as of March 31, 2024

e.  Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis)
as of March 31, 2023

f.  Summary of Investiment Performance, Year to Date through March 31,
2024

g. Report on investment Earnings (cash basis) as of March 31, 2024

h.  Composition of investment Portfolio as of March 31, 2024

i.  Banking and Financial Relationships as of March 31, 2024

Q.

General Manager's Report
President's Report
Old Business

New Business

Public comments (2 minutes) on public transit related items:

a. In person
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and

staff

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, May 21, 2024 in the
Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA’s Board page
(www.RideRTA com/board) by clicking the meeting date. The public is welcome
to attend in person,

Adjournment



Minutas
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:09 a.m. March 19, 2024

Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Koomar (Vice Chair), Biasiotta, McPherson, Mersmann, Pacett),
Sleasman, Weiss, Welch

Not present: Love

StafffOther: Basso, Bennetl, Birdsong Terry, Burney, Caver, Cottrell, Davidson, Dykes, Fields, Fleig, Ford,
Freilich, Garofoli, Gautam, Jenkins, Johnson, Jones, Jupina, Kirkland, Miller, Mothes, Schipper, Sutula,
Togher, Young

Public: Hagar, Loh, Rodriquez
The meeting was called o order at 8:09 a.m. There were nine (2} Board members present.

It was advised that notice of this meeting had been posted more than twenty-four hours in advance of the
meeting, that the usual notification had been given the news madia and other interested persons, and that
all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board regarding notice of
meeting had been complied with,

Minutes

President Lucas stated that the minutes from the February 27, 2024 Board Meeting and March 5, 2024
Special Board Meeting had been previously distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there weare any
additions and/or carrections. There were no corrections. It was moved and seconded. The minutes wera
approved.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems

1. Lany Rodriguez — Autistic people with audio sensitivity issues are overwhelmed by the belt that
sounds when the ramp is deployed, the speaker boxes on the coach and when the operator uses
the horn. Some of the paratransit buses are in bad shape. The paratransit phone line should be
updated.

2. Airric Stewart — The owners of Public Square Cleveland Neighborhood Progress and Burten Bell
Carr and RTA have a responsibility to the social well being of the public. Dr. Caver is on the CNP
Board. These organizations want to improve the neighborhoods surrounding Shaker Square. The
48A as an hourly bus with the 48 will give a 30-minute service to Shaker Square. The 15A would
give service to Shaker Square.

Commitiee Reports

The Civilian Ovarsight Cormmittee will create the Ad Hoe Selection Committee to review applicants for
appointment. There are two open appointments, The application process closed March 15,

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

There were 29 new hires and 3 promotions. Their names are listed on the PowerPoint presentation.

Intraduction of Resolutions

A, 2024-19 - Authorizing an increase to Contract No. 2022-054 with Delta Railroad
Construction, Inc. for Project 52X — Light Rail Track Rehabilitation Replacement of the East



RTA Board of Trustees
March 19, 2024
Page 2 of 3

75" Street Interlocking in the amount of $141,968.60 for a total contract amount not to
excead $3,789,476.44 and reinstating the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's
change order signing authority in its entirety (RTA Development Fund, Engineering &
Project Developmant Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayar
Koomar, seconded by Mayor Biasiotta. Ms. Mersmann asked for a roll call. There were
eight (8) ayes and one (1) abstention from Ms, Mersmann, It passed.

B. 2024-20 - Authorizing an increase to Contract No. 2023-030 with Suburban Maintenance &
Construction, inc. for Project 62A — Rehabilitation of Track/Platform Bridges over W, 117
Streetin the amount of $765,000.00 for a total contract amaunt of $8,352,660.93 and
reinstating the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's Change Order Signing Authority
in its entirety (RTA Developrment Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department
budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Ms. Welch.,

Ms, Mersmann asked for a roll call. There were eight (8) ayes and one (1) abstention from
Ms. Mersmann. [t passed,

C. 2024-21 - Authorizing Contract No. 2023-156 with Quality Control Inspection, Inc. for
Project 52N-CS — Tower City East Portal Rehabilitation Construction Inspection Services in
an amount not {o exceed $499,649.00 (Development Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar,
seconded by Ms. McPherson. Ms. Marsmann asked for a roll call. There were eight (8)
ayes and one (1) abstention fram Ms. Mersmann. |t passed.

D. 2024-22 - Authorizing Contract No. 2023-188 with Pirc Company Landscaping &
Snowplowing LLC to provide rail landscaping services in an amount not to exceed
$1,181,147.07 for a period of three years, and in amounts not to excead $401,616.12 and
$405,632.28 for each of two option years, respeactively, for a total five-year contract amount
not to exceed $1,988,395.47 (General Fund, Service Management Department budget),
the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Ms. Mersmann. Mr,
Sleasman requested a roll call. There were eight (8) ayes and one (1) abstention from Mr.
Sleasman. It passed.

E. 2024-23 - Amending Section 222,04 Community Advisory Committee of the Codified Rules
and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, the adoption of which
was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by Ms. Mersmann and approved by unanimous vote.

Secratary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the report. March
sales tax is notin yet. Through the end of February, inflation increased to 3.4% from 3.1% in January.
The FOMC is meeting today and tomorrow and will have some additional information that will be shared at
a later date. February ridership was 8.9% higher compared to the same period for 2023. Most modes
have seen an increase in ridership. YTD we are up 8.9% over last year. Passenger fares are 1.6% balow
January 2024, We remain 17.6% above budget. YTD passenger fares are 20.5% higher than the two-
month period in 2023, YTD February sales tax we are down 0.5%. This remains the largest unrestricted
source of our revenue. It has been strong over the last several years.

Mayor Weiss asked about the 2023 ridership. Mr. Gautam said the 3.4 million rides was a 36.7% increase
over 2022 which was 2.5 million rides of 11.6%. There has been a slight increase in ridership over each

year from 2021.

General Manager/CEO Report

India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEO gave the report. RTA had extra capacity on all rail lines
during the 5t. Patrick's Day Parade this past Sunday. Staff and volunteers assisted riders on the system.



RTA Board of Trustees
March 19, 2024
Page 3of 3

Transit Police and Transit Ambassadors patrolled the stations and bus stops. No major issues were
reported.  RTA will host a Women's Histary Month Conference, March 28 at the Cleveland Public Library
downtown from 8:30 a.m. - 2 p.m. RTA's Elevating Women Together (EWT) Resource Group is the host
organization under the leadership of Daveda Banks, Triskett Transportation Manager and Felicia Brooks
Willams, Senior Manager, Office of Equal Opportunity.

RTA leadership visited FTA Region V in Chicago, IL, March 11 to discuss grant applications, financial
forecasting and project updates. They toured the Chicago Transit Authority (CTA) Control Center to see
rail and bus dispatch best practices, safety measures and technology innovations. CTA is building a new
control center. FTA will also be on site when RTA hosts the APTA Rail Conference this Jung. RTA
collaborated to bring Frontier Airlines to Cleveland as their hub, In February the Board approved the
distribution of 400, 7-day transit passes, Commuter Advantage and Travel Training to Frontier Airlines.

l.ater today there will be a recognition cerermony for outgoing Board President Rev. Charies . Lucas here
at the Main Office from 11 a.m. — 12:30 p.m. to acknowledge his commitment to service.

Public Comments — public transit related items

1. Bryan Haggar — Bryan is a 27-year transit rider. Bryan did not agree with every statement made by
Airric Stewart earlier today. Bryan rides the 50 every day. It could be more frequent service to
improve cross-town connections. The 48 could he improved also. Route 9 evening service was an
hour late at Severance Center.

2. Alirric Stewart - Alrric doesn't believe the NextGen changes improved service. The CAC should be
reviewing the NextGen changes and his proposal for 15A and 48A.

Executive Session Requested

it was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Ms. Welch to go into executive session to consider the
appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, compensation of a public employee
or official. There were nine (9} ayes and none opposed,

it was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by Mayor Biasiotta to come out of executive session, There were
nine (9) ayes and none opposed.

COC Ad Hoe Selection Committee

It was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by Ms. Pacetti to reinstate Ad Hoc Selection Committee members
Lauren Welch, Mayor Koomar and Mayor Weiss to review applicants for appointment to the CQC,

Upcoming Meetings

The next regutar Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, April 16, 2024 in the Board Room of the
Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meaeting will ba live
streamed on RTA's Board page (www.RideRTA com/board) by selecting the meeting date. The public is
welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:15 a.m.

Eresident

Attest:

Secratary-Treasurey



Minutes
RTA Annual Meeting
10:15 am., March 19, 2024

Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Koomar (Vice Chair), Biasiotta, McPherson, Mersmann, Pacetti,
Sleasman, Weiss, Welch

Not present: Love

Staff/Other: Basso, Bennett, Birdsong Terry, Burney, Caver, Cottrell, Davidson, Dykes, Fields, Fleig, Ford,
Freilich, Garofolt, Gautam, Jenkins, Johnson, Jones, Jupina, Kirkland, Miller, Mothes, Schipper, Sutula,
Togher, Young

Public: Hagar, Loh, Rodriguez
The meeting was called to order at 10:15 a.m. There were nine (9) Board members present.

The Secretary advised that notice of this meeting had been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usual notification had been given the news media and other
interested persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Byiaws of this
Board regarding notice of meeting had been complied with.

Mayor Biasiotta, Chair of the Nominating Committee conducted the election. He thanked Rev. Lucas
for his service. Rev. Lucas thanked the Board for allowing him to serve.

The Nominating Committee received ane letter of interest from Mayor Paul A. Koomar for the Office of
President and one letter of interest from Ms. Lauren R. Welch for the Office of Vice President. The
candidates were approved by the Nominating Committee at their March 5, 2024 meeting and moved
to be considered at today’s Annual meeting. Mayor Biasiotta asked if there were any additional
nominations for each office. There were none.

Nominations and election for the Office of President

Mayor Biasiotta asked for a motion and second to approve Mayor Koomar as President. It was
moved by Mayor Weiss seconded by Ms. Welch. There were nine (8) ayes and none opposed.
Mayor Koomar thanked Rev, Lucas for his leadership. We have funded rail cars, instituted the COC
and CAC members and improved Paratransit Service under Rev's guidance.

Nominations and election for the Office of Vice President

Mayor Biasiotta asked for a motion and second to approve Ms. Welch as Vice President. It was
moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Mr, Sleasman. There were nine (9} ayes and none opposed.
Ms. Welch thanked Rev. Lucas for his guidance, leadership and advocacy on the Board and in the
region,

This meeting adjourned at 10:21 a.m.

Prasident

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-24

EXPRESSING CONGRATULATIONS TO THE EMPLOYEES OF THE
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY WHO RETIRED
DURING THE FIRST QUARTER OF 2024

WHEREAS, the following employees retired from the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority during the first quarter of 2024 after numerous years of dedicated public
service:

Name Title Work Location
Alphonso Mills Bus Operator Hayden
William Nix Bus Operator Hayden

Phillip Coggins Bus Operatar Hayden
Tyrone Pryor Bus Operator Hayden
Corles Kendricks Heating/Air Conditioning Mechanic Hayden
Derrick Turner Bus Operator Triskett
Charlene Seals Bus Operator Triskett
Robert Tarr Rail Operator Raill Operators
Neil Lawrence Assistant Supervisor - Track Central Sve Bl
Kenneth Yontz Body Mechanic Central Rail Maint.

WHEREAS, these retirees faithfully gave of their skills, time and talents to provide high
quality public transportation to the community; and

WHEREAS, these retirees did much to contribute to the quality of life in Greater
Cleveland by providing much-needed public transit service and protecting our valuable
environment; and

WHEREAS, the retirees’ outstanding diligence in the performance of their jobs was of
immeasurable value to both riders and residents of Cuyahoga County; and

WHEREAS, these retirees represent hundreds of years of invaluable public transit
experience, and they will be missed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahega County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the sincere congratulations and gratitude of the Board of Trustees is
hereby extended to each of the above named employees on the accasion of their retirement
from the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.

Section 2. That the members of the Board of Trustees offer their best wishes to the
retirees for continued success and happiness, which they so richly deserve.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: April 16, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 .
TITLE/DESCRIPTION, Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT NO. 66B — PORT OF CLEVELAND 2024-25
CONNECTOR TRACK Date:
April 11, 2024
VENDOR; KENNEDY RAILROAD SERVICES, LLC Initiator:
Engineering & Project
AMOUNT: $883,443.00 Development
Department
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [1 Review/Comment  [1 Information Only 3 Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Authority ("Authority”) to enter into a contract to provide construction services for the Port of
Cleveland connection to the Waterfront Line,

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has the need to connect the Port of
Cleveland's raitroad to the Waterfront Line in preparation for the delivery of the new railcar
fleet, The work to be performed under this contract includes, but is not limited to, furnishing
and installing 410 track feet of 115 RE track and two crossovers, surfacing and de-strassing
the track structure, and other ancillary site/civil work associated with completing the scope of
work.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The invitation for Bids ("IFB") was posted on the
Authority's Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers, Sixteen (16)
interested parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package.
Four (4) bids were received and opened on February 15, 2024, as follows:

Company Nams Total Base Bid
Kennedy Railroad Services, L}:C o N $883,4{£3.00
Wintrow Construction Corporation . | $1,085,771.00
Railworks Track Services, Inc. %1,198,367.00
Delta Railroad Construction, Inc. %1,455 572.00.

The basis of award is the lowest responsive bic from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid Price. Kennady Railroad Services, LLC was determinad o be a responsible bidder. The
Total Base Bid price of $883,443.00 from Kennedy Railroad Services, LLC is 47.13% less
than the engineer's estimate of $1,671,020.98.

A price analysis has been performed, and the bid of Kennedy Railroad Services, LLC has
been determined by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION / DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 5% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Kennedy Rallroad Services,
LLC has committed to achiaving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of Cook
Faving & Construction Co. (African American female-owned) in the amount of $176,155.00 or
19.9%.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.




Staff Summary & Cornments

Port of Cleveland Connector Track 2024-25
Page 2
6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,

7.0

8.0

8.0

Engineering & Project Development Dapartment budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grant OH-2023-042-337, in an amount not to exceed $883,443.00 ($706,754.40 in federal
funds, which represents 80% of total cost).

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid would impact the Authority’s ability
to receive the new railcars via rail.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the April
2, 2024 Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is recommeanded that
the bid from Kennedy Railroad Services, LLC be accepted and the resolution adopted
authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter info a contract,

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.




RESOLUTION NO. 2024-25

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NOQ. 2024-002 WITH KENNEDY RAILROAD
SERVICES, LLC FOR PROJECT NO, 66B - PORT OF CLEVELAND
CONNECTOR TRACK IN AN AMQUNT NOT TO EXCEED $883,443.00 (RTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING & PROUECT DEVELOPMENT
RDEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (‘Authority”) deems it
necessary to acquire construction services for Project 66B ~ Port of Cleveland Connector Track;

and

WHEREAS, the bid of Kennedy Railroad Services, LLC, located at 1550 N. Bailey Rd.,
North Jackson, Ohio 44451, was received on February 15, 2024 in an amount not to exceed
$883,443.00, and :

WHEREAS, the Authority's General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of
Kennedy Railroad Services, LLC to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trusteas.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE iT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Kennedy Railroad Services, LLC for Project No. 668 — Port
of Cleveland Connector Track, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized {o enter into a contract with Kennedy Railroad Services, LLL.C for
Project No. 868 — Port of Cleveland Connector Track.

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grant OH-2023-042-337, in an amount not to excead $883,443.00 ($706,754.40 in federal
funds, which represents 80% of total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shali be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda, if any, the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance reguirements
and all applicable laws relating to contraciual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Authority's Board of Trustees expeacts that Kennedy Raitroad
Services, LLC will attempt to exceed the 5% minimum DBE goal assigned to this procurement,

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: April 16, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Farm 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.;
CONTRACT: RAILCAR VINYL SEAT UPHOLSTERY 2024-26
Date:
VENDOR: FREEDMAN SEATING COMPANY Aprit 11, 2024
initiator: Flest
AMOUNT. $298,490.72 Management
Department
ACTION REQUEST;
E Approval [ Review/Comment [ iInformation Only (3 Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Greater Cleveland Begional Transit

2.0

3.0

4.0

50

Authority ("Authority”) to enter into a contract to provide railcar vinyl seat upholstery,

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: Rail Equipment will be upgrading the fabric seating from
cloth to vinyl on 24 heavy rail vehicles (HRV) and 12 light rail vehicles (LRV). Seating has been
identified as an area of concern regarding vehicle cleanliness in customer surveys conducted
as part of TRACTION. Cloth seats tend to stain easily and are more difficult to sanitize. The
vinyl seats will help alleviate the absorption of fluids while increasing the Authority's ability to
thoroughly clean rail seats in a timely manner., The rail seat replacement project will help with
future concerns about cleanliness, thereby increasing rider satisfaction and improving survey
results.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids {("IFB") was posted on the
Authority's Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Thirty-three (33)
tnterested parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. Six
(6) bids were received and opened on February 21, 2024, Of those six (6) bids, there were five
(5) responsive bids. They are as follows:

C;;:;;‘apany Name Total Base Bid
Freedman Seating Company | $298,490.72
‘Sedialnc. $301,838.40
Romeo Luxury Customs $347,950.08
Bergen Seating LLC $453,600.00
FelFab Corporation $493,729.12

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the total base
bid price. Freedman Seating Company was determined to be a responsible bidder. The total
base bid price of $298,490,72 from Freedman Seating Company is approximately 41% below
the project estimate of $508,810.00.

A price analysis has been performed, and the bid from Freedman Seating Company has beean
determined by the Procurement department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority,

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of cerified DBE
firms.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.




Staff Surmmary & Comments ' N
Railcar Vinyl Seat Upholstery 2024-26
Page 2

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This pracurement shall be payable through the RTA
Development Fund, Fleet Management Department budget, including but not limited to
100% local funds, in an amount not to exceed $298,490.72.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid may impact the Authority's ability to
maintain cleaniiness on HRV and LRV trains and improve customer satisfaction ratings.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the April
2, 2024 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. it is
recommendead that the bid from Freedman Seating Company be accepted and the resolution
adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.




RESOLUTION NQ. 2024-26

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2024-5 WITH FREEDMAN SEATING
COMPANY FOR THE PURCHASE OF RAILCAR VINYL SEAT UPHOLSTERY,
AS SPECIFIED, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $298,490.72 (RTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) deems it
nacessary to purchase railcar vinyl seat upholstery for both the heavy and light rail vehicles to
ensure cleanliness and passenger safisfaction; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Freedman Seating Company, located at 4545 W. Augusta Blvd,
Chicago, IL 60851, was received on February 21, 2024 in an amount not to exceed
$208,490.72; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Freedman
Seating Company to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cileveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

BSection 1. That the bid of Freedman Seating Company for the purchase of railcar vinyl
seat upholstery be and the same is hareby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Freedman Seating Company for the
purchase of railcar vinyl seat upholstery,

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Fleet Management Department budget, including but not limited to 100% local funds, in an
amount not to excead 3288 48072,

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor with the specifications and addenda, if any, the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requiremants
and ali applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority,

Section 5. That the Authority's Board of Trustees expects that Freedman Sealing
Company will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted. April 16, 2026

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22 o
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: RAPID STATION WASHING AND CLEANING SERVICES | 2024-27

FOR A THREE-YEAR PERIOD Date.
April 11, 2024

VENDOR: PREMIER WINDOW CLEANING LL.C Initiator: Rail Facilities

Mainterance

AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $483,120.00 FOR THE THREE YEARS | Department

ACTION REQUEST;
B Approval I Review/Comment U Information Only 0 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority (“Authority”) to enter info a contract to provide rapid station washing and cleaning
services for a three-year period.

DESCRIPTION/JUSHFICATION: This project covers approximately twenty-five (25) major
Authority facilities that require semi-annual interior, exterior and platform cleaning, including
window washing, as specified. Stations included are West 25th Street — Ohio Station, West 98th
- West Boulevard — Cudell, West 65th Station, West 117th & Madison, West Park Station,
Triskett, Puritas, Brookpark, Airport platform & walls, Louis Stokes Station at Windermere,
Cedar-bus ioop and rail sides, Little [taly, Superior Station, East 55th Street, East 34 Campus,
Buckeye Woodhill, Settlers Landing, East Bank Stations, West 3rd, North Goast - East 8th,
Rocket Mortgage Fieldhouse Walkway, Lee & Van Aken Station, Headquariers Building,
Service Building, and Rail Shop Building.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The lnvitation for Bids ("IFB") was posted on the Authority's
Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers, Thirty-five (35) inferested parties,
including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. Two (2) bids were
received and opened on March 13, 2024, They are as follows;

Company Name _ Total Base Bid
Premier Window Cleaning LLC $483,120.00
H20 Mobite Pressure Washing Inc. $747,000.00

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the total base bid
price for a three-year period. Premier Window Cleaning LLC was determined to be a
responsible bidder. The total base bid price of $483,120.00 from Premier Window Cleaning
LLC is 19% above the project estimate of $391,130.00.

A price analysis has been performed, and the bid from Premier Window Cleaning LLC has been
determined by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirrmative Action requirements have been
met. A 17% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Fremier Window Cleaning LL.C
hasg committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of Bush Spring
LLC (African American male-owned) in the amount of $82,130.00 or 17%.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.




Staff Summary & Comments 2024.27
Rapid Station Washing & Cleaning 0
Page 2

6.0

7.0

8.0

8.0

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the General Fund,
Rail Facilities Maintenance Department budget, including but not limited to, 100% local
funds, in an amount not to exceed $161,040.00 per year, for a total contract amount not
to exceed $483,120.00 for a three-year period.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejaction of this bid will impact the Authority’s ability to
maintain cleanliness of the rapid stations and decrease customer satisfaction.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the April
2, 2024 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. 1t is
recornmendead that the bid from Premier Window Cleaning LLC be accepted and the resolution
adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

a
et Mf’} """" )

Gaheral Manager, Chief Efée‘é@ Officer




RESOLUTION NO, 2024-27

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2024-6 WITH PREMIER WINDOW CLEANING
LLC FOR RAPID STATION WASHING AND CLEANING SERVICES FOR A

PERIOD OF THREE (3) YEARS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $483,120.00
(GENERAL FUND, RAIL FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DEFPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) requires the
services of a professional cleaning company for the continued maintenance of the Authority's
rapid stations to ensure cleanliness and continued passenger satisfaction; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Premier Window Cleaning LLC, located at 3043 Chadbourne Rd.
Shaker Heights, Ohio 44120, for rapid station washing and cleaning of the Authority's facilities
for a period of three (3) years was received on March 13, 2024 in an amount not to exceed
$483,120.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Managar, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Premier
Window Cleaning LLC to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Premier Window Cleaning LLC for the washing and cleaning
of the rapid stations for a period of three (3} years be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a confract with Premier Window Cleaning LLC for the
washing and cleaning of the rapid stations, as specified, for a period of three (3) years.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the General Fund, Rail Facilities
Maintenance Department budget, including but not limited to 100% local funds, in an amount
not to exceed $161,040.00 per year, for a total contract amount not to excead $483,120.00 for a

period of three (3) years,

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees, bonding and
insurance requirements, and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Section 5. That the Authority’s Board of Trustees expects that Premier Window
Cleaning L1L.C will attempt to exceed the 17% minimum DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: April 16, 2024

Presidant

Attest:

Secretary-treasurer



Form 100-

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF TRANSMISSION FLUID, AS 2024-28
SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF Date:
ONE (1) YEAR April 11, 2024
) Initiator: Fleet
VENDOR; NORTHEAST LUBRICANTS LTD. Managament
Department

AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $103,000.00

ACTION REQUEST:

Approval {) Review/Comment [0 Information Only 1 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2.0

3.0

4.0

50

6.0

7.0

(“Authority”) to enter into a contract for the procurement of transmission fluid, as specified and
as required, for a period of one (1) year.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has a recurring need for transmission fluid that
is necessary for the maintenance of all revenue and non-revenue vehicles operated by the
Authority.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bid ("IFB") was posted on the Authority's
Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Fourteen (14) interested parties
downloaded the solicitation. Three (3) responsive bids were received on March 27, 2024, The
bid of Northeast Lubricants Lid. has been determined by the Procurement Department to be
the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder,

Anticipated
Supplier Usage Cost Per Gallon Total Contract
W’Ei“rallons |
Northeast Lubricants Ltd. 4,000 $25.75 $103,000.00
Reladyne 4,000 $27.20 $108,800.00
Safety Kleen 4,000 $31.25 $125,000.00

A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified DBE
firms.

POLICY IMPACT; Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amournt not to exceed $103,000.00 for a period of one
(1) year. The bid price is slightly above the budget estimate of $102,800.00.

ALTERNATIVES: Beject this bid. Rejection of this bid would delay procurement of this product
and cause the Authority to be without transmission fluid, thereby adversely affecting the
mairtenance of all revenue and non-revenue vehicles.




Staff Summary & Commaeants }
Transmission Fluid 2024-28
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of Northeast Lubricants Ltd. be
accepted and the resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive

Officer to enter into a contract,

9.0 ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availabitity of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

/ Ceolin /f;t’:j//.ﬁ///f; h

Ge eral Manager, Chief Exec“ﬁ%d{frcer




RESOLUTION NO. 2024-28

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2024-023 WITH NORTHEAST LUBRICANTS
LTD. FOR THE FURNISHING OF TRANSMISSION FLUID, AS SPECIFIED AND
AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $103,000.00 (GENERAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (*Authaority”) has a
recurring reguirement to obtain transmission fluid, as specified and as required, for a period of
one (1) year, to be used for the routing maintenance of all revenue and non-revenue vehicles;
and

WHEREAS, the bid of Northeast Lubricants Ltd. located at 4500 Renaissance Parkway,
Cleveland, Ohio 44128, for the furnishing of transmission fluid, as specified and as required, for
a period of one (1) year at unit prices resulting in a total contract amount not to exceed
$103,000.00, was received on March 27, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems tha bid of Northeast
Lubricants Lid. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees. '

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Northeast Lubricants Ltd., for the furnishing of transmission
fluid, as specified and as required, for a period of one (1) year be and the same is hereby
accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Northeast Lubricants Ltd., for the
furnishing of transmission fluid, as specified and as required, for a period of one (1) year.

Section 3. This contract shall be payable from the RTA General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $103,000.00 for a period of one

(1) year.

Saction 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
cortingent upon compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements; and all applicable taws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Authority's Board of Trustees expects that Northeast Lubricants Lid.
will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption,

Adopted: Aprit 16, 2024

President

Attest:

Sacretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Mayor Paul A. Koomar, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: india L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

Date: April 11, 2024

Subject: Approving the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s 2024-2027
Quadrennial Equal Employment Opporfunity Program And Affirmative Action
Goals

The Authority's Committee of the Whaole reviewed the QEEOP and affirmative action goals at its
April 2, 2024, meeting and recommended approval {o the full Board of Trustees,

Federal law requires that grant recipients do not engage in employment discrimination, stating:
A person may not be excluded from participating in, denied a benefit of, or discriminated against
under, a project, program, or activity receiving financial assistance under this chapter because
of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, or age. This provision applies to
employment opportunities and supplements employment protections found in Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (Title V).

FTA requires submission of a written affirmative action plan every four years. GCRTA's
QEEQP and Affirmative Action Goals are due to FTA on May 1, 2024. Please see the following

attachments:

Attachment A: Quadrennial Equal Employment Opportunity (QEEQP) - a detailed written
narrative that the Authority implements to ensure that all qualified applicants and employees are
receiving an equal opportunity for recruitment, selection, advancement, and other opportunities
associated with employment.

Attachment B Proposed Affirmative Action Goals - the result of a utilization analysis based on
the workforce and the available labor market. The goals are established to correct any
identified underutilization.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
meeting.

IBT/fow



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
0 1 -1 2“22 o TP VTl 0 TR = ALY o e = R im0 R S TR TLUPTL NPRTRYL T prey
THLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No
202429
APPROVING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT Date:
AUTHORITY'S 2024-2027 QUADRENNIAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT Aprit 11, 2024
OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION GOALS nitiat '
Nilatornr
Office of Equal
Opportunity

ACTION REQUEST:
X Approval 1 Review/Comment 1 Information Only 1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

50

6.0

7.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority ("Authority”) to approve the Quadrennial Equal Employment Opportunity
Program (QEEOP)} which establishes affirmative action goals for the employment of
women and minorities in order to comply with the requirements and guidelines published
by the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federat Transit Administration ("FTA").

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority’s Office of Eqgual Opportunity has
defermined the need for the Authority to approve the QEEQP and establish affirmative
action goals for employing women and minorities during the four-year period 2024-2027 to
comply with FTA requirements.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND; Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The Authority's Board of Trustees adopts the QEEOP and affirmative
action goals in accordance with federal requirements.

ECONOMIC IMPACT. Failure to approve the QEEOP and establish affirmative action
goals and timetables to comply with the terms of the federal requirements may result in a
finding by the FTA of non-compliance with the FTA's Master Grant Agreement and the
impasition of appropriate sanctions, including a refusal by the FTA to approve grant

applications.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject request for approval of the 2024-2027 QEEQP which would risk
the approval of grant applications.

RECOMMENDATION: The Authority's Committee of the Whole reviewed the QEEOP and
affirmative action goals at its Aprit 2, 2024, meeting and recommended approval to the full
Board of Trustees. Itis recommended that the 2024-2027 QEEOP and its affirmative
action goals be approved and the Resolution passed authorizing the General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Civil Rights Officer to implement the goals.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance
with the Procurement requirements,

xf_ﬂ”}'x 49 M/

ra
“/”'éeneraTManager Chlef‘Ex%t:Ljve Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2024-29

APPROVING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY'S
2024-2027 QUADRENNIAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM
AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION GOALS

WHEREAS, Title 49 1.5.C. 5332(b) "Public Transportation” provides that no person in
the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, or age, be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under
any project, program or activity funded in whole or in part through federal financial assistance;
and

WHEREAS, Federal Transit Administration ("FTA") Circular 4704.1A Equal Employment
Opportunity ("EEQ") provides guidelines and requirements for FTA grant recipients; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the FTA's guidelines and requirements, the Authority, as a
recipient of FTA funding, must submit an updated EEQ Program to FTA every four (4) years or
as major changes occur in the workforce or employment conditions, whichever comes first; and

WHEREAS, the FTA requires that the EEQ Program include goals and timetables to
carrect identified areas of underutilization or concentration: and

WHEREAS, foltowing FTA's directives, the Authority's EEQ Program requires that the
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer establish goals and review said goals on a quarterly
basis for employing women and minorities; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with federal requirements, the General Manager, Chiaf
Executive Officer met with management staff to determine the goals during the four-year period
2024-2027 for the employment of women and minorities; and

WHEREAS, said goals have been determined using the minimum criteria established in
the federal regulations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Beard of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Chio:

Section 1. That the Quadrennial Equal Employment Opportunity Program and the
affirmative action gaals for the employment of women and minorities during the years 2024-
2027, as set forth in Attachments A and B hereto and incorporated herein, are approved and
adopted by the Authority's Board of Trustees.

Seclion 2. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: April 16, 2024

Fresident

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Attachment A

The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (GCRTA)

Quadrennial Update of the
Equal Employment

Opportunity (EEO) Program
2024

This EEO Program is submitted to the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).

Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority
rideRTA.com

Top U.S. Official:
India L. Birdsong Terry,
General Manager/CEO & Chief Civil Rights Officer

EEO/AA Responsibility:
Felicia Brooks Williams

Senior Manager, Office of Equal Opportunity, ADA & DEI



Confidential Trade Secret Materials

The material set forth in this program is deemed to be confidential commercial and
financial data, the public disclosure of which could cause substantial competitive harm to
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“The Authority”). In addition, all statistical
components of this program, including any and all data pertaining to employee
compensation, workforce structure, final availability, goals and timetables,
determinations of adverse impact and determinations of problems in workforce
distribution and supporting employment policies and practices, or the analyses of any of
the foregoing, are deemed to constitute trade secrets, operations information,
confidential statistical data and other confidential commercial and financial data within
the meaning of the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. §552 et. seq., Title VI of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §2000d et. seq., the Trade Secrets
Act, 18 U.S.C. §1905, and 44 U.S.C. §3508, the disclosure of which is prohibited by law
and would subject the individual making the disclosure to criminal and/or civil sanctions.
This material has not been disclosed to the public and should not be, since such
disclosure could cause substantial competitive harm to The Authority. Therefore, in
accordance with 29 C.F.R. §70.26(c) — (e), we expect that The Authority will be notified
in writing by the agency prior to disclosure of any request for information pertaining to all
or any part of this program, and that The Authority shall be given an opportunity to
present its objection to disclosure.

Page 2



VL.

VIL.
VIIL

XI.

Table of Contents

Introduction: FTA EEO Compliance Requirements.........ccccccceiiiiirvrrccnnnnnnnnn, 4
The Greater Cleveland Regional Authority ............ccovvieeicceiiiirrrecee s 5
Dissemination of POlICY.........ccccommiiiiiiiieeirr e 7
A. Internal DiSSemiNation ...........cocooiiiiiiiine e 7
B. External Dissemination ............ccooviieienieere e 7
Designation of Personnel Responsibility ..........cceuceiiiiimiiiccccirreeeccccneees 8
Utilization ANalySis........cciiieeeeciiiiiiriircces s s e e e 1
A. WOrKfOrCE ANGIYSIS ...c.vevieieciieeee ettt st ennens 11
B. AVailability ANAIYSIS ....c.eivieiiiieeree e e 11
C. Goals and TiMetables .........cccoviiririiieee s 12
D. Placement Goal Progress from Previous EEOP Submission.................... 13
Assessment of Employment Practices..........cccoiiiiimiiinicccceeeeee s 13
A. RECIUMENT ...t 14
B. Employment Policies and PractiCes...........cccoeveriiiinininincceeeeeeee 15
C. L070] 0] 07T g TS3= | [0 o 1SR 15
D. o] 4o ] 110 o = R 15
E. Americans with Disabilities ACt .........ccooveeeiieee e 16
F. VEEEIANS ...ttt ettt nees 16
Action-Oriented Programs ............cccooiiiiiiimceiccsniiiessrscessss s s e e s sssmsssssssssesssssnnnns 16
Monitoring and Reporting Systems...........cccoovimiiieericcinrr s 20
Complaint Procedure ... 22
Subrecipients and ServiCes ... 23
2N o] oYY o L [ e - 24
Appendix A - Utilization Analysis Chart............cccoovrieeniceee e 24
Appendix B — 2024-2027 Goal SUMMATY .......ccceeveiieienieeeiese e eeeens 25
Appendix C - Previous EEOP Goals and Timetables .........ccccccevvvivieveieecienneen, 26
Appendix D — Employment Practices Chart ...........cccooeeiveevineeeeeeeeeee e 27
Appendix E — ReCruitment SOUICES..........ccvvvieieieieceeceeeeee e 34
Appendix F — Organizational Chart............cccociiieviiieeceeeeeeee e 35
Appendix G — Demonstration of Subrecipient Contact and Receipt of EEOP ..... 36

Page3



Introduction: FTA EEO Compliance Requirements

This EEO Program is designed to satisfy The Authority’s equal employment
opportunity and affirmative action responsibilities under Title VII of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 2000e); Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); Equal Pay Act of 1963, as amended (29
U.S.C. § 206(d)); Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended
(29 U.S.C. § 621 et seq.); Title Il of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act
of 2008, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 2000ff); 49 U.S.C. § 5332(b) of the Federal
Transit Act; U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) EEO implementing
regulations (49 CFR Part 21), and the FTA Master Agreement, Section 503 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 793); Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); and the Uniformed Services
Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (38 U.S.C. §§ 4301-4335).

The Authority has prepared this EEO Program to cover all applicants and
employees. As described in detail in the program that follows, The Authority has
a continuing commitment to the practice and implemented action of this EEO
Program.

Page 4



The Greater Cleveland Regional Authority

GCRTA has a strong commitment to the community we serve and our
employees. As an equal opportunity employer, we strive to have a
workforce culture of belonging, reflective of the community we serve. No
person is unlawfully excluded from employment opportunities based on
race, color, religion, national origin, sex (including gender identity, sexual
orientation, and pregnancy), age, genetic information, disability, veteran
status, or other protected class.

The GCRTA Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) policy applies to all
employment actions, including but not limited to, recruitment, hiring,
selection for training, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, termination,
rates of pay or other forms of compensation. All applicants and employees
have the right to file complaints alleging discrimination. Retaliation against
an individual who files a charge or complaint of discrimination, participates
in an employment discrimination proceeding, (such as an investigation or
lawsuit), or otherwise engages in protected activity, is strictly prohibited,
and will not be tolerated.

We are committed to providing reasonable accommodations to applicants
and employees who may be differently abled or to practice or observe
their religion, absent undue hardship. All employees and customers have
the right to request ADA accommodation or modification.

As the General Manager/CEQO and Chief Civil Rights Officer, | maintain
overall responsibility and accountability for GCRTA’s compliance with its
EEO Policy and Program. Felicia Brooks-Williams serves as the Senior
Manager, Office of Equal Opportunity, ADA, and DEI, responsible for day-
to-day management of the EEO, ADA and DEI Programs, including
program preparation, monitoring, ADA accommodations and complaint
investigations.

All executives, management, and supervisory personnel, however, share
the responsibility for implementing and monitoring GCRTA’s EEO Policy
and Programs within their respective areas and will be assigned specific
tasks to ensure compliance is achieved. GCRTA will evaluate its
managers’ and supervisors’ performance on their successful
implementation of GCRTA's policies and procedures, in the same way
GCRTA assesses their performance regarding other agency’s goals.

We are committed to our written nondiscrimination program that sets forth
the policies, practices, and procedures, with goals and timetables, to
which the agency is committed and make the EEO Program available for
inspection by any employee or applicant for employment upon request.

Page5



As the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Civil Rights
Officer, | am personally committed to a workplace that fulfills on a daily
basis its responsibility to treat all applicants and employees with dignity

and respect, as well as equitably under the guidelines of our EEO Policy
and Programs.

| fully support The Authority’s equal opportunity and affirmative action policies.

India L. Birdsong Terry Date
General Manager, CEO and
Chief Civil Rights Officer

Page 6




Dissemination of Policy

The Authority ensures applicants are aware of its equal employment program by
posting its EEO policies and program in public and common areas within the
workforce such as at entrance doors and interview rooms where possible. These
elements of The Authority’s EEO program are made available to our employees by
publishing content on bulletin boards in break rooms and in our Employee
Handbook.

A.

Internal Dissemination

India Birdsong Terry, GM/CEO & Civil Rights Officer, sent written
communication to all managers and supervisors to inform them of EEO
policy.

Official EEO materials, such as Federal and state required labor law
posters are prominently displayed in community areas within the facility, so
all employees can view The Authority’s EEO program and expectations.
The EEO Program and policy is published in the employee handbook
for all current employees to read.

The Authority holds a semi-annual meeting with managers and supervisors
to discuss the EEO Program and its implementation. New managers and
supervisors are trained within (90) days of hire or appointment.

The Authority shares its EEO Program and Policies with its Diversity,
Equity, and Inclusion Team members to obtain input from various Employee
Resource Groups for program implementation and effectiveness.
Non-supervisory staff is informed of the EEO policy through new employee
orientation, periodic training, and publicly displayed EEO posters and
policy statements.

External Dissemination

All recruitment sources will continue to be used to inform people of
GCRTA'’s Equal Employment Opportunity Policy.

All advertisements of job openings and all announcements of upcoming
examinations will continue to include the phrase, “An Equal
Opportunity/ADA Employer.”

The Authority will continue advertise that it is an “Equal Opportunity
Employer” in all public media sources, especially radio and television
stations, newspapers, magazines, and other journals, making an extra effort
to inform those sources that are specifically oriented to minorities and
females.

Page 7



Iv.

Designation of Personnel Responsibility

Pursuant to the requirements under FTA C 4704.1A, overall responsibility for
implementation of the EEO Program lies with the General Manager/CEO & Civil
Rights Officer and the Senior Manager of the Office of Equal Opportunity. The
Senior Manager of the Office of Equal Opportunity, ADA, & DEI, has the authority,
resources, support of and access to top management to ensure effective
implementation of the EEO Program. Felicia Brooks-Williams, Senior Manager of
the Office of Equal Opportunity is identified in all internal and external
communications regarding The Authority’s EEO policy. It is The Authority’s
objective to ensure full adherence to its EEO policy and to the program.

These positions responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

CEO, General Manager and Chief Civil Rights Officer

The General Manager/CEO has the overall responsibility for overseeing the
implementation of the Affirmative Action/ EEO Program. The General Manager serves as
the Civil Rights Officer and delegates the day-to-day responsibility to the Senior Manager
of the Office of Equal Opportunity.

Senior Manager of the Office of Equal Opportunity

e Developing and recommending policy statements, EEO Program and both
internal and external communication programs (i.e., to include leading the
charge on ensuring EEO posters are properly displayed in conspicuous work
areas).

e Ensuring consistency and completeness of The Authority’s EEO Program with
federal, state, and local agencies’ rules and regulations.

e At a minimum, biannually meeting with and discussions of the problem areas
and progress of each unit’s goal progress with Key Leaders including the CEO.

e Assisting officials and managers with collecting and analyzing employment
data, monitoring internal audit, and reporting systems to identifying problem
areas and setting goals to address underutilization of minorities, females and
individuals who have disabilities.

e Collaboratively working with HR Business Partners and Talent Acquisition
team members to discuss where goal progress has been achieved and
recommendations for proactive sourcing in areas where goals remain.

e Providing periodic training and feedback to officials and managers based on
their EEO progress.

e Designing, implementing, and monitoring internal audit and reporting systems
to measure program effectiveness and measuring where progress has been
made and where proactive action is needed.

e Serving as liaison between The Authority and Federal, state, county, local
governments, regulatory agencies, and community organizations that serve
minorities, women, and persons with disabilities.

e Assuring current legal information affecting equal opportunity employment is
disseminated to appropriate personnel.

e Concurring on all hires and promotions.

Page 8



e Processing employment discrimination complaints.

e Assisting in recruiting minority, handicapped and female applicants and
establishing outreach sources for use by hiring officials.

e Reviewing the agency’s nondiscrimination plan with all managers,
supervisors, and The Authority’s affinity group members focused on EEO
ensuring diversity, equity and inclusion are at the core of all people related
processes.

e In partnership with Human Resources, periodically reviewing employment
practices, policies, complaint policies, reasonable accommodation policies,
performance evaluations grievance processes and union agreements.

e In conjunction with human resources, advising employees and applicants of
available training programs and professional development opportunities and
the entrance requirements.

e Auditing postings of the EEO policy statements to ensure compliance
information is posted and up to date.

The Office of Equal Opportunity (OEO) Program Administrator also assists the
Senior Manager with the day-to-day responsibilities of the implementation of the
EEO Program.

In addition, the following entities assist with the direct application of the Authority’s
EEO Program:

Deputy General Manager for Administration and External Affairs; A member
of the Executive Management Team reporting directly to the General
Manager/CEO and Chief Civil Rights Officer. The Senior Manager of OEO, ADA &
DEl is a direct report to the Deputy General Manager of Administration and
External Affairs. This Deputy General Manager oversees Diversity, Equity,
Inclusion and Belonging (DEI &B). The Administration and External Affairs Division
consists of OEO, Marketing, Government, Affairs, Community Engagement,
Mobility Management, Media Relations, and Customer Service.

Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs: A member of the Executive
Management Team reporting directly to the General Manager/CEO and Chief Civil
Rights Officer. The Deputy General Manager oversees the Legal Affairs Division
and supports the Office of Equal Opportunity. The Legal Affairs Division is
comprised of the Legal, Safety and Risk Management Departments.

Deputy General Counsel and Associate Legal Counsel, in Administrative &
Labor Law: Investigate external charges of harassment and discrimination from
employees and customers, including the interviewing of all relevant witnesses,
gathering, and analyzing data and materials, and making recommendations for
corrective action, where appropriate.

Director, Business Development: Under the direction of the Deputy General
Manager, Finance & Administration, the Director of Business Development is
responsible for the functioning and coordination of the Small
Business/Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Program. This program
creates and monitors the neutral and race-conscious goals set on outstanding
contracts, grants, and procurement projects, and works with the DBE community
to help the Authority achieve those goals.

Page9



Managers, Employment & Recruitment: The Authority’s Human Resources
Department is charged with the functional day-to-day administrative responsibility
of ensuring that the AAP is complied with. More specifically, the Managers of
Employment & Recruitment, under the direction of the Deputy General Manager,
Human Resources, ensures that equal opportunity is afforded to all current and
prospective employees regarding recruitment, appointment, compensation,
promotion, and benefits. The Human Resources Department provides reports,
statistics, and other relevant information to the Office of Equal Opportunity to
ensure that the program goals are being met and can be reported to the
Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity committee.

Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Committee: The Equal Opportunity
Committee is appointed by the General Manager/CEO and consists of the General
Manager/CEQ; the Deputy General Manager, Legal Affairs; the Director of
Business Development; the Director of Employment & Recruitment; the Senior
Manager of the Office of Equal Opportunity; and other personnel deemed
appropriate by the General Manage/CEO. The Senior Manager of the Office of
Equal Opportunity is responsible for setting the agenda for this meeting and
maintaining a record of all the proceedings of the meetings. The Committee meets
no less than semi-annually.

Directors/Managers/Supervisors; All supervisory personnel share the
responsibility for ensuring the effectiveness of the Authority’s EEO Program. They
are expected to give their full cooperation and active support to the EEO Program.

Among the specific requirements of the administrative and supervisory personnel
are to:

e Lead by example and encourage all employees to be proactive in reporting
any suspicious or concerning behavior towards a fellow team member.

e Assist Human Resources with identifying problem areas and establishing goal
objectives.

e Be actively involved with local minority organizations, female and disabled
groups, community action organizations and community service programs
designed to promote equal employment opportunity.

o Participate actively in periodic audits of all aspects of employment to identify
and remove barriers obstructing the achievement of specified goals and
objectives.

e Hold regular discussions with other managers, supervisors, and employees to
identify and remove barriers obstructing the achievement of specified goals.

¢ Review the qualifications of all employees to ensure there are no barriers to
positive employment outcomes such as selection for transfer, promotion, and
training.

e Support career counseling for employees and provide professional leadership
development programs to diverse high potential employees.

¢ In conjunction with Human Resources, participate in periodic audits to ensure

that each location is following the EEO Program as well as federal, state, and

local agencies’ rules and regulations (i.e., ensure that all EEO posters are
properly displayed on all employee bulletin boards).

In conjunction with the EEO officer, maintain and update the personnel

Page 10



database for generating reports required for the nondiscrimination program.
Cooperate with the EEO officer in review of information and investigation of
complaints.

Utilization Analysis

Pursuant to the requirements under FTA C 4704.1A, The Authority has completed
a utilization analysis as part of the EEO Program. The purpose of the utilization
analysis is to identify EEO-4 categories that have an underutilization or
concentration of minorities and women compared to their respective availability in
the relevant labor market. The analysis also establishes the framework for goals
and timetables to correct employment practices that contributed to any identified
underutilization or concentration. The Authority has used the Utilization Analysis
Excel Chart provided by the FTA to complete the Utilization Analysis element of the
EEO Program. The elements of the utilization analysis are listed below.

The Utilization Analysis is included in the submission as Appendix A.

A

Workforce Analysis

The Authority completed a Workforce Analysis within the Utilization Analysis
to depict the staffing pattern within an establishment. The workforce
analysis lists the number of employees and salary ranges for each EEO-4
job category for the following subcategories for men and women:

White (not Hispanic or Latino)

American Indian/Alaska Native (not Hispanic or Latino)

Black or African American (not Hispanic or Latino)

Hispanic or Latino

Asian (not Hispanic or Latino)

Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander (not Hispanic or Latino)
Two or more races (not Hispanic or Latino)

Availability Analysis

The purpose of the availability analysis is to establish a benchmark against
which the demographic composition of The Authority’s incumbent workforce
can be compared to determine whether barriers to equal employment
opportunity may exist within the EEO-4 job categories. The Authority
determined the availability of minorities and women in each EEO-4 category
using availability data in the American Community Survey (ACS) database.
The Authority executed the following steps to appropriately report the
availability of men and women and the racial/ethnic subgroups within the
utilization analysis:

(1) The Authority determined the relevant labor market used for the EEO-
4 categories of each establishment. The Authority determined the
most appropriate regional, national, or local recruiting area available

Page 11



in the ACS database to align this recruitment area to how The
Authority recruits at each establishment in practice. The reasonable
recruitment areas identified for each job category are as follows:

e 1 - Officials & Administrators - US (50%); OH (50%)

e 2 - Professional - Cuyahoga County, OH (80%); Geauga
County, OH (3.34%); Lake County, OH (3.34%); Lorain
County, OH (3.33%); Medina County, OH (3.33%); Summit
County, OH (3.33%); Portage County, OH (3.33%)

e 3 - Technicians - Cuyahoga County, OH (80%); Geauga
County, OH (3.34%); Lake County, OH (3.34%); Lorain
County, OH (3.33%); Medina County, OH (3.33%); Summit
County, OH (3.33%); Portage County, OH (3.33%)

e 4 - Protective Service - Cuyahoga County, OH (80%); Geauga
County, OH (3.34%); Lake County, OH (3.34%); Lorain
County, OH (3.33%); Medina County, OH (3.33%); Summit
County, OH (3.33%); Portage County, OH (3.33%)

¢ 5 - Administrative Support - Cuyahoga County, OH (80%);
Geauga County, OH (3.34%); Lake County, OH (3.34%);
Lorain County, OH (3.33%); Medina County, OH (3.33%);
Summit County, OH (3.33%); Portage County, OH (3.33%)

e 6 - Skilled Craft Workers - Cuyahoga County, OH (80%);
Geauga County, OH (3.34%); Lake County, OH (3.34%);
Lorain County, OH (3.33%); Medina County, OH (3.33%);
Summit County, OH (3.33%); Portage County, OH (3.33%)

e 7 - Service/Maintenance - Cuyahoga County, OH (80%);
Geauga County, OH (3.34%); Lake County, OH (3.34%);
Lorain County, OH (3.33%); Medina County, OH (3.33%);
Summit County, OH (3.33%); Portage County, OH (3.33%)

(2) The Authority calculated the availability of men and women and the
racial/ethnic subgroups using the determined recruitment areas and
availability data in the ACS.

(3) The Authority input the availability data into the utilization analysis.

Goals and Timetables

The utilization analysis chart identifies whether The Authority’s job
categories are underutilized for men, women, and/or the racial/ethnic
subgroups. Using the Whole Person methodology in the Utilization Analysis,
if certain EEO-4 job categories are found to be underutilized in one or more
areas. The Authority will establish a placement goal. In conjunction with a
set numerical and percentage placement goal, The Authority determines
timetables for the next four-year period, which details the improved
utilization in areas that were identified as underutilized.

Page 12



VL.

Per the recommendations, The Authority has involved relevant stakeholders
in developing placement goals and timetables that are both short term and
long-term in nature. The short-term goals represent the aspirational
increase in utilization of women and minorities by EEO-4 category in the
next year. In creating short-term goals, the Authority has considered
variables (e.g., job openings) that may impact The Authority’s ability to
improve employment practices and reach the short-term goals. Long-term
goals are set to look ahead two years or more and reflect the aspirational
increase in utilization of women and minorities over the 4-year duration of
the EEOP. These goals are set in consideration of current and projected
availability of the identified underutilized groups, as well as opportunities to
hire employees due to company revenue and operating funds.

A 2024-2027 Goal Summary is provided in the submission as Appendix B.

Placement Goal Progress from Previous EEOP Submission

In accordance with FTA requirements, The Authority has engaged in a
review of previous program submission and evaluated areas in which goals
were not reached. The Authority is committed to gaining a comprehensive
understanding of any circumstances surrounding goal non-attainment and
develop measures for corrective action based on the results of the utilization
analysis and employment practices chart.

Primarily due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, as with many employers, the
Talent Acquisition (TA) team faced cultural challenges in finding and
attracting talent. The impact of the pandemic forced human resources to
think outside of the box and recruit passive and aggressive candidates by
being proactive rather than reactive. It changed the old onboarding process
from a transaction to a human design to focus on the applicants and their
experience(s).

Marketing campaigns were designed to attract passive job seekers through
non-traditional partnerships. The process included collaboration and
participation with Workforce Development & Community opportunities to
include:

* Government (City, County & State) partnerships

* Veterans Service Organizations

* Non-Profits (Community Engagement)

*  Education (Community Colleges & Training Institutions)

A copy of the goals and timetables from the previous EEOP is included in
the submission as Appendix C.

Assessment of Employment Practices

The Employment and Recruitment Department is committed to upholding GCRTA’s
affirmative action standards and process. To that end, the Employment and
Recruitment Department and OEO work collaboratively to ensure that the recruiting,

Page 13



selection and offer process is conducted with affirmative action goals in mind. The
following outlined process ensures appropriate checks in the major steps of the
process while remaining service-oriented to our customers in recruiting and hiring
individuals for vacant positions in the most efficient manner possible. The
Employment Practices Chart is included in the submission as Appendix D.

A.

Recruitment

Personnel recruitment activities are carried out primarily in accordance with
The Authority’s Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual (Manual) as
adopted by the Board of Trustees. The provisions of the Manual are applied
equally throughout The Authority, thus eliminating opportunities for
disparate treatment.

To access the largest possible applicant pool, positions may be advertised
in local, state, and/or national general circulation newspapers and websites.
Job announcements may be distributed to various local employment,
professional, academic, ethnic, social, and governmental agencies.

A list of organizations/institutions with which The Authority has formed
relationships to recruit potentially qualified applicants is included in the
submission as Appendix E.

All job announcements are posted online through the iRecruitment system.
Active employees access this system through Employee Self Service at the
www.myinfo.gcrta.org site, may apply for any position for which they qualify,
and must compete with all other candidates.

For non-bargaining positions, the Employment and Recruitment Department
shall first screen online applications/resumes to identify those that meet the
minimum qualifications. Qualified applicants will advance to the next step of
the selection process and will continue to advance in the selection process
until they are no longer eligible to advance.

Written tests that are administered by The Authority include standardized
psychological, aptitude, and skills tests purchased from external sources,
and specific job-related examinations developed by staff from the Human
Resources Department.

Members of The Authority’s staff (in the form of panels) interview all
applicants who are being considered for positions within the Authority.
Furthermore, the appropriate supervisory or management personnel may
also interview those persons who have applied for highly skilled jobs or
administrative positions.

The Authority may administer various assessments to qualified candidates
for both initial hires and promotions including, but not limited to, a physical
examination, drug and alcohol screening, police records, driving records,
background check, employment history, and interviews to assist in making a
final decision. All applicants are notified of the decision regarding their
applications, internal transfers, or promotions.

Page 14



Employment Policies and Practices

In addition to the Manual, employees are governed by a variety of other
rules, codes, and policies. One such set of rules is that only ATU
represented employees are governed by the Merit System Rules. These
Rules cover a variety of topics for employees, such as pay rates and scales,
examinations, promotions, appointments, demotions, resignations, layoffs
and retirement, and discharges and suspensions.

Other employment policies which affect all employees are the Employee
Performance Code, Positive Discipline Program, Attendance Policy,
Program Guidelines for Voluntary Furlough, Substance Abuse Policy for
Non-Safety Sensitive Employees, and Substance Abuse Policy for Safety
Sensitive Employees. The policies not only assist employees in
understanding what type of behavior is and is not acceptable, but help
contribute to a work environment that fosters equal employment opportunity
and affirmative action. The Employee Performance Code makes it clear that
the use of racial or ethnic slurs or offensive remarks will not be tolerated.
Moreover, the Positive Discipline Policy requires that supervisors get
permission before issuing the final stage of formal discipline, thereby
minimizing the possibility of disparate or discriminatory treatment by
supervisors towards employees.

Included in the Manual is the Authority’s Equal Employment Opportunity
policies, including Sexual Harassment/Non-Harassment & Retaliation,
Americans with Disabilities Act Amendment Act - ADAAA of 2008, and the
Family Medical Leave Act. These policies assist employees in
understanding what type of behavior is expected of them while in the course
and scope of their employment and the avenues available to assist them
with issues. Further, these sections clearly set forth the law regarding
unlawful and/or discriminatory conduct, assist employees on how to report
these matters, and explain the investigation process.

Compensation

A salary schedule has been established for all non-represented positions in
grades 101 through 116. It consists of pay ranges, each with a minimum
and maximum rate of pay.

Job descriptions have been prepared and assigned grades, classification
numbers, and titles.

Department directors and supervisors shall conduct annual performance
appraisals of employees that may result in salary increases in accordance
with guidelines of the merit pay plan.

Promotions

Any employee who meets the minimum requirements for the position and
who has successfully completed their probationary/ orientation period may
compete for a promotional position. Employees learn of promotional
opportunities through internal postings located on the iRecruitment
computerized system.

Page 15



Employees in Grades 1-6, whose job classifications are governed by
testing and with an eligible list, are also able to apply for promotional
positions. The promotional process for these employees is governed by
collective bargaining agreement, the Merit System Rules and various
arbitration decisions and Memorandums of Understanding with the ATU,
Local 268.

E. Americans with Disabilities Act

The Authority is committed to providing equal opportunity in employment,
training, benefits, compensation, and promotions. This includes providing a
work environment free from unfair and unequal treatment based on an
employee’s or applicant’s disability status and providing reasonable
accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions of their jobs. Employees may contact the Office of Equal
Opportunity to begin the interactive discussion of assessing the job
requirements and their needs so that a reasonable accommodation(s) can
be made available for the employee.

F. Veterans

Pursuant to the requirements of FTA C 4704.1A, The Authority is reaffirming
its commitment to affirmative action and equal employment opportunity for
all its applicants and employees. Specifically, The Authority does not
discriminate because of an individual’s status as a protected veteran, and
takes affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified
protected veterans at all levels of employment, including the executive level.

VII. Action-Oriented Programs

The following programs are viable options for addressing the identified deficiency
at The Authority of underutilization of women or minorities in each job category.
GCRTA is committed to putting forth its best efforts in these action-oriented
programs to reach its established goals and edge closer toward parity with
established availability in all job classifications. Furthermore, while these
enumerated programs will help The Authority move closer to its goals, The Authority
is ever open to new and alternative ideas for achieving its established goals. The
Employment Practices Chart is included in the submission as Appendix D.

A. Recruitment

Recruitment is the primary way in which affirmative action goals can be met.
More specifically, effective recruitment will increase the number of people in
protected classes who are available to fill vacancies.

The Authority continues to expand its recruitment efforts to maximize
opportunities to receive applications from qualified minorities, women, and
other members of protected classes for positions. In order to access the
largest possible applicant pool of minorities, women, and other members of
protected classes, positions are advertised in local, state, and/or national
general circulation newspapers and websites. Job announcements are

Page 16



distributed to various local employment, professional, academic, ethnic,
social and governmental agencies. The primary responsibility for these
efforts lies with the Human Resources Department and is subject to review
by the Deputy General Manager, Human Resources.

The Authority’s recruitment efforts include, but are not limited to:

* Continued outreach and active support of local community action
programs and services designed to improve employment opportunities
for minorities and women. Additionally, we continue to improve our
outreach and connecting with the community through job fairs, email
blasts, and advertising job announcements in Hispanic publications and
media. All applicants can attend our recruiting events. All event
information is posted on the riderta.com/careers.

* The use of affirmative action measures, such as job fairs, to recruit
minorities and women not currently in the work force and having the
requisite sKills.

* Notices of vacancies and job opportunities with The Authority are
routinely sent to the recruitment sources. The recruitment sources
consist of hiring agencies, and list community partners list developed
specifically to increase the applicant pool of minorities, women, and
other members of the protected classes, and is updated on an on-going
basis.

* All job announcements are reviewed and revised to ensure that job
duties and minimum requirements are job-related, and do not adversely
impact minorities, women, and other members of the protected classes.

* Personnel are encouraged to participate in job fairs, information
sessions, and career day programs at local high schools, colleges, and
universities.

The Authority’s recruitment efforts will continue to be done on an on-going
basis. Any and all recommendations designed to enhance the likelihood of
improving or achieving these efforts, and ultimately The Authority’s affirmative
action goals, are welcomed and considered.

. Employee Advancement

Employees are encouraged to compete for promotions and take advantage of
educational and training opportunities. This is of particular interest to women
and minorities who may be in entry-level positions or traditional positions with
lower pay rates who seek opportunities for advancement.

The Authority will continue to post and promote promotional opportunities
for all employees, assuring that postings are readily available and timely
placed within all buildings and facilities. Furthermore, The Authority
believes that on-going employee development is an important
organizational objective and provides direct benefits for the development
of internal future organizational leaders. The Authority will continue to

Page 17



encourage employees to take advantage of the following programs, to
increase both skills and knowledge:

e The Succession Planning Program was developed to ensure effective
organizational performance by preparing qualified high potential
individuals to compete for key roles. The program has 3 goals: achieve
strategic alignment, build bench strength and preserve institutional
knowledge. Individuals selected to participate in the program will
receive individual development plans geared toward preparing them to
compete for future key openings.

e Public Management Academy and Leadership Academy is a
partnership endeavor with Cleveland State University’s Levin College of
Public Administration, which focuses on developing employees’ skills
and to enhance succession planning efforts.

e Public Transit Development Academy (PTDA). The PTDA provides
cross-functional expertise development through rotational assignments
throughout all divisions. Career development includes the enhancement
of new skill sets and provides a pipeline of new leaders for the GCRTA.
Individuals are selected from multi-cultural universities and through
internal promotional opportunities.

e The Tuition Reimbursement Program (TRP) provides financial means
for employees to expand their knowledge, skills, and abilities through
college/academic degree programs.

e Other opportunities include external training programs, which
focus on the development of improved or new skill sets.

Individuals who participate in the above opportunities gain personally and
professionally. These opportunities represent The Authority’s bold
commitment to help its employees strive for excellence. The following are
promotional opportunities afforded to:

e Service Maintenance employees (Bus and Rail Operators, Laborers,
Hostlers, and Janitors)

Service Quality Supervisors/Coordinators
District Director

Service Management Schedulers
Telephone Information Operators
Transportation Managers

Customer Service Operators

Trainers

Dispatchers

Claims Manager

Accounting and Payroll Clerks

The Human Resources Department is responsible for the thorough and
timely posting of promotional opportunities via the iRecruitment system.
Moreover, the Division of Training & Employee Development is responsible
for sponsoring and organizing internal and external educational and training

Page 18



opportunities and promoting the Tuition Reimbursement Program, available
to all employees.

The Authority’s efforts toward notifying employees of promotional
opportunities, and increasing employees’ skills and education are done on
an on-going basis. The dates of specific training classes are disseminated in
advance, so employees will have ample opportunity to enroll.

C. EEO-Related Training

In accordance with continual changes in federal and state regulations, and case
law, it is necessary for The Authority to provide annual training to its supervisory
and management staff. In addition, new employees must be aware of the equal
employment opportunity and affirmative action policies and the expectations for
their behavior based on these policies. The Office of Equal Opportunity will
continue to provide training to all new employees through the new employee
orientation process held a minimum of once a month throughout the year.

The Office of Equal Opportunity, Legal and Human Resources Division will also
conduct training for supervisory and management staff. This training will offer a
refresher on equal employment and a review of the EEO Program, as well as
updates on federal or state regulations, law, and relevant internal policies. The
Office of Equal Opportunity will provide additional training on an as needed basis
and/or in response to changes in regulations, court decisions, and when
requested by a department or division.

D. Diversity Initiative

The Senior Manager of OEO, ADA, DEI&B also has oversight of the
Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Belonging (DEI &B) Program. The DEI
Administrator is under the direction of the Senior Manager of OEO. The DEI
Administrator runs the following DEI &B programming:

e Employee Resource Groups (ERGs): voluntary, employee-led groups
whose aim is to foster a diverse, inclusive workplace aligned with the
organizations they serve. The Authority currently has four ERGS:

o Elevating Women Together (EWT): to provide resources,
mentoring and networking connections that support, enrich, and
inspire women to advance professionally and personally.

o Pride: to provide a safe, welcoming, and enriching environment
for members and allies of the LGBTQIA+ community.

o Latinos Unidos: to create a sense of belonging and enhance the
Hispanic/Latino employees through networking, mentoring
opportunities, and professional and personal growth.

o Veterans: to embrace and create a forum for veteran employees
and allies, who will support and encourage each other through
mentoring, career development, outward engagement,
professional growth, and retention.

e DEI Learning Series: Consists of the following classes for all
employees:

e DEI+B 101

Page 19



VIIL

Unconscious Bias
Microaggressions
Privilege

Allyship

Generational Diversity
Neurodiversity
LGBTQ+ 101

Monitoring and Reporting Systems

The Office of Equal Opportunity continuously monitors information regarding
various personnel activities and their impact on both equal employment opportunity
and affirmative action. Specifically, The Authority’s Office of Equal Opportunity
collects data on recruitment efforts, applicant flow, transfers, promotions,
disciplinary actions, terminations, and participation in training programs.

This information, together with other data collected, is used by the Office of Equal
Opportunity to prepare a quarterly report for the Board of Trustees and General
Manager/ CEO and Chief Civil Rights Officer. The report includes detailed
information on the progress made toward attainment of goals, problems identified,
and recommendations for modifications in personnel practices and/or AAP. The
entire AAP is reviewed annually with necessary revisions being made at that time.
Supervisors may recommend modifications in the AAP.

The Office of Equal Opportunity also ensures that recordkeeping systems provide
the required information to government regulatory agencies and the compilation
and timely submission of reports required by such agencies. The Office of Equal
Opportunity maintains an EEO log and weekly report to track EEO complaints.
Each complainant is assigned a case number and folder. The EEO log sheet
includes the name of complainants and respondents, allegations, date complaint
received and disposition of complaint.

Quarterly, the Office of Equal Opportunity reviews the EEO Program’s quantitative
and qualitative effectiveness of the Authority’s outreach efforts to address areas
where the candidate pool may be deficient of qualified female, minorities, veterans,
and applicants with disabilities and advise talent acquisition teams to conduct
additional outreach to community-based organizations focusing on employment of
these classes of individuals.

Semi-annually the Senior Manager and OEO Program Administrator meet with the
CEO and other members of management responsible for making employee-
related decisions, to review EEO regulations, The Authority’s EEO Program, and
restate its commitment to affirmative action. The analysis and monitoring of
progress is discussed during these meetings. Documentation of these meetings is
maintained stating topics covered, and follow-up action items.

The Senior Manager’'s meetings with HR and hiring officials help to review the
problem areas of under-representation and the statistical analyses on the
employment practices. The Senior Manager reviews EEO regulations, The
Authority’s EEO Program, and restates its commitment to affirmative action. In
addition, the Senior Manager ensures processes are in place to review the stated

Page 20



requirements of the position and ensure that these are job-related.

The Authority presents Appendix F, demonstrating the Leadership of the
organization showing the reporting relationships of all directors, department heads
and executives, including names and titles.

The monitoring and reporting process, specifically includes identifying and deploying
data collection and reporting tools that will:

Detect areas and degrees of underrepresentation and underutilization, and
other disparities in all selection processes and indicate the need for
remedial action.

Determine the degree to which the goals and objectives of affirmative action
plans are being met; and

Measure the effectiveness of The Authority’s recruitment efforts.

Summarize statistical data and other relevant information to identify
underrepresentation and underutilization, and other problem areas.

The Authority will modify these action-oriented programs as needed using
available regional labor market data and collected local data to remove
identified barriers, expand employment opportunities, and produce
measurable results.

Page 21



Complaint Procedure

The Authority has established the following procedure for filing a complaint of
harassment, discrimination, or retaliation. Any complaints can be directed to Felicia
Brooks Williams, Senior Manager Office of Equal Opportunity, by email at
fowilliams@gcrta.org or by phone at (216) 356-3094; or Albert Johnson, OEO/ADA
Program Administrator, by email at albert.johnson@gcrta.org or phone at (216) 356-
3038. The Authority treats all aspects of the procedure confidentially to the extent
reasonably possible.

In the processing of a complaint, the Senior Manager of the Office of Equal
Opportunity or his/her representative will:

* Maintain the confidentiality of the complainant to the extent permitted under
the law.

* Analyze the allegations of discrimination to identify conditions or
circumstances that may exist beyond the individual case that require further
investigation.

* Ensure that the complainant is aware of his/her rights at all stages of the
complaint process.

* Make necessary inquiries to seek a resolution of the matter.
* Have access to officials at all levels.

» Discuss with the appropriate official(s) the findings and his/her
recommendations regarding the complaint and make periodic checks as
necessary to assure that any agreed upon corrective action has been taken
or is continuing.

* Process the complaint within a reasonable amount of time after the matter is
brought to his/her attention.

The Senior Manager of the Office of Equal Opportunity is responsible for
implementing the complaint procedure. Management and supervisory personnel
will provide the Senior Manager of the Office of Equal Opportunity, or her
representative, with complete cooperation in investigating and resolving these
formal EEO complaints.

If the complaint brought by the employee does not allege discrimination based on
race, color, religion, sex, national origin or ancestry, age, disability or status as a
Vietnam era veteran, the employee may be referred to the appropriate grievance
procedure as provided in an applicable collective bargaining agreement or as
provided in the Manual. Furthermore, the Office of Equal Opportunity has
implemented a formal in-house mediation program to handle employee disputes
arising out of the course and scope of their employment.

Page 22



Subrecipients and Services

The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (GCRTA) contractors that are
monitored provide transit related services. These contractors provide ADA
Paratransit service. ADA Paratransit service is shared-ride, door-to-door
transportation that is provided to people with disabilities who are unable, or have
limited ability because of their disability, to use fixed-route buses or trains.

The Contractors consist of the following:

Provide-A-Ride
Senior Transportation Connection
GC Logistics

Upon renewal of their contract, May 17, 2023, each of the contractors were
informed of their requirements in accordance with FTA Circular 4704.1A. In
addition, on October 5, 2023, an EEO Compliance meeting was conducted with the
contractors.

Appendix G demonstrates that The Authority informed the contractors of their
obligations of compliance under FTA Circular 4704.1A and shows an excerpt from
the EEOP received from each respective contractor.

Page 23



XI.

Appendices

Appendix A - Utilization Analysis Chart

Job Category Salary Range Total Workforce Male Female
Use EEO-4 {$XX,000-XX,000) Al [ wm MM WF MF w AUAN B HIL A NHOPI | Multi w AUAN B HIL A NHOPI | Multi
1 - Officials & Administrators
Current Workforce $82,000 - $335,000 33 13 7 8 5 13 5 1 1 - - 8 = 5 = =
Percentin Cate AEntry | 39.4% ‘ 21.2% 24.2% ‘ 15.2% 39.4% 0.0% 15.2% 3.0% 3.0% 0.0% 0.0% 24.2% 0.0% 15.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Percent of Avail. 47.4% 0.1% 3.3% 35% 25% 0.0% 0.8% 32.7% 0.1% 4.2% 27% 1.8% 0.0% 0.7%
Percent Underutil 0% 8%
Underutil Y No No No No No No Yes No No No No No No
Number Meeded to Reach Parity - - - 2 - - -
Planned percent increase Year 1 2%
Planned percentincrease Year 2 2%
Planned percentincrease Year 3 2%
Planned percent increase Year 4 2%
2 - Professionals
Current Warkforce $31,000 - $146,000 212 81 49 36 46 81 - 40 5 3 - 1 36 = 40 2 3 = 1
Percentin Category AEntry 38.2% 23.1% 17.0% 21.7% 38.2% 0.0% 18.9% 2.4% 1.4% 0.0% 0.5% 17.0% 0.0% 18.9% 0.9% 1.4% 0.0% 0.5%
Percent of Availability 343% 0.0% 38% 1.2% 32% 0.0% 07% 43.0% 0.1% 8.8% 1.6% 23% 0.0% 0.9%
Percent Underutilized 2% 0% 26% 1% 1% 0%
Underutilized (Yes/Mo) No No No Yes No No Yes No No Yes Yes No No
Number Needed to Reach Parity - - 3 - 55 - 1 1 -
Planned percent increase Year 1 1% 5% 1% 1%
Planned percent increase Year 2 1% 5%
Planned percent increase Year 3 5%
Planned percentincrease Year 4 5%
3 - Technicians
Current Workforce ‘60,000 - $103,000 81 39 27 0 15 39 14 3 2 = 8 - 14 - 1 - -
Percentin Category “Entry 458.1% 33.3% 18.5% 48.1% 0.0% 17.3% 3.7% 2.5% 0.0% 9.9% 0.0% 0.0% 17.3% 0.0% 1.2% 0.0% 0.0%
Percent of Availability 35.7% 0.0% 12.8% 4.0% 17% 0.0% 0.8% 25.3% 0.1% 14.1% 3.3% 1.3% 0.0% 0.7%
0% 25% 3% 0%
No No No No No No Yes No No Yes No No No
to Reach Parity - - - 20 - 2 -
ncrease Year 1 586 1%
5% 1%
5% 1%
Planned percentincrease Year 4 5%
4 - Protective Service
Current Workforce 542,000 - 582,000 96 53 19 5 19 53 10 8 = 1 5 - 18 1 = - =
Percentin Category AENtry 55.2% 19.8% 5.2% 19.8% 55.2% 0.0% 10.4% 8.3% 0.0% 0.0% 1.0% 5.2% 0.0% 18.8% 1.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Percent of Availability 53.1% 0.2% 19.6% 47% 0.5% 0.0% 1.6% 77% 0.0% 11.2% 0.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.9%
Percent Underu d 9% 1% 3%
Underutilized (Yes/No) No Yes No No No No Yes No No No No No No
Number Ne d to Reach Parity - 8 - - 2 - - - - -
Planned percent increase Year 1 2% 1%
Planned percent increase Year 2 2% 1%
Planned percent increase Year 3 2% 1%
Planned percent increase Year 4 2%
5 - Paraprofessional
Current Workforce 0 0 0 0 0 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Percentin Category AEntry 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Percent of Availability 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Percent Underutilized
Underutilized (Yes/No) No No No No No No No No No No No No No
Number N ed to Reach Parity - - - - - - - - -
Planned percent increase Year 1
Planned percent increase Year 2
Planned percent increase Year 3
Planned percent increase Year 4
6 - Administrative Support
Current Workforce $38,000 - $93,000 131 9 33 13 76 9 = 3 2 = = = 13 1 4 = = 2
Percentin Category AENtry 6.9% 25.2% 9.9% 58.0% 6.9% 0.0% 23.7% 1.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 9.9% 0.8% 31% 0.0% 0.0% 15%
Percent of Availability 25.3% 0.0% 6.6% 1.5% 0.7% 0.0% 0.5% 443% 0.1% 2.6% 0.9% 0.0% 11%
Percent Underutiliz 34% 1%
Underutilized (Yes/No) No No No No No No Yes No No No Yes No No
Number Needed to Reach Parity - - - - 45 - - - 1 - -
Planned percent increase Year 1 5% 1%
Planned percent increase Year 2 5%
Planned percent increase Year 3 5%
Planned percent increase Year 4 5%
7 - Skilled Craft
Current Workforce $53,000-5100,000 366 260 102 0 4 260 = 8 1 = 1 - - 2 1 - - 1
Percentin Category ~Entry 71.0% 27.9% 11% 71.0% 0.0% 2.2% 0.3% 0.0% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.5% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.3%
Percent of Availability 68.7% 0.1% 5.5% 1.0% 0.0% 1.2% 52% 0.0% 28% 0.8% 0.7% 0.0% 0.2%
Percent Underutilized 3% 1% 1% 5% 2% 1% 1%
Underutilized (Yes/No) No No Yes Yes No Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes No No
Number Needed to Reach Parity - - 12 - 18 - 8 1
Planned percentincrease Year 1 1% 1% 2% 1% 1% 1%
Planned percentincrease Year 2 2% 1%
Planned percentincrease Y
Planned percentincrease
8 - Service-Maintenance
Current Workforce $33,000 - 889,000 1016 74 543 22 377 T4 1 14 e e 5 22 - 365 B 1 8
Percentin Category ~Entry 7.3% 53.4% 2.2% 371% 7.3% 0.1% 5 1.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.5% 2.2% 0.0% 35.9% 3% 1% 0.0% 0.8%
Percent of Availability 32.1% 0.1% 16.6% 3.9% 0.9% 0.0% 1.3% 247% 0.1% 15.6% 27% 11% 0.0% 0.9%
Percent Underutilized 2% 1% 1% 23% 0% 2% 1% 0%
Underutilized (Yes/No) No No Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes No Yes
Number Needed to Reach Parity - - 25 9 - 8 229 1 - 24 10 1
Planned percentincrease Year 1 1% 1% 1% 5% 1% 1%
percentincrease Year 2 1% 5% 1%
Planned percentincrease Year 3 5%
Planned percentincrease Year 4 5%

Page 24




Appendix B — 2024-2027 Goal Summary

2024 - 2027 Goals

Female
EEO-4 Job Category
w | A/aN [ B | H | A | NHOPI '\j;re w | A/AN | B | H | A | NHOPI '\j;re

Officials & ) ) | ) ) ) 5 ) B ) ) )
Administrators

Professionals - - -l - 3 - - 55 - -1 )1 - -
Technicians - - - | - - - - 20 - -] 2 . -
Protective Service = = 8| - = = = 2 = = = = =
Admin Support - - -] - - - - 45 - - - 1 - -
Skilled Craft = = - 12| 2 = 3 18 = 8|1 2 = =
Service / Maintenance - - -1251| 9 8 229 1 24 | 10 - 1
Grand Total = = 8|37 | 14 = 11 371 1 8128 ]| 14 = 1

Page 25



Appendix C - Previous EEOP Goals and Timetables

11 INumbsar Needad 1o Reach

1z |Planned tincrease Year |
13 JPlanned tinerease Year 2
14 |Planned tIncrease Year 3
[H EESE] tincrease vear 4

24 JUndenmiized

Mumber Needed io Reach
2 | Planned i IncTease Year 1
27 |Planned L INCTE3se Year 2
& |Planned L INCTe3se Year 3
2= |Plarned t Increase Year 4.
31]3 - Techniclans
F5)
33 | Percent In

32 Jundenmiized

Mumber Needed 1o Reach
40 | Plarned tInerease Year 1
41 |Planned percent increase Year 2
42 |Planned L IncTease Year 3
43 |Planned t INCTE3se YEar 4

45 |4 - Protective Service

48 JCumrent Worsforoe

4 |Pementin

44 |Pement of Avalakili
Pecesi Underuiilized

[Meimbnar Mascdied b B ch D

P lanned increase Year 1
Flanned incr=ase Year 2
Pl nad iscrease Year 3
Plarnad increase fear 4
54 |8 - Par, al
" |Cument Wordorce
Bl |Pemestin Categery
&2 |Pemet of Avalakility
| o} il
8 |Planned increase Year 1
P lanned increase Year 2
70 |Planned increase Year 3
Plarned incrase Year 4
73 |E - Administrative Support
[ 72 |Cure ot Wesforee
75 |Pecestin
| 75 JPement of Avalakili

Undensilzed (TesMo]
By

Plarnad increase fear 1
B3 |Planned parcant iscrease Year 2
P lanned increase Year 3
Flanned incr=ase Year 4
=7 |7 - Skllled
&5 | Curment Wondfome:
&2 |Percent In

=0 |Percent of Avalianll

1| Humber Needed 1o Reach

11ofPlanned It Inerease Year 1
11| Pianned tIncrease Year
11z|Planned L Inerease Year 3
112]Planned tIncrease Yeard

1] OH (30%|

(307% - Geauga County,
17| OH {3.343:);Lorain County, OH (3.

“Enl

“Enl

*Enl

11| Motes:Cat 1 - US (50%). PH(E0%); Cat 2 - Cuyahoga

[ =] B F [
k2 20 [ E] 2
34.1% 16.2% 24.5% S5.4%
188 il 43 35 33
ITE% 2205 18.6% 20.7%
&2 £ 20 7 12
524% 24.4% 8.5% 14.5%
109 T4 23 3 (]
B7.5% 21.1% 1.B% B.3%
i o [] o []
138 17 34 13 T
12.3% 24 B L4k 53 6%
37 284 w7 1 k]
T1.5% 27.0% 0.3% 1.3%
1118 108 577 28 A04
4.7% S1.6% 2.5% 36.1%

(3

I7.8%

i3

0.0%

125%

71.5%|

0.7%

1 J K L M N o P @ B 2 T u
ol 108% 27% 27%] 0o 0% 243% 0.0% Sa%| 0o oow|  00% 0.0%
No | Mo Ho No | Mo | Mo No HNo No Ho No No
T E 15% 16%|  00% ERC RE (1A R 11% L D.5%
Ho Ho Ho N Ho Ho Ho No No te
00| 13.3% 245 24% no% s oo  eem|  now 00%  0.0% 0.0%
Ho Ho Ho Ho No Ho Ho Ho No ™
ot 119% 7.3% 0.0% 0.0% 8% 2E%|  0.0%  B.3% 00% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
0.0% 0.0% 00% £.0% 0.0% 0% o] 00wl oo 00% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
| o | wo | me | me | wo ™ Mo | Mo | Mo | Mo | Mo
00% | 232% | 14% 0.0% 0% [ 0% | B00% | 22% 0o% 0.0% 37
No Mo | Wo [ Na | Me | Me Wo | Mo | wo | Mo | Mo | me
00| 25w 10% 03%]  0.0% 0.5%| 0%  00% 05%]  05% 00%| oD% 03w
o Ho ho Ho Mo | Mo Ho | Mo
0%  49.0% 2% 01%]  0.0% 04%| 2% 0%  3edw| 0.3 0%  00% 1.2%]
Ho No. No o No Ho Ho

Courty. OH {30%):Geauga County, OH {2 5%} Lake County, OH (2 5% Loran County, OH
OH {2.34%) Lake Courty, m:azu%:manmm OH (3.33%)-Medina County, OH (3.33%
);MetlnaCnuly

Page 26

(2.5%):Medina County, OH (2.5% ;Surnmit County, maﬁxawmm OH (2.5%):: Cat 3 - Cuyahoga County.
County, OH [3.32%}; Portage County, OH (3.33%):

OH (BI%]

J:Surnmit J; Cat 4 - Cuyahoga County, ) Geauga County, OH (2. 34% Lake County,
2334 Summt County, OH (3.32%} Portage County, OH (3.33%}; Cat 8- Cuyshogs Couny, OH (207%);Geauga County, m:a.m;;uncﬂ.qm:aaﬂu.mmcmq OH (3.33% ) Medina



Appendix D — Employment Practices Chart

Adverse Impact Analysis by Job Category — Hires

1 - Officials & Administrators

Number Applied 162 108 116 55 35 48 7 1 1 4 - - 3 -
Total Hires 7 10 6 10 - - 1 - - - - - - -
Selection Rate 4.3% 9.3% 5.2% 15.2% MN/A NAA 0.0% 0.0% 14.3% /A N/A NIA /A /A N/A NIA
Ratio to Highest Rate 46.7% | 1000% | 284% | 100.0% /A NAA 0.0% 0.0% 78 6% /A NIA NIA MIA MIA NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No! No Mo /A /A T/A M/A /A /A /A MN/A /A
2 - Professionals

Number Applied 1,787 1.682 951 481 3 3 603 892 83 L 87 41 1 3 59 85
Total Hires 73 68 48 38 - - 17 22 5 2 2 2 - - 1 4
Selection Rate 4.1% 4.3% 5.0% 7.9% NIA NIA 2.8% 2.5% 6.0% 2.6% 2.3% /A N/A /A MIA 4.7%
Ratio to Highest Rate 95.0% | 100.0% | 63.9% | 100.0% MN/A NAA 35.7% 31.2% 76.3% 32.9% | 291% NIA /A /A N/A 59.6%
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No No No No /A MAA NIA /A MNIA MNIA

Number Applied 287 175 138 42 1 - 124 119 13 4 2 1 1 [ 9
Total Hires 18 ] 13 2 - - 3 5 2 - - 1 - - - -
Selection Rate 6.3% 4.6% 9.4% 4.8% /A NAA 2.4% 4.2% 15.4% /A NA NIA /A MIA NA NIA
Ratio to Highest Rate 100.0% | 72.9% | 61.2% [ 31.0% NIA NIA 15.7% | 27.3% | 100.0% | MN/A WA /A NIA NIA WA YA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No| No /A MNAA Mo /A MN/A NIA /A /A MAA MNIA

4 - Protective Service

Number Applied 534 376 197 37 1 - 363 304 47 [ 5 3 2 - 19 26
Total Hires 27 15 13 2 - - El 12 5 1 - - - - 1 -
Selection Rate 4.3% 4.0% 6.6% 5.4% N/A MAA 2.2% 39% | 10.6% NIA /A YA /A /A MAA 0.0%
Ratio to Highest Rate 100.0% [ 93.7% 62.0% 50.8% /A NAA 20.7% 37.1% | 100.0% /A NA NIA /A MIA NA 0.0%

Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No No MNo /A MIA Mo PMIA M/A N/A /A MIA M/A

5 - Paraprofessional
Number Applied - - - = = = S = = — — - _ — — -

Total Hires B _ - B = = = > > = - - - - - -
Selection Rate MAA MIA HIA /A MIA MIA hIA /A WIEN A NIA NIA /A MAA NIA NIA
Ratio to Highest Rate MAA NIA WA /A N/A NIA M/A /A N/A MAA WA N/A N/A MN/A WA N/A

Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)|  M/A MIA /A /A /A MNIA /A /A /A MN/A M/A TN/A T/A /A M/A /A
6 - Administrative Support

Number Applied 500 1,260 109 192 2 2 323 954 33 55 5 5 2 2 26 40
Total Hires 11 27 4 10 - - [ 15 1 2 - - - - - -
Selection Rate 2.2% 2.2% 3.7% 5.2% N/A NIA 1.9% 1.6% N/A 3.6% WA N/A N/A MN/A WA 0.0%
Ratio to Highest Rate 100.0% | 98.2% | 70.5% | 100.0% /A MAA 35.7% | 30.2% WIEN 69.8% hiA /A WIEN A hiA 0.0%
Potential Adverse Imﬁact i:esto: No MNo - Mo /A MNIA _ /A - M/A N/A /A MIA M/A -
[7-Skilled Craft_ | e |
Number Applied 1.388 133 537 9 2 - 732 113 73 3 9 - - 2 35 b
Total Hires 72 1 51 - - - 16 1 5 - - - - - - -
Selection Rate 5.2% 0.8% 9.5% /A WIEN TAA 2.2% 0.9% 6.8% N/A /A WIEN TAA MAA 0.0% hAA
Ratio to Highest Rate 100.0% | 14.5% | 100.0% /A N/A MAA 23.0% 9.3% 72.1% N/A /A N/A MAA MNIA 0.0% MIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo Mo /A /A /A MNIA /A /A /A MIA MNA

8 -Sel

MNumber Applied 4983 3,403 567 139 25 8] 4.099 3,049 134 42 8 8 ] 4 142 153
Total Hires 441 396 44 19 3 2 375 358 11 3 1 1 1 - 6 13
Selection Rate 8.9% 11.6% 7.8% /A N/A MAA 9.1% 11.7% M/A N/A /A N/A MAA NIA WA WA
Ratio to Highest Rate 76.1% | 100.0% | 66.1% /A (WIEN TAA 77.9% | 100.0% M/A N/A /A (WIEN TAA MNAA M/A MA

Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo /A WIEN IA No M/A NIA N/A IR NAA M/A MN/A M/A
Notes: [Number Applied] EEQ-4 Category 1: 2 Males and 2 F les did not disclose their race; Category 2: 41 Males and 30 Females did not disclose their race; Category 3: 3 Males and 1

Female did not disclose their race; Category 4: 5 Males and 2 Females did not disclose their race; Category 6: 9 Males and 18 Females did not disclose their race; Category 7: 17 Males and
& Females did not disclose their race. Category 8: 69 Males and 26 Females did not disclose their race. [Total Hired] EEO-4 Category 3: 1 Male did not disclose their race; Category 8: 1
Male did not disclose their race.

Persons with Disabilities

Number Applied -
Total Hires - 1 - - - = = 1 = - - - - - - -
Selection Rate

Veterans

Number Applied 9 - 1 - - - 8 - - = = = - - - -
Total Hires 19 3 1 - - - 16 3 1 - - = - - 1 -
Selection Rate 211.1% MN/A 100.0% N/A /A M/A | 200.0% N/A MN/A N/A N/A /A /A N/A MN/A MN/A

Page 27



Adverse Impact Analysis by Job Category — Promotions

1 - Officials & Administrators

MNumber Applied 16 9 4 4 - " 5 1 - - - - - - -
Total Promotions 7 2 3 1 - 3 1 1 - - -

Selection Rate 43.8% | 22.2% 75.0% | 25.0% INIA NIA 27.3% | 20.0% | 100.0% NIA /A NIA /A NIA /A NIA
Ratio to Highest Rate 100.0% | 50.8% [ 75.0% | 25.0% N/A NIA 27.3% [ 20.0% | 100.0% NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA
Potential Adverse Imﬁact ;esINoi No _ N/A /A - No N/A M/A N/A M/A N/A M/A /A

2 - Professionals

Number Applied 213 167 82 16 - - 114 138 7 2 4 2 - - 6 9
Total Promotions 61 34 37 16 - - 19 16 1 4 1 - - - 1
Selection Rate 28.6% | 204% | 451% | 100.0% N/A NIA 16.7% | 11.6% N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A 11.1%
Ratio to Highest Rate 100.0% | 71.1% [ 451% | 100.0% /A N/A 16.7% | 11.6% /A N/A M/A N/A M/A N/A M/A 11.1%
Potential Adverse Imﬁact ;esINoi Nog - No MIA /A - MN/A /A MN/A /A MN/A /A /A -
3 - Technicians

MNumber Applied q2 52 29 2 - - 59 44 3 2 - - - 1 4
Total Promotions 19 8 10 2 - - 8 [ 1 - - - -
Selection Rate 20.7% | 154% | 34.5% MNIA /A MNIA 13.6% | 13.6% | 33.3% MNIA M/A MNIA M/A MNIA M/A 0.0%
Ratio to Highest Rate 100.0% | 74.5% [ 100.0% N/A MN/A N/A 39.3% | 395% | 96.7% N/A MN/A N/A MN/A N/A MN/A 0.0%

4 - Protective Service

MNumber Applied 53 33 2 1 - - 47 30 T - - 1 - 2 1
Total Promotions [ 10 1 [ - - 4 4 1 - - - - - - -
Selection Rate 10.3% | 30.3% | 50.0% N/A /A N/A 8.5% 13.3% | 14.3% N/A M/A N/A M/A N/A 0.0% N/A
Ratio to Highest Rate 34 1% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA MNIA NIA 170% | 267% | 286% NIA /A NIA /A NIA 0.0% NIA

Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo Mo MNo N/A [N/A N/A N/A /A /A /A /A /A

5 - Paraprofessional
MNumber Applied B - - - B = B = = = = = - = - -
Total Promotions

Selection Rate MN/A N/A MN/A N/A MN/A N/A MN/A N/A MN/A N/A I N/A I N/A I N/A
Ratio to Highest Rate N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo MN/A N/A MN/A N/A

6 - Administrative Support

Number Applied 5 8
Total Promotions 10 33 5 - - 10 24 - - - - - - - 4
Selection Rate 6.4% 10.6% 0.0% 27.8% N/A NIA 7.7% 8.8% N/A 0.0% /A /A /A /A /A /A
Ratio to Highest Rate 60.2% | 100.0% | 0.0% [100.0% N/A NIA 27.7% [ 31.8% N/A 0.0% N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA

Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No MAA /A MAA /A
7 - Skilled Craft

Number Applied 33 - 31 - - - - 13 -
Total Promotions 101 53 16 [ B - 73 [13 3 - 1 B - B 3 2
Selection Rate 210% | 1909% | 94% /A AA A 276% | 177 4% | 200% /A /A A MIA N/A 231% MIA
Ratio to Highest Rate 11.0% [ 100.0% /A /A MAA 100.0% /A /A /A /A /A 13.0% MAA

Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No! No /A Mo M/A /A /A
8 -Service-Maint

Number Applied 445 340 52 - 374 35 10 2 1 - - [ 14
Total Promotions B4 3 38 - 22 1 3 1 - - - 1 1
Selection Rate 14.4% 0.9% 73.1% N/A MNAA NAA 5.9% 0.3% MNAA N/A N/A MNAA N/A N/A MNAA NAA
Ratio to Highest Rate 100.0% | 61% | 100.0% /A I MIA 8.0% 0.4% /A /A /A /A MiA /A I MIA

Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No Mo Mo /A MNAA MNIA [/A NIA /A A /A /A /A /A

Notes: [Number Applied] EEO-4 Category 2: 8 Females and 6 Males did not disclose their race; Category 4: 1 Male did not disclose their race; Category 6: 6 Females and 8 Males did not
disclose their race; Category /: 4 Males and 8 Females did not disclose their race; Category 8: 19 Males and 6 Females did not disclose their race, [Total Promoted] EEQ-4 Category 2: 12
Males and 12 F les did not disclose their race; Category 3: 3 Males and 2 F les did not disclose their race; Category 6: 6 Males and 2 Females did not disclose their race; Category T:
29 Males and 29 Females did not disclose their race: Category 8: 7 Males did not disclose their race.

Persons with Disabilities

Number Applied - 1 - - - - - 1 - = = = - - - -
Total Promotions 13 2 2 - - = 10 2 > > - - - - 9 ~
Selection Rate NA | 200.0% A /A A A N/A | 200.0% TIA /A /A A /A /A A A
Number Applied 9 - 1 - - - 8 = B = = S - - - -
Total Promotions 26 4 13 1 - B 13 3 > > n - - - - ~
Selection Rate 288.9% MAA - 11300.0% [ N/A /A /A 162.6% /A TIA /A N/A [/A /A N/A /A /A

Page 28



Adverse Impact Analysis by Job Category — Training

1 - Officials & Administrators

Total Workforce 43 24 29 16 10 8 2 2

Total Trained 23 ikl 16 8 5] 3 1 1 - - - -
Training Rate 535% | 458% | 552% | 50.0% N/A N/A 50.0% | 37.5% | 50.0% N/A 50.0% MNAA NIA N/A N/A /A
Ratio to Highest Rate 100.0% | 85.7% | 100.0% | 90.6% NIA 90.6% | 68.0% [ 90.6% 90.6% MN/A NIA NIA N/A M/A
2 - Professionals

Total Workforce 300 203 193 66 - 85 b - - 4 b
Total Trained 170 121 112 A0 - - 45 58 [ 5 4 3 - - 3 5
Training Rate E6.7% | 59.6% | 58.0% | 58.1% N/A N/A £2.9% | 59.2% | 54.5% N/A N/A N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A
Ratio to Highest Rate 951% | 100.0% | 98.1% | 98.2% N/A N/A 89.5% | 100.0% [ 92.2% N/A N/A MNAA NIA N/A N/A /A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No) Mo Mo No Mo N/A MN/A MN/A N/A N/A MIA
3 - Technicians

Total Workforce 132 53 84 16 4 2 - - 1 -
Total Trained 74 30 45 [ - - 22 21 4 2 1 - - 1

Training Rate 56.1% | 56.6% | 536% | 50.0% N/A N/A 61.1% | 60.0% [ 57.1% N/A 50.0% MN/A NIA N/A N/A MN/A
Ratio to Highest Rate 99.0% | 100.0% | 87.7% | 81.8% N/A N/A 100.0% | 98.2% | 93.5% N/A 81.8% MN/A NIA N/A N/A MN/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No Mo No No Mo N/A T/A No Mo Mo N/A No MNAA MN/A N/A N/A MNAA
4 - Protective Service

Total Workforce 140 43 98 i - - 22 33 18 2 - - - - 2 -
Total Trained ) 19 45 3 - - 12 15 10 1 - - - - 1

Training Rate 486% | 442% | 45.9% 37.58% NI/A /A 54 6% | 45.5% 55.6% N/A MN/A MIA INIA NI/A /A /A
Ratio to Highest Rate 100.0% | 91.0% 82.7% 67.5% NI/A /A 98.2% §1.8% | 100.0% N/A MN/A MIA INIA NI/A /A /A

Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No) Mo Mo MNo N/A /A No No Mo /A /A MIA /A N/A /A MIA

5 - Paraprofessional
Total Workforce _ B = = = - - - - - - -
Total Trained _ B = = = - - - - - - -

Training Rate N/A N/A N/A NIA /A /A MAA MIA /A N/A TAA MIA MAA /A /A MAA
Ratio to Highest Rate N/A TAA MIA MAA /A /A MAA MIA /A N/A TAA MIA MAA /A /A MAA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)|  N/A T/A NAA MIA N/A N/A A A /A IN/A T/A A M/A TN/A /A A

6 - Administrative Support

Total Workforce 97 185 23 26 - 2 70 144 4 0] - - - - - 4
Total Trained 55 95 14 13 1 50 75 2 5 - - - - 2
Training Rate 56.7% | 519% | 609% | 500% /A /A 557% | 521% /A 55.6% MAA MIA M /A /A MAA
Ratio to Highest Rate 100.0% | 915% [ 1000% | 82.1% /A /A 915% | 856% /A 91.3% TAA MIA MAA /A /A MAA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo, Mo Mo No Mo N/A /A No Mo N/A Mo TN/A TA MNIA N/A [N/A TNIA

7 - Skilled Craft

Total Workforce 803 g 573 - - - 207 5 19 2 2 - - - 2 2
Total Trained 441 5 313 - - 115 B il 1 1 - - 1 1
Training Rate 54.9% | 55.6% | 54.6% MAA /A N/A 55.6% /A 57.9% /A MA MN/A /A MA /A /A
Ratio to Highest Rate 98.9% | 100.0% | 94.4% MIA MIA N/A 96.0% MIA 100.0% NAA MNA N/A NAA MNA M/A NSA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No) No MNo Mo MIA NIA N/A No M/A Mo N/A MIA N/A N/A MNIA /A N/A

8 -Service-Mai e

Total Workforce 1.607 1,091 190 EE] 4 1 1,361 995 35 [i] 2 2 1 - 14 32
Total Trained 990 692 116 E] B 1 838 630 21 a 2 1 1 - 9 24
Training Rate 61.6% | 63.4% | 61.1% MAA MAA /A 61.6% | 63.3% /A A MIA /A A MIA /A /A
Ratio to Highest Rate 97.1% | 100.0% | 96.4% MAA MAA /A 97.2% | 100.0% /A /A A /A /A MIA /A /A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No) No Mo Mo A MNIA N/A No Mo /A /A A /A /A A /A /A

Notes: EEO-4 Category 1: 1 male and 4 females did not disclose their race; Category 2: 5 males and 12 females did not diclose their race, and 8 employees did not disclose either;
Category J: 1 male and 1 female did not disclose their race; Category 6: 2 males and 5 females did not disclose their race; Category 7: 3 males did not disclose their race; Category 8: 23
males and 7 females did not disclose their race.

Page 29



Adverse Impact Analysis by Job Category — Discipline

| Total | w | AUAN B | HIL | A | NHOPI | M \
Job Category (Use FEOA)  —pr i reciiel ™m | F | m | F | ™M | F | ™ | F | m | F | m | F [ W | F |
1 - Officials & Administrators
Total Workforce 43 24 29 16 10 8 2 - 2 - - - - -
Decision Making Leave 1 - 1 = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 2.3% 0.0% 3.4% 0.0% NIA NIA 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% WIA 0.0% N/A NIA NIA NIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% |100.0% | 0.0% [ 100.0% NIA NIA 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% WIA 100.0% N/A NIA NIA NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo)|  No No No Mo MNIA MIA Mo Mo Mo MIA Mo NAA MIA NIA MNIA MNIA
<Enter Discipline Type= - - = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% /A /A 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% W/A 0.0% N/A /A /A, /A /A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA /A 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% WIA 100.0% N/A NIA NIA /A NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo)|  No No No Mo MNIA MNIA Mo Mo Mo NIA Mo NAA MNAA MNAA MNIA MNIA
<Enter Discipline Type> - - = = = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NIA /A 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% WIA 0.0% N/A NIA /A NIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA /A 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% W/A 100.0% N/A N/A /A /A NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo)|  No No No Mo MNIA MIA Mo Mo Mo MIA Mo NAA MIA NIA MNIA MNIA
<Enter Discipline Type= - - = = = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 00% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NIA A 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% WA 0.0% /A NIA NIA NIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% /A /A 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% W/A 100.0% N/A /A /A, /A /A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo)|  No No No Mo MNIA MNIA Mo Mo Mo NIA Mo NAA MNAA NAA NIA MNIA
<Enter Discipline Type> - - = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NIA NIA 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% W/A 0.0% N/A NIA NIA NIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA /A 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% WIA 100.0% N/A NIA /A NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)|  No No No No MNIA MNIA MNo MNo MNo /A Mo N/A MN/A N/A MNIA MNIA
<Enter Discipline Type= - - = = = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NIA NIA 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% WIA 0.0% N/A NIA NIA NIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA NIA 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% WA 100.0% /A NIA NIA NIA NIA

Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No No Mo Mo Mo

2 - Professionals

Total Workforce 300 203 193 86 = = 85 98 1 7 7 6 - - 4 6
First Written Remind 2 3 2 1 - - 2 - - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 0.7% 1.5% 1.0% 1.2% N/A /A 0.0% 2.0% 0.0% /A /A NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 451% 0.0% 0.0% N/A /A 100.0% | 0.0% | 100.0% /A /A NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo)|  No Mo Mo Mo MIA MIA Mo Mo Mo MIA MIA MIA MIA MIA MIA MIA
Second Written Remind 2 - 2 = = = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.7% 0.0% 1.0% 0.0% /A /A 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% /A /A /A /A /A /A /A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% |100.0% | 0.0% | 100.0% /A /A 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% /A /A /A /A /A /A /A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo)|  No o Io Io NIA NIA Mo Mo Mo NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Decision Making Leave - 1 1 = = = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.5% 0.0% 1.2% N/A N/A 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% N/A N/A /A /A /A /A /A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 0.0% | 100.0% | 0.0% N/A N/A 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% N/A N/A NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)|  No Mo Mo Mo MIA MIA Mo Mo Mo MIA MIA MIA MIA MIA MIA MIA
<Enter Discipline Type> - - = = = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% /A /A 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% /A /A /A /A /A /A /A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% N/A N/A 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% N/A N/A NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo)[  No Io Io Io MNIA MIA Io Io Io MIA MIA MIA MIA MIA MIA MIA
<Enter Discipline Type= - - = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% N/A N/A 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% N/A N/A NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% [ 100.0% N/A N/A 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% N/A N/A NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo)|  No Mo Mo Mo MIA MIA Mo Mo Mo MIA MIA MIA MIA MIA MIA MIA
<Enter Discipline Type> - - = = = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% /A /A 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% /A /A NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% /A /A 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% /A /A /A /A /A /A /A

Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No MNo Mo Mo

3 - Technicians

Total Workforce 132 53 84 16 - - 36 35 7 - 4 2 - - 1 -
First Written Reminder 8 6 2 - 4 6 1 - 1 - - - - -
Discipline Rate 2.7% 3.0% 2.4% 0.0% NIA NIA 111% | 17.1% | 14.3% NIA 25.0% NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 90.2% 0.0% |100.0% NIA NIA 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NIA 0.0% NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)| Mo No Mo Mo NIA NIA Mo Mo Mo NIA Yes MIA NIA NIA NIA MIA
Second Written Remind 4 3 2 = = 2 3 - - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 1.3% 1.5% 2.4% 0.0% NIA NIA 5.6% 8.6% 0.0% NIA 0.0% NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 90.2% 0.0% | 100.0% /A /A 0.0% 0.0% | 100.0% /A 100.0% /A /A /A NIA /A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)|  No No lo INo NIA NAA lo INo Io NAA lo NIA NIA NAA NIA NIA
Discharge 1 1 1 - - - 1 - - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 0.3% 0.6% 1.2% 0.0% N/A NIA 0.0% 2.9% 0.0% NIA 0.0% /A N/A NIA NIA /A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 67.7% 0.0% | 100.0% N/A N/A 100.0% | 0.0% | 100.0% N/A 100.0% NIA N/A N/A NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)|  No No Mo Mo NIA MIA Mo Mo Mo MIA Mo MIA NIA MIA MNIA MIA
Decision Making Leave 1 - - - 1 - - - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% /A N/A 2.5% 0.0% 0.0% N/A 0.0% /A /A N/A /A /A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA NIA 0.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA 100.0% NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)|  No No Mo Mo NA MNAA Mo Mo Mo MNAA Mo MNIA NA MNAA NIA MNIA
<Enter Discipline Type> - - = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NIA NIA 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NIA 0.0% NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% N/A NIA 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA 100.0% NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo)] Mo No Mo Mo NIA IA Mo Mo o MIA Mo /A NIA MIA IA /A
<Enter Discipline Type> - - = = = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% N/A NIA 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NIA 0.0% NIA N/A NIA NIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA NIA 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA 100.0% NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)|  No No Mo Mo NA MNAA Mo Mo Mo MNAA Mo MIA NA MNAA MNIA MIA

Page 30



4 - Protective Service
22

Total Workforce 140 43 98 8 - - 33 18 2 - - - - 2 -
First Written Remind 6 4 5 = 1 4 - - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 4.3% 9.3% 5.1% 0.0% NIA MNAA 4.6% 12.1% 0.0% MNA NA MNIA MNAA MNA NA N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 46.1% 0.0% | 100.0% MIA A 0.0% 0.0% | 100.0% MIA NAA MIA MA MIA NAA MA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)] Mo MNo No Mo MNIA A Mo Mo Mo A /A MNIA A MIA N/A MIA
Second Written Reminder 1 1 1 = - - 1 - - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 0.7% 2.3% 1.0% 0.0% NIA MNIA 0.0% 3.0% 0.0% MNIA /A NIA MNIA MNIA /A MN/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 30.7% 0.0% | 100.0% MIA MIA 100.0% | 00% | 100.0% MIA /A MIA MIA MIA A M/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)] Mo Mo No Mo MNIA A Mo Mo Mo TIA A NIA A A N/A TIA
Discharge 1 - 1 = = = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.7% 0.0% 1.0% 0.0% NIA MNIA 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NAA NA NIA MNIA MNA NA MN/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% | 100.0% | 0.0% | 100.0% MIA MIA 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA A MIA MIA NIA NIA MIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)] Mo MNo No Mo NIA A Mo Mo Mo A /A NIA A MNIA N/A /A
Decision Making Leave 3 1 = = 2 1 1 - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 2.1% 2.3% 0.0% 0.0% NIA MNIA 9.1% 3.0% 5.6% MNAA N/A NIA MNIA MNAA NA MNIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 92.1% [ 100.0% | 100.0% NIA MNIA 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% MNIA /A NIA MNIA MNIA /A MN/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)] Mo MNo No Mo NIA A Mo Mo MNo A /A NIA A MNIA NIA A
Discharged/Brought Back 1 - = = = = = = = = 1 -
Discipline Rate 0.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NIA MNIA 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% MNIA N/A NIA MNIA MNIA N/A MNIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% | 100.0% [ 100.0% | 100.0% NIA MNIA 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NAA NA NIA MNIA MNA NA MN/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)|  No Mo No Mo MIA MIA Mo Mo Mo NIA NIA MIA MIA NIA NIA MIA
Suspension 2 - 1 - - - - - - - - - - 1 -
Discipline Rate 1.4% 0.0% 1.0% 0.0% NIA NIA 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NAA N/A NIA MNIA NAA NA MN/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% | 100.0% | 0.0% | 100.0% NIA MNIA 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% MNAA N/A NIA MNIA MNAA NA MNIA

Potential Adverse Impact

6 - Administrative Support

Tatal Workforce 97 185 23 26 - 2 70 144 4 9 - - - - - 4
First Written Reminder 16 17 1 - 12 16 3 - - - - - - 1
Discipline Rate 16.5% 9.2% 4.3% 0.0% NIA NIA 17.1% | 11.1% NIA 0.0% NIA NIA NIA NIA MIA NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 55.7% | 100.0% | 0.0% |[100.0% NIA NIA 0.0% 0.0% WA 100.0% NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo) No Mo Mo Mo A IA Mo Mo MiA Mo MIA LA /A MIA MIA A
Second Written Remind 4 3 1 - - 3 [ 1 1 - = - - - -
Discipline Rate 41% 4.3% 0.0% 3.8% NIA N/A 4.3% 4.2% WA 11.1% N/A NIA N/A N/A M/A NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 954% | 100.0% | 0.0% NIA /A 0.0% 0.0% WA 0.0% /A NIA N/A /A N/A NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo)|  No Mo Mo Mo NIA MIA No Mo hIA Mo MIA NIA NIA NIA MIA NIA
Discharge 1 2 1 - - - 2 - - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 1.0% 1.1% 4.3% 0.0% NIA N/A 0.0% 1.4% WA 0.0% N/A NIA N/A N/A M/A NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 95.4% 0.0% | 100.0% NIA /A 100.0% | 0.0% WA 100.0% /A NIA N/A /A N/A NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo)|  No Mo Mo Mo NIA MIA No Mo hIA Mo MIA NIA NIA NIA MIA NIA
Decision Making Leave 2 2 = = 1 2 1 - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 21% 1.1% 0.0% 0.0% NIA NIA 1.4% 1.4% WA 0.0% NIA NIA NIA NIA M/A NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 52.4% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA /A 0.0% 0.0% WA 100.0% /A NIA N/A /A N/A NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo)|  No No Mo Mo MNIA MIA No Mo MIA Mo MNIA MNA N/A NA NIA MNIA
Discharged/Brought Back - 1 = 1 - - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.5% 0.0% 0.0% NIA NIA 0.0% 0.7% WA 0.0% NIA NIA NIA NIA M/A NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 0.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA /A 100.0% | 0.0% WA 100.0% /A NIA N/A /A N/A NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo)|  No No Mo Mo MNIA MIA No Mo MIA Mo MNIA MNA N/A NA NIA MNIA
<Enter Discipline Type> - - = = = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% NIA NIA 0.0% 0.0% WA 0.0% NIA NIA NIA NIA M/A NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% NIA /A 100.0% | 100.0% WA 100.0% /A NIA N/A /A N/A NIA

Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo

7 - Skilled Craft

Mo

Total Workforce 803 9 573 - - - 207 5 19 2 2 - - - 2 2
First Written Reminder 70 3 35 - 33 1 2 1 - = = - - 1
Discipline Rate 8. 7% 33.3% 6.1% /A N/A /A 15.9% /A 10.5% MN/A /A MN/A MIA MN/A MIA MN/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 26.2% | 100.0% MN/A /A MN/A 38.3% MN/A 58.0% N/A NIA MN/A NIA MN/A NIA MN/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)|  No Yes No MNIA N/A MNIA Mo MNIA Mo MNAA N/A MNIA N/A MNIA NIA MNIA
Second Written Reminder 19 - 11 - - 8 - - - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 24% 0.0% 1.9% MN/A /A MN/A 3.9% MN/A 0.0% N/A N/A N/A MIA N/A MIA N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% | 1000% | 0.0% MN/A /A MN/A 0.0% MN/A 100.0% MN/A N/A MN/A MIA MN/A MIA MN/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo)| Mo MNo Mo A /A A Mo A Mo TNIA NIA A INIA A NIA A
Discharge 11 - 7 - - 4 - - - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 1.4% 0.0% 1.2% MN/A N/A MN/A 1.9% MN/A 0.0% MN/A N/A MN/A N/A MN/A NIA MN/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% |100.0% | 0.0% MN/A N/A MN/A 0.0% MN/A 100.0% MN/A N/A MN/A N/A MN/A N/A MN/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)|  No Mo No MIA /A MIA Mo MIA Mo MNA N/A MNA MIA MNA MIA MNA
Decision Making Leave 3 - 1 - - 1 - 1 - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 0.4% 0.0% 0.2% MN/A /A MN/A 0.5% MN/A 5.3% MN/A NIA MN/A MNIA MN/A NIA MN/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% MN/A /A MN/A 36.1% MN/A 3.3% MN/A N/A MN/A NIA MN/A NIA MN/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No)|  No o Mo NIA N/A NIA INo NIA INo NAA N/A NA MNIA NA MNIA NA
Suspension 4 - 3 1 - - - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 0.5% 0.0% 0.5% MN/A N/A MN/A 0.5% MN/A 0.0% N/A N/A N/A /A N/A /A N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% | 100.0% | 0.0% MN/A /A MN/A 0.0% MN/A 100.0% N/A N/A N/A MIA N/A MIA N/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo)|  No MNo Mo A INAA A Mo A Mo A NIA A NIA A NIA A
<Enter Discipline Type> - - = = = = = = = = = = = =
Discipline Rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% MN/A N/A MN/A 0.0% MN/A 0.0% MN/A NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 100.0% | 100.0% MN/A N/A MN/A 100.0% MN/A 100.0% MN/A N/A MN/A N/A MN/A NIA MN/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo No Mo No MNIA N/A MNIA Mo MNIA Mo MNIA N/A MNAA N/A MNAA NIA MNAA

Page 31




8 -Service-Mai e

employees did not disclose their race or sex.

Adverse Impact Analysis by Job Category - Terminations

Total Workforce 1,607 1.091 190 583 4 1 1,361 995 35 8 1 - 14 32
First Written Remind 686 430 81 " = 590 396 9 1 2 2 - - 4 20
Discipline Rate 427% | 39.4% | 42.6% NIA NIA NIA 43.4% | 39.8% NIA /A NIA N/A N/A NIA /A N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 92.3% | 100.0% | 93.4% NIA NIA /A 91.8% | 100.0% NIA /A N/A /A NIA NIA N/A N/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo)|  No MNo No MNIA NIA N/A MNo No MN/A MN/A MN/A MNAA N/A MNIA MN/A N/A
Second Written Remind 155 106 26 2 = = 126 101 2 - 1 1 - - - 2
Discipline Rate 9.6% 9.7% 13.7% /A NIA NIA 9.3% 10.2% NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A /A N/A N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 99.3% [ 67.7% NIA NIA NIA 100.0% | 91.2% NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA NIA N/A NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo)|  No Mo Mo MIA MIA NIA Mo Mo MNIA MIA NIA MIA NIA MNIA MIA NAA
] ti 1 - = - 1 - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% NIA NIA NIA 0.1% 0.0% NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA NIA N/A NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% |100.0% | 100.0% NIA NIA NIA 0.0% | 100.0% NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA NIA N/A NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo)|  No Mo Mo MIA MIA NIA Mo Mo MNIA MIA NIA MIA NIA MNIA MIA NAA
CDL Suspensi 2 - = - 2 - - - - - - - - -
Discipline Rate 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% NIA NIA NIA 0.1% 0.0% NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA NIA N/A NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% |100.0% | 100.0% NIA NIA NIA 0.0% | 100.0% NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA NIA N/A NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo)|  No Mo Mo NIA NIA NIA Mo Mo MN/A MIA NIA MIA NIA NIA MNIA NIA
Discharge 86 78 83 i3 1 = = = - - 2 5
Discipline Rate 5.4% 7.1% 0.0% NIA MIA A 6.1% 7.3% NIA /A NIA /A /A NIA /A NIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 74.9% | 100.0% NIA MIA A 0.0% 0.0% NIA /A NIA /A /A NIA /A NIA
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/Mo)|  No Mo Mo MIA MIA NIA Mo Mo NIA MIA NIA MIA NIA NIA MIA NIA
Decision Making Leave 50 38 - - 50 37 - - - - - - - 1
Discipline Rate 3.1% 3.6% 0.0% /A MIA /A, 3.7% 3.7% /A /A /A, /A /A /A /A /A,
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 89.3% | 100.0% /A MIA /A, 0.0% 0.0% /A /A /A, /A /A /A /A /A,
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/MNo No Mo No MNIA NIA NAA Mo Mo MNIA MNIA MNAA MNIA NAA MNIA MNIA N/A

Motes: EEQ-4 Category 8: Discharged/Brought Back: 8 BM, 9 BF; Suspension: 1 WM, 19 BM, 6 BF, 1 AM, 2MF. Category 7: 2 employees did not disclose their race or sex; Category 8: 30

| Total

AlIAN

Job Category (Use EEO-4)

1 - Officials & Administrators

Total Workforce 43 24 29 16 10 8 2 - 2 - - - - -
Total Involuntary Terminations 1 2 1 = 1 1 = = = = = = =
Involuntary Termination Rate 2.3% 8.3% 0.0% 6.3% MNIA N/A 0.0% 12.5% 50.0% MNAA 0.0% NiA MNIA N/A NIA N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 27.9% 100.0% 0.0% MNIA N/A 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% MAA 100.0% NiA MNIA N/A NiA N/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No) No No No No N/A N/A Mo No Yes N/A No N/A NIA N/A NIA MN/A

2 - Professionals
98

Total Workforce 300 203 193 86 = = 85 11 7 7 3 = = a 6
Total Involuntary Terminations 23 10 13 5] 6 1 2 1 2 1 - - - 2
Involuntary Termination Rate T.7% 4.9% B6.7% 5.8% NIA N/A 71% 1.0% 18.2% MAA N/A MNIA NIA N/A MNIA N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 64.3% 100.0% 15.1% 17.6% MNIA N/A 14.5% 100.0% 9.6% MNAA N/A NiA MNIA N/A NIA N/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No) No No No Mo N/A /A Mo No No N/A /A M/A /A MN/A N/A MN/A

Total Workforce 132 53 84 16 - - 36 35 T - 4 2 - - 1 -
Total Involuntary Terminations 3 - B - - - - - - - - - -
Involuntary Termination Rate 23% 0.0% 3.6% 0.0% h/A N/A 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% N/A 0.0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% MNIA N/A 100.0% | 100.0% [ 100.0% MAA 100.0% MNIA MNIA N/A MNIA N/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No) No No NO No N/A, /A Mo NO No N/A No MN/A N/A N/A N/A MN/A

4 - Protective Service

Total Workforce

Total Workforce 140 43 98 8 = = 22 33 18 2 = = = = 2 =
Total Involuntary Terminations 4 2 1 2 2 - - - - - - 1 -
Involuntary Termination Rate 29% 4.7% 1.0% 0.0% NIA N/A 91% 6.1% 0.0% MIA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 61.4% 0.0% 100.0% MNIA N/A 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% MIA N/A MNiA MNIA N/A MNIA N/A
Poiential Adverse Impact (Yes/No) No No NO No NIA N/A No NO No NAA N/A N/A MN/A N/A N/A /A

5 - Paraprofessional

Total Involuntary Terminations

Page 32

Involuntary Termination Rate M/A NAA MN/A MN/A /A MN/A N/A MN/A MN/A N/A MN/A MN/A /A N/A NIA N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate N/A NAA N/A N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A N/A NAA N/A N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No) N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A




Total Workforce a7 185 23 26 - 2 70 144 4 9 - - - - - 4
Total Involuntary Terminations 7 2 2 4 2 1 - - - - - - -
Involuntary Termination Rate T2% 11% 8.7% 0.0% N/A NIA 57% 1.4% NIA 0.0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 15.0% | 100.0% | 0.0% | 100.0% N/A N/A 0.0% 0.0% N/A 100.0% NIA N/A NIA NIA N/A N/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No) No No No No N/A /A No No /A No N/A MN/A N/A NIA MN/A N/A

7 - Skilled Craft

Total Workforce 803 a 573 - - - 207 5 19 2 2 - - - 2

Total Involuntary Terminations 15 - 9 5 - 1 - - - - - - -
Involuntary Termination Rate 1.9% 0.0% 1.6% NiA N/A NIA 2.4% N/A 5.3% NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Ratio to Lowest Rate 0.0% 100.0% | 100.0% /A N/A N/A 65.0% NIA 20.8% /A NIA N/A /A NIA N/A N/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No) No No Mo /A N/A /A No NIA No /A NIA MNIA MIA NIA MNIA NIA

8 -Service-Maintenance

Total Workforce 1.607 1.091 190 53 4 1 1,361 995 35 8 2 2 1 - 14

Total Involuntary Terminations 189 166 9 5 2 2 169 193 3 - 2 - - - 4 6
Involuntary Termination Rate 11.8% 15.2% 4.7% N/A N/A N/A 12.4% 15.4% N/A NIA NIA NIA MNIA NIA NIA MNIA
Ratio to Lowest Rate 100.0% | 77.3% | 100.0% /A N/A N/A 38.1% 30.8% N/A /A NIA N/A /A NIA N/A N/A
Potential Adverse Impact (Yes/No) No No No N/ MAA /A No Mo /A MN/A MiA /A MN/A MiA /A N/A

Notes: EEO-4 Category 1: 1 male and 2 females did not disclose their race; Category 2: 1 male and 1 female did not disclose their race; Category 6: 2 female employees did not disclose their race;
Category 7: 1 male employee did not disclose their race; Category 8: 4 males and 4 females did not disclose their race.

Page 33



Appendix E — Recruitment Sources

AARP Senior Comm. Service Employee

Program

Akron University

Aerozone Job Fair

Army Pays

ASHE Cleveland

Asian Services In Action, Inc
Autozone

Baldwin Wallace

BGSU

Bryant & Stratton

Case Western Reserve University
Cleveland Business Consultants
Cleveland Engineering Society
Cleveland Heights Consortium

Cleveland Marshall College of Law c/o
Office of Career Planning

Cleveland Public Library

Cuyahoga County Library

Cuyahoga Valley Career Job Fair

El Barrio

Employment Connection
Greatinsurancejobs.com

Hard Hatted Women

Harvard Community Services Center
Hispanic Alliance

ITT Technical Institute

Lakeland Community College

Page 34

Lorain County Community College
Lorain County Library

Maingate Business Development
Corporation

Miami Jacobs Career College (formerly
Academy of Court Reporting)

Notre Dame College Career Placement
Office

Ohio Means Jobs

Ohio Northern University

Ohio Technical College

Partner Up High School Career Fair
Piston Power Auto-Rama |IX-Center
Plexus LBGTQ+ Career Fair
Polaris Career Center

Portage Lakes Career Fair
Remington College

Spanish American Committee
Technical Institute

Toledo University

Towards Employment

Urban League of Greater Cleveland
Vatterott College

Vocational Guidance Services East
Hough Job Match Office-2nd Floor

Westside Neighborhood Opportunity
Center (May Dugan Center)

Esperanza Inc.




Appendix F — Organizational Chart

Board of Trustess

Rew. Charles P, Lucas, Anthony D, Biasiotta, Paul A Kaomar, Staphen Love, Deldre MoPhersan,
Calley Marsmann, Emily Garr Pacetti, Jefrey Sleasrman, David £, Weiss, Lauren R. Welch

Exacutive
Internal Aglt | Genaral Managar . .
Anthony Garofoll Chief Executive Officar
India Birdsang Terry
1
I I I | I I
et et || pmaeousin || ssatrs v ||| opetemouson | | s ||| simrin s
Rajan Gaut 1 i T Attalrs Hhaslan
Michael schipper ajan Gautam amet Burney | Floun'say Caver George Fields i | Natoya Walker Minor

— | E— P— — Pin—

ol E‘*Im:ii;:?m Accounting || Legal Flzet Management || Tabent Acquisition i . uﬂineaﬂ:nqiw |
lasegh Shaffer John Tagher Janet Burpey . Daniel Destrick Ida Ford FHEE:"M“':: Williams
Programming & Cash Management/ :

| | " Flamhng L Grant ,: - Risk Managamant | i | finfarmation Tech HRIS Marketing &

i ¢ enagaman Juy tincoln | | Michael Lively tall Fish Comemumications
Maribath Feke Craig Wiehe i =t Sharan Jenkins
| roject support | [ office of Business sataty | | Seevice Management Labar & Employes PubEc informatian
Brian Termming T Developmant | Steven Pegancff inel Freilich W Relations —| Officer/Spokesperson
Carl Kirkland Scott Ferrars Robert Feig
—_— D ———— |
Office of Managemant Service Cusality Training & Employes Customar Service
- and Budgat | Anthony Richardsen = Developrment Center
Kay Sutula Wendy Talley | Zakiya Wright
Procungrmant Dis:;nmh':anagement Benafits Em?mummgnﬁ
Melinda Dangelo s Biggar ] ] e
& Nicholas Davidson Nadine Delesus Albert Jahnson
Oliver Draper
Revenue Se:im Muti n Policy & Gaovernment
Allen Folly P _— Relations
Vacant
|| Suppost Services
Sharen Lewis
BManagement
1 Infermaticn Systems
Jozh Miranda

Page 35




Appendix G — Demonstration of Subrecipient Contact and Receipt of EEOP

Good Morning,

My name is Felicia Brooks-Williams. | am the 5r. Manager of the Office of Equal Opportunity at the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority (GCRTA). Congratulations, on being awarded another contract agreement to provide
supplemental services to our ADA customers,

This email is to inform you that GCRTA must comply with FTA Circular 4704.14 Ch. 1.4 Applicability.
Any FTA recipient, subrecipient and contractor who meet the following threshold requirements must implement all of
the EEO Program elements:
*  Employs 100 or more transit-related employees, and
* Requests or receives capital or operating assistance in excess or 51 million in the previous Federal fiscal year, or
requests or receives planning assistance in excess of 5250,00 in previous Federal fiscal year.
Any FTA applicant, recipient, subrecipient, and contractor who meet both of the following threshold requirements must
prepare and maintain an abbreviated EEQ program:
= Employs 50-99 transit-related employees, and
* Requests or receives capital or operating assistance in excess or 51 million in the previous Federal fiscal year, or
reguests or receives planning assistance in excess of $250,00 in previous Federal fiscal year.

As a result of the FTA Circular 4704.14, please provide the following information:
1} How many employees are working on GCRTA'Ss contract?
2} Provide a copy of your EEQ Program if you employ more than 100 employees under GCRTA's contract ar and
abbreviated EEO program which consist of the following:
Statement of Policy
Dissemination Plan
Desighation of Personnel
Assessment of employment Practices; and
Monitoring and Reporting System
If you do not have all the items above, please provide what you have on hand by the end of today. This information
must be submitted to the FTA Auditor. Please feel free to contact me, if you have any questions regarding the above
information.

Thank you for your coaperation.

Sincerely,

Gt Do, Woiorrms

Senior Manager,

Dffice of Egual Opportunity, ADA & DEI
fowilliams@gcrta.org

Pronouns: She, Her, Hers

Tel: 216-356-3094

Page 36



Provide-A-Ride

s Frovide 7 Ride

tepe'’ GUSTOMIZED TRAN

PROVIDE A RIDE'S
EEO PROGRAM
2024

Page 37



Senior Transportation

Equal Employment
Opportunity (EEO) Program

SENIQR
TRANSPORTATION
CONNECTION




GC Logistics

G

GCTRANSPORTS

GC TRANSPORTS: EEO COMPLIANCE PLAN

EEQ Statement:
Excenpt from GC Transports Employee Handbook. GC Transports is committed

to the principles of equal opportunity and treats all team members, as well as
qualified applicants, equally, regardless of race, color, religion, ancestry, national
arigin, citizenship status, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, pregnancy,
age, physical or mental disability, marital status, veteran’s status, genetic
information or any other characteristic or status protected under federal, state
or local law. This policy applies to all areas of employment influding
recruitment, hiring, training, testing, placement, promaotion, compensation,
benefits, termination, transfer, demotion, layoff, leave of absence, and social
programs.

Excerpt from GC Transports Employee Handbook - Reasonable Accommodation
Policy: Itis GC Transports” policy to provide equal opportunity in employment
for all qualified individuals regardless of disability. GC Transports is committed
to complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (the "ADA"), Title VIl of the
Civil Rights Act ("Title VII") and applicable state and local laws prohibiting
discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities or sincerely held
religious beliefs.

Team members who believe they need reasonable accommaodation to perform
the essential functions of their job should contact the Human Resources
Department. Any supervisor or manager who receives a request for reasonable
accommodation should refer the team member to the Human Resources
Department and notify that department of the request. The team member
requesting reasonable accommodation should specify the specific
accommodation he or she is seeking to perform the essential functions of his or
her job. GC Transports is committed to participating in an interactive
accommodation process with an individual who requests an accommodation.

Excerpt from GC Transports Employee Handbook- Harassment, Discrimination
and Retaliation Policy: GC Transports is committed to providing a workplace free
from discrimination, harassment, and retaliation. Therefore, GC Transports will
not tolerate harassment of any type based on race, color, religion, sex (including
pregnancy, sexual orientation, and gender identity), national origin, age (40 ar
older), disability, or genetic information and other characteristics protected
under state, federal or local laws. Such conduct in any form is prohibited in the

Page 39



Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority

Interoffice Memo

Attachment B

Proposed Affirmative Action 2024-2027 Focus Areas

EEO-4 Job Male | Male Male | Male Female | Female | Female | Female | Female | Female
Category A d Black | Hispanic | Asian | Pac sl White |Amer Ind| Black | Hispanic [ Asian | Paclsl
Officials & Vo
Administrators
Professionals Yes Yes Yes Yes
Technicians Yes Yes
Protfectlve Yes Yes
Service
Administrative
Yes Yes
Support
sl Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Craft
Serylce Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Maintenance
Total Focus
Aress None One Two Three Two Seven Two Four Three None One

Proposed Affirmative Action 2024 -2027 Goals

EEO Job Category Total Goals Remaining Parity for Males Remaining Parity for Females
Officials & Administrators 2 0 2 White
Professionals 60 3 Asian 55 White, 1 Hispanic/Latin, 1 Asian
Technicians 22 0 20 White, 2 Hispanic/Latin
Protective Service 10 8 Black 2 White
Administrative Support 46 0 45 White, 1 Asian
Semi-Skilled Craft 6 12 Hlspanlc/L.atm, 2 Asian, | 18 White, 8 Black,.l Hispanic/Latin,

3 Multi Races 2 Asian
. . . . 229 White, 1 American Indian,
Service Maintenance 307 25 Hlspanlc/ltatln, 9 Asian, 24 Hispanic/Latin, 10 Asian,
8 Multi Races .
1 Multi Races
TOTAL 493 70 423

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

D



Greater Cleveland Interaffice Memao
Regional Transit Authority

To: Mayor Paul A. Koomar, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
From: India L. Birdsong Terry e
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer /éff’é%’ﬁ“‘g
Date: Aprit 11, 2024
Subject: Code Book Update

At the April 2, 2024 Committee of the Whole mesting, the Board of Trustees raised two
questions regarding the proposed updates to certain Code Book provisions.

1. Section 460.06 Insurance Fund

The proposed language changed the responsibility for determining and approving a schedule to
replenish the Insurance Fund in the case of a catastrophic loss from the Board of Trustees to
the Secretary-Treasurer. This change was proposed because the current Secretary-Treasurer,
as an officer of the Board of Trustees, also serves as the Deputy General Manager-Finance. In
this dual role, he has the greatest knowledge of the Authority's budget and capacity to replenish
the Insurance Fund.

The Board of Trustees requested language providing for the Board of Trustees to be notified
regarding the schedule to replenish the Insurance Fund. The following tanguage has been
added to Section 460.06(e):

“This schedule shall be included in the report(s) provided to the Board of Trustees under
Section 242.02 hereof.”

2. Chapter 464 Protection Against Internal Losses of Public Assets, Section 464.03

The proposed language changed the interval for reviewing the Authority's internal toss
protection coverage from yearly to “at least every three years.” This change was proposed
because the Authority has historically reviewed the coverage each time the policy is renewed
and the Authority currently has a three-year policy.

The Board of Trustees requested language to allow for reviewing the Authority's internal loss
protection coverage more frequently than every three years. The following language has been
added to Section 464.03;

“at the time of each renewal, and in no event less often than every three years”

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
meeting.

1BT/dmt



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 : _—
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.:
2024-30
AMENDING CHAPTER 484 PROTECTION AGAINST INTERNAL Date:
LOSSES OF PUBLIC ASSETS AND SECTION 460.06 INSURANCE April 11, 2024
FUND OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE .
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY Initiator:
Finance

ACTION REQUEST:
E Approval [1 Review/Comment [1 Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0
50

6.0
7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will amend Chapter 464 Protection Against Internal
Losses of Public Assets and Section 460.06 Insurance Fund of the Codified Rules and
Regulations ("“Code Book”) of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority™).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees were
codified in 1989, pursuant to Resolution No. 1889-176. The Code Book is undergoing a
comprehensive review and update so that the Code Book will conform to the current structure
and operations of the Authority.

The proposed revisions to Chapter 464 Protection Against Internal Losses of Public Assets
provide for the Secretary-Treasurer to give a bond in accordance with the Chio Revised Code
and the Authority's Bylaws. At the time of each policy renewal, the Authority will review the
adeqguacy of the internal loss protection coverage and in no event will this review take place
less often than every three years.

The proposed revision to Section 460.06 Insurance Fund will clarify that the Secretary-
Treasurer will determine the schedule for replenishment of the Insurance Fund if there is a
payment for a catastrophic loss from that fund. In addition, the Secretary-Treasurer will report
to the Board regarding the schedule in accordance with the Board's policies,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will align the Code Book provisions with the
current operations of the Authority.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution, Not adopting this resolution will leave the Code
Book provision out of line with the operations of the Authority.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the Aprit 2, 2024 Committee of
the Whole meeting and recommended, subject to clarification of the tanguage in Sections
460.06(e} and 464.03, for consideration by the full Board of Trustees, ltis
recommended that this resolution be adopted.

ATTACHMENTS:
A. Red-line of proposed amendments to Chapter 464 Protection Against Internal Losses of

Public Assets
B. Red-line of proposed amandments to Section 460.06 Insurance Fund




Staff Summary & Comments
Code Book Resolution
Page 2

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conforrmance with
the Procurement requirements.

g L J—
/Mzﬁc«wéi L E’gfém

General Manager, Chief Ex&c_g}ive Officer

2024-30



Attachment A to Staff Summary

CHAPTER 464
Protection Against Internal Losses of Public
Assets

464.01 Purpose and scope.
464.02 Policy provisions.
464.03 Periodic review and amendment.

CROSS REFERENCES
Embezzlement of public funds disqualifies fer-publiefrom holding office - see Ohio
Const-1itution, Art-icle II, Sec-tion 5
Powers of Board of Trustees; rules and regulations - see R.C. 306.34
Powers and duties of the Authority - see R.C. 306.35
Duties of Secretary-Treasurer; bond - see R.C. 306.42

Theft - see Ohio-R.C. 2913.02
Theft in office - see Ohio-R.C. 2921.41
Prlma facie evidence of embezzlement see Qh—}e—R C. 2945. 64

Secretary-Treasurer — see Bylaws, Article II, Section 8
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer — see Bylaws, Article VIII
Internal audit policies and procedures - see ADM. Ch. 262

Seeu%}t—y#R—’I‘qA—Pel-}ee—Depa-Pt—meﬁ'eTransm Police Officers - see ADM. Ch. 280

464.01 PURPOSE AND SCOPE.

The policy described in this chapter is designed to afford protection to the
Authority against internal losses of public assets resulting from acts by employees
whose responsibilities require access to monetary or other resources of significant

value, and for protection against loss through acts of fraud by employees.
(Res. 1989-21. Passed 2-21-89.)

464.02 POLICY PROVISIONS.
(a) The Authority shall acquire protection against internal losses of public
assets due to acts by employees of the Authority, in such amounts and for such



Attachment A to Staff Summary

employees as may be deemed appropriate to protect the public funds and property
entrusted-unteoof the Authority and to comply with thereguirements-ef-Ohio law.

(b) The form of internal loss protection te-be-acquired-againstinternallosses
shall be determined by the GO, -General Manager/Seeretary-Treasurer, Chief

Executive Officer consistent with the needs of the Authority, judicious expenditure of
available financial resources and the exercise of good business judgment.

(¢) Internal loss Preteetion—protection eeverage—in the form deemed most
beneficial to the Authority shall be obtained from a highlyreputable underwriting
company with sufficient resources, experience and professional rating as-to afferd
provide a reasonable expectation of indemnification in the event of an internal loss
resulting from an act or acts of an employee for which-whom coverage is provided.

(d) ©Osn-In acquiring internal loss protection, whether by bonding, insurance or
any other appropriate surety means, the Authority, or its designated broker of record,
shall conform to the general requirement for obtaining competitive quotations
pursuant to Ohie-R.C. Chapter 306.

(e) The employees, who may be defined by name or position, to be covered by
the Authority's internal loss protection, shall include the CEO,—General
Manager/SeeretaryTreasurer, Chief Executive Officer, any employee designated
by statute and any other employee designated by the Board of Trustees or the CEO;
General Manager/SeeretaryTreasurer, Chief Executive Officer. Amounts of

coverage shall be as specified by statute, where applicable, and as determined to be
appropriate in all other instances.

a
Ci al D 5 h Ci

the Byvlaws of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority require the
Secretary-Treasurer to give a surety bond.

(g) The cost of the protection coverages provided for herein, including the cost
of any surety bonds, shall be paid by the Authority.
(Res. 1989-21. Passed 2-21-89; Res. 2016-68. Passed 8-16-16.)

464.03 PERIODIC REVIEW-AND-AMENDMENT,
Adequacy of the Authority's internal loss protection coverage shall be reviewed
en—a-yearhyat the time of each renewal, and in no event less often than every three




Attachment A to Staff Summary

vears, basisby the Director of Risk Management. The Director of Risk Management
will make recommendations to the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer and
the Secretary-Treasurer regarding loss protection coverage.—and ehanges—Those
changes deemed to be in the public 1nterest shall be made to the coverage—piaev}eled

(Res 1989 21 Passed 2 21 89 Res 2016 68 Passed 8 16 16)



Attachment B to Staff Summary

460.06 INSURANCE FUND.

(a) The Insurance Fund will be used to provide resources to protect against
catastrophic or extraordinary losses. It is not used to pay ordinary and routine losses
of the Authority incurred on an on-going basis and handled by the Claims Section of
the Legal Department of the Authority.

(b) The Authority is insured through both self-insurance and purchased
insurance. Purchased insurance for property and equipment losses as well as for
liability is to be purchased on the open insurance market. The basis for the Insurance
Fund structure and minimum balance shall be determined annually by the Director
of Risk ManagerManagement.

(¢) The minimum balance to be maintained in the Insurance Fund shall be based
on the recommendation of the Director of Risk ManagerManagement, taking into
consideration the balance between self-insurance and purchased insurance
requirements.

(d) Upon attaining the required minimum balance, additional funds will be
allocated to the Insurance Fund during the annual budgeting process based upon the
results of periodic reviews of the Insurance Fund to assess its sufficiency. Actual
placement of additional funds into the Insurance Fund may occur at any time during
the fiscal year when cash flow requirements permit-same.

(e) In the event that the Insurance Fund 1s used to pay a catastrophlc loss, upen

: - the Boeard-of
T—rusteesSecretarV Treasurer will determlne and approve a schedule for
replenishment of the Fund up to the minimum amount provided for in subsection (c)
hereof._ This schedule shall be included in the report(s) provided to the Board of
Trustees under Section 242.02 hereof.

(f) At least every two years, an evaluation, including appropriate actuarial
studies of the Authority's loss experience shall be conducted. The evaluation will
determine the liability to be reflected on the Authority's balance sheet.

(Res. 2011-79. Passed 9-20-11. Res. 2017-121. Passed 12-19-17.)



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-30

AMENDING CHAPTER 464 PROTECTION AGAINST INTERNAL LOSSES OF
PUBLIC ASSETS AND SECTION 460.06 INSURANCE FUND OF THE CODIFIED
RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1988-176, the Board of Trustees ("Board") of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) codified the resolutions establishing
its policies and pracedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Chapter 464
Protection Against Internal Losses of Public Assets and Section 4860.06 Insurance Fund should
be amended to update certain provisions to align them with the Authority’'s current operations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Code Book Chapter 464 Protection Against Internal Losses of Public
Assets is hereby amended to read as specified in Attachment A hereto.

Section 2. That Code Book Seaction 460.06 insurance Fund is hereby amended {o read
as specified in Attachment B hereto,

Saction 3. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article Xl, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachments. A, Chapter 4684 Protection Against Internal Losses of Public Assets
B. Section 480.06 Insurance Fund

Adopted: April 16, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Attachment A to Resolution

CHAPTER 464
Protection Against Internal Losses of Public
Assets

464.01 Purpose and scope.
464.02 Policy provisions.
464.03 Periodic review and amendment.

CROSS REFERENCES
Embezzlement of public funds disqualifies from holding office - see Ohio
Constitution, Article 11, Section 5
Powers of Board of Trustees; rules and regulations - see R.C. 306.34
Powers and duties of the Authority - see R.C. 306.35
Duties of Secretary-Treasurer; bond - see R.C. 306.42
Theft - see R.C. 2913.02
Theft in office - see R.C, 2921.4]
Prima-facie evidence of embezzlement - see R.C. 2945.64
Secretary-Treasurer — see Bylaws, Article II, Section 8
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer — see Bylaws, Article VIII
[nternal audit policies and procedures - see ADM. Ch. 262
Transit Police Officers - see ADM. Ch. 280

464.01 PURPOSE AND SCOPE.

The policy described in this chapter is designed to afford protection to the
Authority against internal losses of pubhic assets resulting from acts by employees
whose responsibilities require access to monetary or other resources of significant
value, and for protection against loss through acts of fraud by employees.

(Res. 1989-21. Passed 2-21-89.)

464,02 POLICY PROVISIONS.

(a) The Authority shall acquire protection against internal losses of public
assets due to acts by employees of the Authority, in such amounts and for such
employeea as may be deemed appropriate to protect the public funds and property of
the Authority and to comply with Ohio law.

(b) The form of internal loss protection shall be determined by the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer consistent with the needs of the Authority, judicious

expenditure of available financial resources and the exercise of good business judgment.

(¢} Internal loss protection in the form deemed most beneficial to the Authority



Attachment A to Resolution

zhall be obtained from a reputable underwriting company with sufficient resources,
experience and professional rating to provide a reasonable expectation of
indemnification in the event of an internal loss resulting from an act or acts of an
employee for whom coverage iz provided.

(d) Inacquiring internal loss protection, whether by bonding, insurance or any
other appropriate surety means, the Authority, or its designated broker of record,
shall conform to the gemeral requirement for obtaining competitive quotations
pursuant to R.C. Chapter 306.

(¢) The employees, who may be defined by name or position, to be covered by
the Authority's internal losgs protection, shall include the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer, any employee designated by statute and any other employee
designated by the Board of Trustees or the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer. Amounts of coverage shall be as specified by statute, where applicable, and
az determined to be appropriate in all other instances.

(f) Pursuant to R.C. 306.42, the Bylaws of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Trangit Authority require the Secretary-Treasurer to give a surety bond.

(g} The cost of the protection coverages provided for herein, including the cost
of any surety bonds, shall be paid by the Authority.
(Res. 1989-21. Passed 2-21-89; Res. 2016-68. Passed 8-16-16.)

464.03 PERIODIC REVIEW.,

Adequacy of the Authority's internal loss protection coverage shall be reviewed
at the time of each renewal, and in no event less often than every three years, by
the Director of Risk Management. The Director of Risk Management will make
recommendations to the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer and the
Secretary-Treasurer regarding loss protection coverage. Those changes deemed to
be in the public interest shall be made to the coverage.

(Res. 1989-21. Passed 2-21-89; Res. 2016-68. Passed 8-16-16.)



Attachment B to Rezolution

460.06 INSURANCE IF'UND.

(a} The Insurance Fund will be used to provide resources to protect against
catastrophic or extraordinary losses. It 15 not used to pay ordinary and routine losses
of the Authority incurred on an on-going basis and handied by the Claims Section of
the Legal Department of the Authority.

() The Authority is insured through both self-insurance and purchased
insurance. Purchased insurance for property and equipment losses as well ag for
lianlity is to be purchased on the open insurance market. The basis for the Insurance
Fund structure and minimum balance shall be determined annually by the Divector
of Risk Management.

(¢) The minimwm balance to be maintained in the Insurance Fund shall be based
on the recommendation of the Dirvector of Risk Manapgement, taking into
consideration the balance between selfingurance and purchased insurance
requirements.

(d) Upon attaining the required mimimum balance, additional funds will be
allocated to the Insurance Fund during the annual budgeting process based upon the
results of periodic reviews of the Insurance Fund to assess its sufficiency. Actual
placement of additional funds into the Insurance Fund may cceur at any time during
the fiscal year when cash flow requirements permit.

(e) Inthe event that the Insurance Fund is used to pay a catastrophice loss, the
Secretary-Treasurer will determine and approve a schedule for replenmishment of the
Fund up to the minimum amount provided for in subsection {(c) hereof. This schedule
shall be included in the report(s) provided to the Board of Trustees under Section
242.02 hereof.

(f) At least every two years, an evaluation, including appropriate actuarial
studies of the Authority's loss experience shall be conducted. The evaluation will
determine the liability to be reflected on the Authority's balance sheet.

(Res, 2011-79. Passed 9-20-11. Res. 2017-121. Paszsed 12-19-17)



Form 1040- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22 _
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

TERMS: TEN YEAR TERM AT $12,000.00 PER YEAR [N

LEASE:  RENEWAL LEASE AGREEMENT FOR LAND ADJACENT 2024-31

TO THE PURITAS-WEST 150™ STREET RAPID TRANSIT
STATION, 4200 WEST 150™ STREET, CLEVELAND, OH April 11, 2024

441346
Initiator:

LESSEE: 2 BIRDS SHUTTLE AND DETAIL, LLC, AN OHIO LIMITED Programming and

LIABILITY COMPANY Planning

YEAR ONE AND INCREASING INCREMENTALLY TO
$15,240 IN YEAR TEN.

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [ Review/Comment I} Information Only  [) Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

PURPOSE/SCOPRE: This resolution seeks approval for a renewal lease agreement between
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) and 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail
LLC {(*Tenant"), an Ohio limited liability company, for the operation of an airport shuttle service
and auto detail center. The property is a surplus parking area at the Puritas-West 160" Street
Rapid Transit Station at 4200 West 150" Street, Cleveland, OH 44135, The renewal term is
for ten years with no extension option. The Authority reserves the right to cancel the lease at

any time and for any reason.

DESCRIPTIONAUSTIFICATION: The Authority acquired this property in 1975 as part of the
Mass Transit System Transfer Agreement creating the Authority. The portion of the property
proposed for lease renewal was a surplus parking area not used for Authority operations. The
Tenant has occupied the property since March of 2020 and has satisfactorily improved and
maintained the property. The shuttle and aute detail service are valuable and convenient
amenities which serve to promote the Authority's ridership. All insurance requirements and
compliance with the terms and conditions of the current lease agreement have been met,
Tenant remained in good standing with the Authority throughout the term of the initial lease.

Staff is seeking approval of this lease renewal pursuant to Section 470.03 of the Codified

Rules and Regulations of the Authority which provides that the Board of Trustees must
approve any lease permitting continuous use of Authority property for more than 3 years.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: BDoes not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The proposed lease renewal is consistent with the Real Estate Policies of
the Authority.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The income from rent of $12,000.00 per year for the first year and the
subsequent incremental annual rent increases to $15,240.00 in the tenth year reduce the
operating and maintenance costs at the Puritas-West 150" Street Rapid Station.

ALTERNATIVES: The Authority can refuse to renew the lease agreement and seek a new
tenart for the property which may incur additional costs for maintaining the property.




Staff Summary & Comments 3
2 Birds Shuttle 2024-31

Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the proposed renewal lease agreement for approval
by the Board of Trustees,

9.0 ATTACHMENT: Draft Lease Agreement

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, lagal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements,

.
2 it #M%Lﬁ%
“@eneral Manager, Chiemﬂxe@{ive Officer

(




DRAFT

LEASE BETWEEN

THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

AND

2 BIRDS SHUTTLE AND DETAIL LLC

This Lease is made and entered into as of this day of , 2024

("Effective Date"), by and between the 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail LLC, an Ohio limited liability
company whose principal business office is located at 19540 Puritas Avenue, Cleveland, OH
44135 (“Lessee”) and the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, a political subdivision
organized under Ohio Revised Code Chapter 306, whose principal business office is located at
1240 West 6" Street, Cleveland, Ohio, 44113 (“Lessor”).

1.

Lessor does hereby lease to Lessee and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor land adjacent to
the Puritas — West 150th Rapid Transit Station, in the City of Cleveland, Cuyahoga County,
Ohio, and identified on the document attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “A” and Exhibit
“A-1” (“Premises”).

The term of the Lease shall be for a period of ten (10) years, beginning on May 1, 2024 (the
"Commencement Date") and terminating on April 30, 2034. Notwithstanding anything
contained herein, Lessor reserves the right to cancel the Lease at any time and for any reason.

Lessee shall pay to Lessor the monthly rent stated in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made
part hereof in equal consecutive monthly installments on or before the first day of each month
during the term of this Lease (the “Base Rent”).

The Base Rent is to be adjusted in accordance with any Additional Rent, payments or charges
required by the terms of this Lease.

If the Lessee fails to pay any Base Rent on the date it is due and payable, such unpaid amount
shall be subject to a late payment charge of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00).

Lessee may use and occupy the land described in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “A-1" solely for
operating a parking, airport shuttle and auto detail center on a for profit basis. The parking,
and airport shuttle and auto detail center must be accessible to the public. Lessor and Lessee
agree this Lease does not create a permanent use but that the parking, airport shuttle and
auto detail center is a temporary use of the land until such time as Lessor has another use for
the land. The land described in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “A-1” shall not be used for any
purpose other than permitted herein without the express written consent of the Lessor.

The parking, shuttle and auto detail center shall be fenced around the perimeter with multiple
secured gated entrances. Landscaping, site lighting and signage approved by the Lessor and



10.

the City of Cleveland may be installed. The fence, all gates, and all improvements shall
always be maintained in a good state of repair.

Lessor reserves the right to use (or grant to other parties the right to use) the air rights above
the Premises and Lessee will have no right, title or interest in the air rights above the Premises.

Within fifteen (15) days from the Commencement Date of this Lease, Lessee shall prepare
and deliver to Lessor detailed plans and specifications of the improvements to the Premises
to be constructed by Lessee in compliance with Exhibit “C” attached hereto and made a part
hereof. ~ Within fifteen (15) days following Lessor's receipt of Lessee’s plans and
specifications, Lessor shall notify Lessee whether Lessee’s plans and specifications are
acceptable to Lessor. If Lessee’s plans and specifications are not acceptable to Lessor,
Lessor will advise Lessee of the required modifications to Lessee’s plans and specifications.
Lessee shall modify and deliver to Lessor its revised plans and specifications within five (5)
days from receipt of Lessor’s required modifications. Lessor and Lessee will continue this
process until Lessor has approved Lessee’s plans and specifications (“Lessee’s Work”).
Within ten (10) days from receipt of Lessor’s approval of Lessee’s plans and specifications,
Lessee will apply for any and all permits and other governmental approvals necessary to
perform Lessee’s Work and Lessee will diligently pursue such application(s) until approved.
Lessee shall not modify Lessee’s plans and specifications approved by Lessor without
Lessor’s prior written consent. Upon Lessor’s delivery of the Premises, and provided Lessor
has approved Lessee’s plans and specifications, or upon Lessor’s approval of Lessee’s plans
and specifications, whichever is later, Lessee will commence construction of Lessee’s Work
in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by Lessor. If Lessee has not
complied with each of the foregoing conditions, Lessor may, in its sole and absolute discretion,
reasonably control Lessee’s access to the Premises to the extent Lessor deems necessary
without such actions affecting the term of this Lease as set forth in paragraph 2 of this Lease.
Lessee will complete construction of Lessee’s Work prior to occupancy or use by the public.
Lessee must receive Lessor’s consent and the approval of the City of Cleveland to its signage
plans and specifications prior to installation of Lessee’s signage upon the Premises. Lessee
shall perform all work associated with the granting of this Lease at its sole cost and expense.

Lessee shall be responsible for the maintenance of the parking, airport shuttle and auto detail
center constructed on the Premises and shall maintain said Premises in a clean, safe, and
attractive condition. Lessee shall keep and maintain the Premises and any fixtures, facilities,
or equipment therein, in good condition and repair. Lessee shall be responsible for cleaning,
repairing, and remediating all portions of the Premises. Lessee shall be responsible for all
security required to operate this business on the Premises. Lessee shall be responsible for
any utilities which Lessee requires, including but not limited to: (a) arranging for any utility
connections or installations, including any necessary permits or licenses or other
authorizations; (b) paying any utility suppliers, whether or not such services are billed directly
to Lessee; (c) and paying for any installation and maintenance of any lines or equipment
required for such utilities. In no event will Lessor be liable for the quality, quantity, failure, or
interruption of any of the foregoing utility services to the Premises.



11.

12.

13.

14.

Neither the Premises nor any part thereof shall be sublet, nor shall this Lease be assigned
without the express consent, in writing, of the Lessor.

The relationship between the parties hereto is wholly that of Lessor and Lessee and is not
and never shall be deemed to be a partnership or joint venture.

To the fullest extent permitted by law and to the full extent of Lessee’s intentional, reckless or
negligent acts or omissions, the Lessee shall, at its sole cost and expense, indemnify, defend,
satisfy all judgments, and hold harmless Lessor and its officials, agents, representatives, and
employees from and against all claims, actions, judgments, costs, penalties, liabilities,
damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorney’s fees and worker’s
compensation benefits, for Lessee’s breaches of this Lease, or intentional, reckless or
negligent acts or omissions arising out of or resulting from the subject matter of this Lease, or
the acts or omissions of any person or contracted entity directly or indirectly employed or
contracted by Lessee.

Nothing herein shall be construed as making Lessee liable for any claims, actions, judgments,
costs, penalties, liabilities, damages or losses and expenses caused by the gross negligence
and/or willful misconduct of Lessor.

Lessee accepts the land described in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “A-1” in an “AS IS and
WHERE IS” condition without warranty by Lessor of any kind or nature, express or implied.
Lessor shall not be liable (i) for any damage to Lessee’s property located on the Premises,
nor (ii) for any condition of the Premises whatsoever.

To the extent that any portion of this provision is found to be in violation of any applicable law,
said portion(s) of this provision are stricken but all remaining portions of this provision shall
remain in full force and effect.

Insurance

a. The Lessee shall obtain and maintain for the term of this Lease the minimum insurance
coverages specified herein. Such insurance shall protect the Lessee from claims which
may arise out of or result from the Lessee’s operations under this Lease and for which the
Lessee may be legally liable, whether such operations be by the Lessee or by a
subcontractor or by anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of them, or by anyone
for whose acts any of them may be liable.

Approval by the Lessor: Approval of the insurance by the Lessor shall not relieve or
decrease the liability of the Lessee hereunder and shall not affect the obligations of Lessee
pursuant to paragraph 13 of this Lease. Lessor does not in any way represent that the
insurance or the limits of insurance specified herein are sufficient or adequate to protect
the Lessee’s interests or liabilities.



In the event the Lessee neglects, refuses or fails to provide the insurance required herein,
or if such insurance is cancelled for any reason, the Lessor shall have the right but not the
duty to procure the same at Lessee’s cost.

Lessor reserves the right to request a copy of all policies and endorsements prescribed
herein.

At its sole expense, Lessee shall obtain and maintain:

i. Commercial General Liability (CGL) Insurance in the amount of $2,000,000
combined single limit each occurrence for bodily injury and/or property damage and
with a $2,000,000 annual aggregate. Policy to include contractual liability coverage
insuring the indemnification clause contained in Section 13 of this Lease.

ii. Business Automobile Liability (BAL) Insurance in the amount of $2,000,000
combined single limit each accident for bodily injury and/or property damage. Said
policy shall apply to all owned, leased, hired and non-owned vehicles used in
connection with Lessee’s Work and Lessee’s use of the Premises that are the subject
of this Lease.

iii. Statutory Workers’ Compensation Coverage in compliance with all applicable state
workers’ compensation laws to cover all employees furnishing labor under the terms
of this Lease and under the control of the Lessee. Employers’ Liability coverage in the
amount of $1,000,000 per accident / $1,000,000 per employee for disease will also be
included, either under the Workers’ Compensation policy or under the Commercial
General Liability policy (Stop Gap) referenced under subpart | above. In Ohio, a copy
of a certificate of premium payment from the Industrial Commission and Bureau of
Workers Compensation, or a copy of the Certificate of Employer's Right to Pay
Compensation Directly shall be sufficient proof of the coverages required by this
subpart iii.

b. General Requirements:

i. The Lessee shall not have access to the Premises until it has obtained the required
insurance and has received written approval of such insurance by the Lessor. Lessee
shall furnish evidence of such insurance in the form of a certificate (Acord or
similar form).

The certificate shall provide the following:
i.

e The policy shall be written on an occurrence basis. If any insurance specified
above is written on a “Claims Made” (rather than an “occurrence” basis), then in
addition to the coverage requirements stated herein, Lessee shall:

(a) Ensure that the Retroactive Date is shown on the policy, and such date shall
be before the Effective Date of this Lease or any work beginning under this
Lease.



15.

16.

(b) Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three (3) years
following the termination of this Lease, including the requirement of adding all
additional insureds; and

(c) Ifinsurance is cancelled or non-renewed and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the Effective Date of this
Lease, Lessee shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of
three (3) years after completion of the work.

o Name the Lessor as an additional insured for all CGL and BAL liability coverage
for claims arising out of operations in conjunction with this Lease.

e Contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Lessor.

e Specify that the insurance is primary and non-contributory as respects any
insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by Lessor.

o Contain a specific reference to this Lease.
e Specify all deductibles & Self-Insured Retentions (SIR), as applicable.

¢ In the event the insurance should be changed or cancelled, such change or
cancellation shall not be effective until 15 days after the Lessor has received
written notice of such change or cancellation from the Lessee. Such notice shall
be mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the Lessor’'s Property
Manager.

e Aninsurance company having less than an A-X rating by The A. M. Best Company
will not be considered acceptable. All certificates are subject to acceptance by the
Lessor. The Lessor shall be entitled to receive a full copy of the insurance
policy(ies) upon request and reserves the right to review financial statements and
approve any deductibles or SIR.

iii. Lessor will accept any combination of primary CGL along with Excess or Umbrella
policies, as well as primary BAL along with Excess or Umbrella policies, to meet the
minimum coverage requirements contained herein.

Lessee agrees that all construction and maintenance activities permitted or required
hereunder will be performed by its own employees or a contractor of Lessee. If any such
activities are to be performed by other than employees of Lessee, then Lessee will so advise
Lessor and Lessee’s contractor(s) will have to obtain and maintain insurance in the amounts
specified above. Lessor shall be an additional named insured on such policies and evidence
of said coverage must be presented to the Lessor before any work is permitted to begin.
Lessee will pay all costs for work done by its contractors or subcontractors in or on the
Premises, and for all materials furnished in connection with such work. Lessee will hold Lessor
harmless from any liabilities, liens, claims and demands on account of such work.

Except as otherwise agreed in writing, Lessee will pay all taxes connected to the Premises or
Lessee’s operations — and same will be paid directly to the taxing authority, if possible —
including, without limitation, real estate and personal property taxes and assessments levied,
confirmed, or imposed during the term of this Lease, whether or not now customary or within
the contemplation of the parties.



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

This Lease shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of Ohio. Lessee shall maintain and operate the 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail Center and
the Premises in accordance with all laws of the State of Ohio and local ordinances.

Any notice concerning this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed sufficiently given
when sent by certified or registered mail to the respective address of each party as set forth
herein.

Address of Notice:

Lessor:  Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
1240 West 6™ Street
Cleveland, Ohio 44113
Attn: Property Manager

Lessee: 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail Center, LLC
19540 Puritas Ave., Cleveland, Ohio 44135
Attn: Anthony Russell

Lessee shall remove any and all fencing, fixtures, improvements, and personal property from
the Premises upon receipt of notice from Lessor or termination or cancellation of this Lease
and return the Premises to its original condition or to a condition satisfactory to Lessor in its
sole discretion.

This Lease constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and any prior understanding
or representation of any kind prior to the date of this Lease shall not be binding upon either
party, except to the extent it is incorporated into this Lease. Any modification of this Lease
will be binding only if evidenced in writing and signed by both parties.

Each Exhibit referenced in, and attached to, this Lease is incorporated in this Lease by such
reference as if fully rewritten in herein.

Surrender and Holding Over. Lessee shall deliver up and surrender to Lessor possession of
the Premises upon the expiration of the term of this Lease or earlier termination for any
reason. If Lessee remains in possession of the Premises after the expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease, Lessee shall be a month-to-month tenant and be bound by the terms
and provisions of this Lease. Lessee shall (with no additional notice required by Lessor) pay
to Landlord monthly rent in the amount of One Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($1,300.00)
per month, in advance, on the first day of each calendar month for any period during which
Lessee shall hold the Premises after the Lease term shall expire or may have terminated.
Monthly rent and Additional Rent (as hereinafter defined) shall be prorated on a per diem
basis (based upon a thirty (30) day calendar month) for any partial month Lessee occupies
the Premises during such holdover period.

Additional Rent. Any amounts to be paid by Lessee to Lessor pursuant to the provisions of
this Lease or at law, whether such payments are periodic or recurring, shall be deemed to be
"Additional Rent" and otherwise subject to all provisions of this Lease and of law as to the
default in the payment of rent.



24. Counterparts. This Lease may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original, but such counterparts together
shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF each party to this Lease has caused it to be executed by an
individual authorized to enter into said Lease as of the date specified herein.

LESSOR: Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority
1240 West 6™ Street
Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1331

By:

India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager,
Chief Executive Officer

Approved as to Legal Form:

Janet E. Burney, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs

LESSEE: 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, LLC
19540 Puritas Ave.
Cleveland, Ohio 44135

By:

Anthony Russell, Manager



STATE OF OHIO )
) SS:
COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA )

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, did personally appear
the above-named 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company, by
Anthony Russell, its Manager, who acknowledged to me that he did sign the foregoing
instrument as such manager of said company and that the same is his free act and deed, and
that of said company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal at
, , this day of , 2024,

NOTARY PUBLIC



STATE OF OHIO )
) SS:
COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA )

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, did personally appear
the above-named Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority a political subdivision of the
State of Ohio, by India Birdsong Terry, its General Manager, Chief Executive Officer who
acknowledged to me that she did sign the foregoing instrument as such officer of said political
subdivision and that the same is her free act and deed, and that of said political subdivision.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal at Cleveland,
Ohio, this day of , 2024,

NOTARY PUBLIC



EXHIBIT “A” and EXHIBIT “A-1”

(THE PREMISES)




Exnibit
A

_.// \\

SITE BOUNDARY \‘\ |

2.1 ACRES ¢

\“.

o e b= —ir :

T T TR TR e | TTREEE
= | 114 TN
L mertK
'D J/// ‘

¥ PROPOSED BUILDING ——/

-

—eo

]

L

il

!

f L"i (E

EENERE
TWRTTTTTT T <

- o

[ q
\'\\ ; :
N\ / /
\\\ 0 ﬁ =
SK-01 1 2-BIRDS SITE BOUNDARY PLAN ®N
éSK-m SCALE: 1"= 60'-0" EXNIDIT
A
I\TII PURITAS STATION BPT AT RIS
2-BIRDS SITE BOUNDARY SITEFLAN
CRECIONAL TRANSIT ENGINEERING AND PROJECT SHEET NO.
PR MANAGEMENT DIVISION 0202 SK-01




CAIHUIL
A-1

P
s o LP ;
- LRG| RREC
; { l 1 ’ ’Ll 5 \\,\\
1)
4 ; | \!‘\
S C =) 3
LP /‘
80'-0"
:
=
VA
PROPOSED BUILDING. ——/ i
&0 SO /! e
SITE BOUNDARY
LP@ *__—
D (= D T § o

SK-02
SK-02

2-BIRDS PROPOSED BUILDING LOCA'I:ION

SCALE: 1"= 30'-0"

A-1

Exhibit

&q

RIA

GREATER CLEVELAND
REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY

PURITAS STATION BPT
2-BIRDS SITE BOUNDARY
ENGINEERING AND PROJECT E 30,2023
MANAGEMENT DIVISION

SHEET TITLE

SITE PLAN

SHEET NO.

SK-02




Term

YEAR 1:
YEAR 2:
YEAR 3:
YEAR 4:
YEAR 5:
YEAR 6:
YEAR 7:
YEAR 8:
YEAR 9:
YEAR 10:

EXHIBIT “B”

BASE RENT PAYMENT

Monthly Base Rent

$1,000.00/Month
$1,030.00/Month
$1,060.00/Month
$1,090.00/Month
$1,120.00/Month
$1,150.00/Month
$1,180.00/Month
$1,210.00/Month
$1,240.00/Month
$1,270.00/Month

Total Rent

$12,000.00
$12,360.00
$12.720.00
$13,080.00
$13,440.00
$13,800.00
$14,160.00
$14,520.00
$14,880.00
$15,240.00



EXHIBIT"C"
TENANT’'S WORK

Neither Lessor, nor any, officers, employees, agents, or representatives of Lessor (all of the
foregoing, collectively, the "Lessor Parties”) shall be liable for any injury, damage, or loss of
any nature whatsoever to person or property arising out of the performance and construction
of the Lessee's improvements. Lessee hereby agrees to indemnify, protect, defend, and hold
harmless the Lessor Parties from and against any and all claims, damages, liability, loss, cost,
and expense related to or arising out of the performance and construction of the Lessee's
improvements by Lessee or any other party working on Lessee's behalf. The terms and
conditions of this Section 1 shall survive the termination of the Lease.

All work performed in connection with the Lessee's improvements, shall be performed in a
lien-free, good, and workmanlike manner and in accordance with the requirements of all
applicable government ordinances, codes, regulations, and laws. In the event any mechanics'
or materialman's lien is filed against the Premises or any other real property of Lessor in
connection with the Lessee's improvements or on behalf of Lessee, then Lessee shall, within
seven (7) days after notice of filing, cause the same to be discharged of record.

Lessee shall neither do nor suffer anything to be done or kept in or about the Premises which
contravenes Lessor's insurance policies.

Lessee shall promptly clean up and maintain all rubbish, garbage and waste generated from
the Lessee's improvements and use of the Premises and shall permit no refuse generated
from Lessee's improvements and use of the Premises to accumulate around the exterior of
the Premises.

Lessee shall comply with all reasonable rules and regulations which Lessor may from time to
time establish for the use and care of the Premises.

Lessee shall not permit or cause the presence of Hazardous Materials in, on or under the
premises. Lessee shall defend, protect, indemnify and hold the Lessor Parties harmless from
and against any and all claims, causes of action, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses,
including without limit, attorney fees, arising because of any alleged personal injury, property
damage, death, nuisance, loss of business or otherwise, by Lessor, any Lessor Party, or from
and against any governmental act or enforcement, arising from or in any way connected with
conditions existing or claimed to exist with respect to Hazardous Materials (as hereinafter
defined) within the Premises or any adjacent property, which are the result of Lessee's use or
occupancy of the Premises, or performance of the Lessee's improvements. As used herein
the term "Hazardous Materials" shall be defined as any hazardous substance, contaminant,
pollutant, or hazardous release (as such terms are defined in any federal, state, or local law,
rule, regulation, or ordinance, including without, limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended) and other said wastes. In
the event Lessee shall cause or permit the presence of Hazardous Materials in, on, around,
or under the Premises, Lessee shall promptly, at Lessee's sole cost and expense, take any
and all action necessary (as required by appropriate government authority or otherwise) to
return the areas affected thereby to the condition existing prior to the presence of any such
Hazardous materials thereon, subject to Lessor's prior written consent. This Section 6 shall
survive termination of the Lease.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-31

AUTHORIZING A RENEWAL | EASE AGREEMENT WITH 2 BIRDS SHUTTLE
AND DETAIL, LLC FOR PROPERTY AT THE PURITAS-WEST 150™ STREET
RAPID TRANSIT STATION, LOCATED AT 4200 WEST 150™ STREET,
CLEVELAND, OHIO 44135, FOR A TERM OF TEN YEARS AT $12,000.00 PER
YEAR FOR THE FIRST YEAR AND INCREMENTAL ANNUAL INCREASES TO
$15,240.00 FOR THE TENTH YEAR

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) is the owner
of record of 4200 West 150" Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44135, known as the Puritas-West 1501
Street Rapid Transit Station, a portion of which is excess property that is available to be lzased
(“Property’); and

WHEREAS, the Property was acguired by the Authority on September 5, 1875, as part
of the Mass Transit System Transfer Agreement of 1975; and

WHEREAS, the Property has baen leased to 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, LLC, an Ohio
limited liability company, for the past three years for the operation of an airport shuttle service
and auto detail center; and

WHEREAS, Section 470.03 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Authority
provides that leases permitting continuous use of Authority property for more than 3 years must
be approved by the Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS, the Authority's staff has determined the new lease terms and conditions to
be representative of fair market value for comparable properties; and

WHEREAS, 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, LL.C will maintain the Property in a clean, safe,
and attractive condition, and its shuttle and auto detail service amenities will promote the
Authority's ridership; and

WHEREAS, the lease was determined to be an appropriate use for the site; and

WHEREAS, 2 Birds Shuttie and Detail, LLC has remained a tenant in good standing
throughout the term of the initial lease agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Authority intends o offer 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, LLC a lease
renawal for the Property for a term of ten years at $12,000.00 for year one with incremental
annual increases to $15,240.00.00 in the tenth year, and the Authority reserves the right to
cancel the lease agreement at any time and for any reason.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
execute a lease agreement with 2 Birds Shultle and Detail, LLC for a renewal term of ten years
at $12,000.00 per year for year one with incremental annual increases to $15,240.00 in year ten
for the Property.



Resolution No. 2024-31
Page 2

Section 2. That the rent of $12,000.00 for year one with incremental annual increases to
$15,240.00 for year ten, along with 2 Birds Shuttle and Detail, [LLC's agreement to perform all
necessary capital improvements and to maintain the Property in a clean, safe, and attractive
condition white offering airport shuttle and auto detailing services for the Authority's ridership,
represents fair compensation for leasing the Property, as determined by survey of comparable
properties in northeast Ohio and verified by the Authority's staif,

Section 3. That this resolution shall bacome effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: April 16, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 Nl 00
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.:

CONTRACT: LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR ACCESS AND LAYDOWN | Date.

VENDOR:  NEOGRAF SOLUTIONS, LLC & Project
AMOUNT:  $3,000.00 PER MONTH: NOT TO EXCEED $58,400.00
TERM: MAY 18, 2024 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2025,

2024-32

AREAS TO SUPPORT THE WEST 117™ BRIDGE .
REHABILITATION PROJECT April 11, 2024

inittator: Engineering

Management

SUBJECT TO EARLY TERMINATION BY GCRTA

ACTION REQUEST:
B Approval 1 Review/Comment [ Information Only 1} Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

50

6.0

7.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: To enter into a License Agreement with NeoGraf Solutions, LLC
("NeoGraf’) to give the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (*Authority”) and its
contractor, Suburban Maintenance and Construction, Inc., access to the construction site and
for laydown areas on NeoGraf's adjacent property in conjunction with the West 117" Bridge
Rehabilitation Project.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has undertaken a major multi-year
construction project to rehabilitate the West 117" Bridge located in Cleveland and Lakewood,
Ohio. There is no existing access to the bridge sufficient for the construction work that will take
place. This License Agreament will allow the Authority and its contractors to access the
construction site through the NeoGraf property and to store construction materials and

equipmeant.

The term of the License Agreement shall be from May 18, 2024 through December 31, 2025,
at a monthly rate of $3,000.00 per month. The License Agreement is subject to early
termination by the Authority upon completion of the project and restoration of the access and

laydown areas.
PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Dees not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: This action is consistent with the Authority's Policies and Proceduras
governing the acquisition of interests in real estate.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This agreement will be funded through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grant OH-2021-050-337, in an amount not to exceed $58,400.00 ($46,720.00 in federal funds,
which reprasents 80% of total cost).

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Access through the NeoGraf property is the only practical
way to access the construction site and provide for the laydown of materials and equipment for
the project. Without access rights through the NeoGraf property, the project will be
substantially delayed.



Staff Summary & Comments
License Agreement with NeoGraf Sofutions, LLC 2024-32
for West 117" Bridge Rehabilitation Project

Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This matter was discussed at the April 2, 2024 Operational Planning &
Infrastructure Committee meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board of

Trustees. It is recommended that this resolution be adopted.

9.0 ATTACHMENT: Draft License Agreement

Recommended and cerified as appropriate to the
avaiiability of funds, legal form and confarmance with

the Procurement requirements.

7 :7
f" -'-‘-F T T e,
st B (e T ”

~faeneral Manager, Chief Executi@ﬁicer




ATTACH M ENT *D RAFT* W 117 / NeoGraf 5/18/24 — 12/31/25

LICENSE AGREEMENT |

This License Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on the dates specified below,
by and between NeoGraf Solutions LLC (“NEO”), a Delaware limited liability company with a
mailing address of 11709 Madison Avenue, Lakewood, OH 44107 (“Licensor”), and the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“GCRTA”), a political subdivision of the State of Ohio
with a mailing address of 1240 West 6" Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302, (“Licensee”).

WHEREAS, Licensor is the owner of the realty specified below; and,

WHEREAS, it is to the mutual benefit of the parties for Licensee to use certain areas of Licensor’s
realty for access to a construction site for the renovation of an existing railroad bridge on the
Licensee’s property (the “Project’); and,

WHEREAS, GCRTA will oversee and manage the Project; and,

WHEREAS, the Project will be performed by an independent contractor, Suburban Maintenance
and Construction, Inc., which is hired and managed by GCRTA, and which independent contractor
and its subcontractors will also be authorized and licensed to use the Licensor’s realty pursuant
to this agreement; and,

WHEREAS, use of the Licensor’s realty by the Licensee for the Project will not limit the Licensor’s
current use of the realty or current operations; and,

WHEREAS, the Project will result in improved public transit service adding value and accessibility
to the Licensor’s realty.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits received by each party, and for other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
the parties hereby agree as follows:

I. GRANT OF LICENSE

Licensor hereby grants to Licensee a license coupled with an interest to use, subject to the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, those portions of Licensor’s premises, together with rights of
ingress and egress, as described on Attachment “A” and depicted on Exhibit “A” and made a part
hereof (the “Licensed Premises”). Licensee’s contractor(s) and subcontractors are also licensed
to use the Licensed Premises pursuant to this Agreement.

II. LIMITATION TO DESCRIBED PURPOSE

Licensee may use the Licensed Premises for ingress and egress to the Project site, for laydown
areas for construction equipment and material, and for incidental purposes related to such
purposes, during the term of this Agreement. The Licensee accepts the property in its present
condition and agrees to return the Licensed Premises in a condition like when accepted with
normal wear and tear excepted.



W 117 / NeoGraf 5/18/24 — 12/31/25

III. CONSIDERATION

Licensor and Licensee acknowledge that they will mutually benefit from the agreement. Such
mutual benefits and expense constitute the consideration for this Agreement.

In addition, and to perform the Project, Licensee shall compensate the Licensor for use of the
Premises during the term of this Agreement in the amount of Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00)
per month. The initial payment shall be due on June 1, 2024 in the amount of $4,400 which
constitutes the pro rata license fee of $1,400 for the days May 18 through May 31, 2024 plus the
full $3,000 license fee for the month of June. Each subsequent monthly license fee of $3,000 is
due on the 1%t business day of the month, starting with July 1, 2024.

IV. TERM

The parties agree that the term of this license agreement for access to the Licensed Premises
shall be on a month-to-month basis and that the Licensed Premises will be available to Licensee
throughout the period from May 18, 2024 through December 31, 2025 (the “Term”). Once
Licensee has completed the Project, removed itself from the Licensed Premises and notified
Licensor that its use of the Licensed Premises has ended, then the obligation to pay license fees
will end.

V. INDEMNIFICATION

Licensee's liability is governed by the provisions of the Ohio Revised Code, Chapter 2744 and
other laws of Ohio. In accordance with those laws, the Licensee shall defend and hold harmless
Licensor for Licensee's negligent use or intentional misconduct of the Licensed Premises that
may result in damage, liability or expense caused to the Licensed Premises by the Licensee's
negligence or intentional misconduct and for injury to persons or property caused by the
Licensee's negligent use or intentional misconduct of the Licensed Premises. Licensor agrees
that the Licensee shall not be liable to it for normal wear and tear caused to the Licensed Premises
as a result of the Licensee's use thereof, and Licensor agrees to indemnify and hold the Licensee
harmless from and against any and all damage, liability, or expense to persons or property caused
by Licensor's maintenance of the Licensed Premises. With respect to injury to third parties,
Licensor and Licensee shall each bear the cost of its own negligence and neither party shall
indemnify the other.

Licensee agrees to maintain insurance suitable to cover the liabilities assumed in the foregoing
indemnification clause including commercial general liability and auto liability insurance as well
as Workers' Compensation insurance coverage for its employees. Self-insurance is permitted.

VI. GOVERNING LAW

It is agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of Ohio.

VII. NOTICES

Any notice provided for or concerning this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed
sufficiently given when sent by certified or registered mail if sent to:



W 117 / NeoGraf 5/18/24 — 12/31/25

NeoGraf Solutions, LLC Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
11709 Madison Avenue 1240 West 6" Street
Lakewood, OH 44117 Cleveland, OH 44113-1302

Attn: James Reed, Property Manager
VIII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties and any prior
understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of this Agreement shall not be
binding upon either party, except that the prior license agreement between the parties for the two
months that began March 18, 2024 shall continue to May 18, 2024, when this new License
Agreement begins.

IX. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT

Any modification of this Agreement or additional obligation assumed by either party in connection
with this Agreement shall be binding only if evidenced in writing, signed by each party.

IN WITHNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands this day of ,
2024, as to Licensor, and this ___ day of , 2024 as to Licensee.

LICENSOR:

NeoGraf Solutions LLC,
A Delaware limited liability company

By:
[Print Name:]
[Title:]

Date:

LICENSEE:

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority,
A political subdivision of the State of Ohio

By:
India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager / Chief Executive Officer

Date:

Approved As To Legal Form

Janet E. Burney, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs



W 117 / NeoGraf 5/18/24 — 12/31/25

Attachment “A”

Subject Realty: Certain portions of Licensor’s property at 11709 Madison Avenue, Lakewood,
Ohio 44107 as depicted on the attached graphic labeled Exhibit “A”.

GCRTA will enter and exit the Project site through a temporary access drive west of the asphalt
pavement surface as depicted on the attached graphic.

The location of temporary laydown and material storage areas to be used for the Project are also
depicted on this attachment. Use of those laydown and material storage areas by GCRTA or its
independent contractor and its subcontractors is authorized by this agreement.



AR
12421

Bl
183874

| | =
I I I ! L e EXHBITA(1 of@
3 T |3 % 5 ol2 REVISED 12/27/23
Tl 21T s T
J —ﬁl = ﬂj ﬂ Ex /W ) || Ex R/W ex /47 §[§ MADISONAVE.
_ MADISON AVE. B ~ J B2 EX R/W-
o Ex R/ A <3 —i/4 X3 Ex Wy X3 7,“4“‘2
T T =l
- 11420 MADISON AVE Elgé

|'PROPOSED SECURITY GATE AGCESS

O 44114

o

-EXISTING SECURITY GATE
(PO NOT PISTURRE)

111 sl

a

o)

E
2
5

g
i

2
&
i
¢
£
E

315250

02
'NEOGRAF SOLUTIONS LLC
11801 MADISON AVE.

INTERNATIONAL

_2LMN
Sigqr 6rovg e, SE

LancaSer, Ohio 4373

(720} 6575542 Phone

It
i

11801 MADISON AVE
LAKEWOOD, OH. 44107

o
2
88 CEBI8, CCFO
- f = "E nosa?'-ma
Vo 0y X3 ——2 | &% NPACOATINGS, ING
s 11000 & 11110 BEREARD
7 CLEVELAND, OH, 44102

RiA
GREATER CLEVELAND

REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY

m

[ m
bd] il
1

o

INC.
2070 W 17 ST

z ELECTRICAL SUBSTATION
{BGNOT B

ISTURR ~ACCESS
SHALL BE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES)

OM, OH, 44111 ! e
/ ol
si525.004 *
g 55 \ G &G INDUSTRIAL COMPLEX LLC : / /

= mgvoon, % aamm 'g : E
Y = = (g
- T E
. = @g 2
= £2|E3
x = QY omarom @'ﬁ: g
| DILLON LEASING LLC 20 2
11655 BEREARD e
CLEVELAND, OH. 44102 o ﬁ ﬁ
xR E 8 g§
X R N'kc.\ g S =
CEsis, CCFO T&r <|f
E%] NS PROPERTY LEASE o \ H i
emrco  ~~_ —c.q [4E | 2
NEOGRAF PROPERTY LEASE 1 ZmsT n g 2 g
x
e d : [ DRAET =
v‘gt?‘ =AY oarisom ERTY BOUNDARIES AND oA
ot HD DEVELOPMENT OF MARYLAND INC QiNsstipa som FeR BB,
Y SLBEO‘;ELAND mmﬂ wmmwsﬁ%éﬁmsmwﬂms [SHEET
e’ PRAMNG FOR EIAL DEBIGH SRMO0A




\ C | | |z
LA
| > EXHIBIT A (2 of 2)
— =T = o= G
= Sl S
H =53 ek
—J ayy W [ - o o S
] T i [
I —l_) W ﬂ VS x R/
101 c Yy — X R/W g
Ex R/W | e
 —) X R/
ACCESS VIAMAGEE ST: 1 _ . __MAD
x y " ACCESS VIANEOGRAF |
5 x R/ x R m"{mHN X3 SOLUTIONS == R 005-01-001 z
(] L P Ao 2l | s
11420 MADISON AVE H gg el 5le8
CLEVELAND, OH. 44102 b e e e
[ -
X w
| = '
213 PROPOSED SECURITY GATE ACCESS x &
> s
g ]
EXISTING SECURITY GATE = 32
(DO NOT DISTURB) £3d
N 33 o
H s C
= ok =B 2 22
£ < <
w B o RSt
g ow NEW| GATE sz o N
9 52 WITH UTILITY WIRE RN e i < SS53|
— E S2E 315-25-002 RELOCATIO! R EANe5 Z S R
S FEEd NEOGRAF SOLUTIONS LLC 15 ABOVE S| |1 a0 5 Hisi
| I:l‘l:l ggﬁ ue? 11901 MADISON AVE GROUND == SH N;sg*
R QBE TEMP FENCE 2 S T N O = EEE
385 oS Vo,  BRIDGE
—n/4 x3 g o2 282 & s CEGIS, CCFO
- 828528 Fsg 1 ¥ ot 005-01-003 o,
N 46522 TEMP. POTENTIAL LAYDOWN n I NPA COATINGS, INC § 5
1 I A RS (3“‘,83 AREA3-3,314 SF. H I\ 11000 & 11110 BEREA RD eSS
] 8208z " . - CLEVELAND, OH. 44102 zEE
SUGGESTED TEMP. i i itg
GRADE CROSSING H =7 LS
= 5
= 1 N g
. ¥ = &= &
~ /g‘& | | t\8z) CITY OF CLEVELAND 5=
— = “w
o
) 315-25-011 N 5 5
EMERALD DEVELOPMENT °* 2 & i3
AND ECONOWIC NETWORK. ¢y EH Hir
INC. pd 7
2070W 117 ST T 4§ §
[ J— Laxewoob, on. a4t £ // -
ELECTRICAL SUBSTATION ~
(DO NOT DISTURB - ACCESS 315-25-004
& G &G INDUSTRIAL COMPLEX LLC - -
11750 BEREARD - = > i
> TEMP. LAYDOWN TEMP POTENTIAL LAYDOWN: LAKEWOOD, OH. 44111 N w
= SLNO. 31525001 “KAREA2- 14,963 SF. - - = g
2|3 X i : . £ |2
x AREAT- 18,564 S F. 0| .
S| o T ] MPALAYQO w 62|20
\ R H £2 (55
L \ AREA2-1403 SF, I =o
\ ~ 8k (=g
L | N | 20 | =2
> N . 11555 BEREARD o |z <
s398. . . . CLEVELAND, OH. 44102 »
E R cowuensc Tm
iz~ CITY OF LAKEWOOD & p e | vt
" Ex o 1R 28| oY
N Rep My, Q
' Lag =< |0°
LEGEND CEGIS, CCFO g o &
005-03:001 ~_ T 2
ST WELDED RING PROP CO B R [lEs a
SUsPARCEL” 2121 W 117 ST H 4
REBERRF CLEVELAND, OH. 44111 Ex Rr [|E® o
< i
TENR RIGHT = H
SadENs al
o ] NOTE: w7
REFER TO SPECIFICATION
P> A 011000-SUMMARY OF WORK
ACCESS PATH Q/ 021-18-004. FOR SUGGESTED SEQUENCE
ok HD DEVELOPMENT OF MARYLAND INC OF WORK
11901 BEREARD
o CLEVELAND, OH. 44111
LAYDOWN AREA 0¥




RESOQLUTION NO. 2024-32

LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR ACCESS AND LAYDOWN AREAS TO SUPPORT
THE WEST 117™ BRIDGE REMABILITATION PROJECT (RTA DEVELOPMENT
FUND, ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) has
undertaken a major construction project to rehabilitate the West 117" Bridge (“Construction
Site™) located in Cleveland and Lakewood, Ohio; and

WHEREAS, NeoGraf Solutions, LLC (*NeoGraf') owns a parcel of real estate adjacent to
the construction site and located at 11709 Madison Avenue, Lakewood, Ohio, 44107 (“NeoGraf
Froperty”) which provides a connection from Madison Avenue to GCRTA's rail right of way and
the Construction Site: and

WHEREAS, the Authority has proposed a License Agreement with NeoGraf for access
to the Construction Site and for laydown areas on the NeoGraf Property to ensure access to the
Construction Site for the Authority and its contractor, Suburban Maintenance and Constructions,
inc.; and

WHEREAS, the Authority and NeoGraf wish to enter into a License Agreement for a
term commencing May 18, 2024 and ending December 31, 2025 at a rate of $3,000.00 per
month for a total amount not to exceed $58,400.00.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is heraby
authorized to enter into a license agreement with NeoGraf for access to the Construction Site
and for laydown areas on the NeoGraf Property for the peried commencing May 18, 2024 and
ending December 31, 2025.

Section 2. That the fees owed under the License Agreement shall be payable from the
RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but
not limited to Capital Grant OM-2021-050-337, in an amount not to exceed $58 400.00
($46,720.00 in federal funds, which represents 80% of total cost).

Section 3. That said agreement shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon appropriation of funds and upon compliance by NeoGraf with the terms and
conditions of the agreement, bonding and insurance requirements, and all applicable laws
refating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: April 16, 2024
President

Altest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100~ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIFTION; Resolution No.:
2024-33
LEASE: PORTION OF PROPERTY AT THE HAYDEN DISTRICT | Date:
GARAGE, 1661 HAYDEN AVENUE, EAST CLEVELAND, :
April 11, 2024
OHIO 44112 —
Initiator:
LESSEE: CENTURY FEDERAL CREDIT UNION, AN OHIO NOT Programming &
FOR PROFIT FINANCIAL COOPERATIVE Planning
TERM: TWO YEARS WITH AN OPTION TO EXTEND THE TERM
FOR ONE ADDITIONAL YEAR
RENT: $3,000 PER YEAR
ACTION REQUEST:
B Approval [ Review/Comument [ Information Only £ Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution seeks approval to renew a lease between the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) and Century Federal Credit Union
("Century”), an Ohio not for profit financial cooperative, for the operation and maintenance of
the existing 570 square foot office property located at the Hayden District Garage (the "Leased
Premises").

+ The Leased Premises consists of office space and a credit union branch in the Hayden
District Garage located at 1661 Hayden Avenue in the City of East Cleveland,
Cuyahoga County, Ohio 44112 and further known as Cuyahoga County Permanant
Parcel Number 671-07-002.

+ Century also owns, operates and maintains an ATM at the Leased Premises for use by
Autherity employees.

+ The term of the lease will be for two years with an option to extend the term for one
additional year on the same terms and conditions.

» The rent will increase from $2,800 to $3,000 per year.

* Century has provided proof of insurance.

« The Authority has the right to cancel the lease at any time and for any reason.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Leased Premises are a portion of the Hayden District
Garage. Century currently occupies the Leased Premises to provide banking services
exclusively for Hayden District employees and their families.

Section 470.03 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Autherity provides that leases permitting continuous use of Authority property for more
than 3 years must be approved by the Board of Trustees. Century has occupied the |eased
Premises since March 1, 2018 under successive three-year leases,

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUNLD: Does not apply.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: The proposed lease is consistent with tha Real Estate Policies of the
Authority.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: Rental income will be $3,000.00 per year, representing a 7% increase

aver the previous term.




Staff Summary & Comments 2024-33
Century Federal Credit Unjon Lease at Hayden Garage
Page 2

7.0  ALTERNATIVES: Decline to approve the Lease, in which case the current lease will expire on

April 30, 2024, Century wouild have to vacate the property and close the branch that serves
Hayden District employees.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the proposed Lease,
9.0 ATTACHMENT: A, Proposed Lease

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

o fm/ A&/j’_ﬁ

~ Baneral Manager, b’ﬁtef é'xé’cuf'v%@ﬁc




ATTACHMENT “A”

PROPOSED LEASE



BASIC LEASE INFORMATION

Date:  May 1, 2024

Landlord: Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

Tenant: CENTURY FEDERAL CREDIT UNION

Trade Name: N/A

Premises: Number and Street: 1661 Hayden Avenue

City: East Cleveland
County; Cuyahoga
State: Ohio

LENGTH OF TERM. Two (2) Years with one (1) year extension option

COMMENCEMENT DATE: May 1, 2024

BASE RENT: $3,000.00 per year, payable in 12 monthly instaliments of $250

SECURITY DEPOSIT, $0

LANDLORD'S ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

With a copy to!

LANDLORD'S ADDRESS FOR PAYMENTS;

TENANT'S ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

GUARANTOR; N/A

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority

1240 West 6" Street

Clevaland, OH 44113

Aftention: Property Manager

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Althority

1240 West 61 Straet

Cleveland, OH 44113

General Counsel, Deputy Generat Manager

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
1240 West 81 Streat

Cleveland, OH 44113

Attention: Department of Accounting

Century Federal Credit Union
1240 East 9 Street
Cleveland, Ohio 44199

The Basic Lease Information is part of the Lease; however, if any of the Basic Lease information contradicts
any provision of the Lease, the provisions of the Lease will prevail.

{0R401662 -2}

Page 1 of 29



LEASE

This Lease is made as of May 1, 2024, by the GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY, a political subdivision organized under Ohio Revised Cade Chapter 306,
whose principal business office is located at 1240 West 6" Sireet, Cleveland, Ohio, 44113
("Landlord”), and CENTURY FEDERAL CREDIT UNION, an Qhio not for profit financial
cooperative, whose principal business office is located at 1240 East 9 Street, Cleveland, Ohio
44199 ("Tenant").

1. AGREEMENT TO LLEASE

Landlord leases the Premises to Tenant, and Tenant leases the Premises from Landlord,
according to the provisions of this Lease.

2. PREMISES

The Premises include approximately 570 square feet of office space in the Hayden District
Garage and are part of that certain building located at 1661 Hayden Avenue, in the City of East
Cleveland, Cuyahoga County, Ohio (the “Building").

The Premises are more particularly described in "Exhibit A" attached hereto and made a
part of this Lease. Tenant accepts the Premises described in Exhibit "A" in an “AS 1S" condition
without warranty by Landlord of any kind or nature, express or implied.

3. TERM

A. Commencement Date. The term of this Lease will be two (2) years, beginning on
May 1, 2024 (the "Commencement Date") and expiring on April 30, 2026. Tenant shail have the
right to one (1) one-year extension of the terms of this lease by giving thirty (30) days written
notice prior to the expiration of the eriginal terms,

B. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, Landlord reserves the right to cancel
the Lease at any time and for any reason,

C. Possession. if for any reason Landiord cannot deliver possession of the Premises
to Tenant on the Commencement Date,

i. this Lease will not be void or voidabie,

if. Landlord will not be liable to Tenant for any resultant loss or damage, and

iil, unless Landlord is not able to deliver possession of the Premises to Tenant
on the Commencement Date because of Tenant's delays, Rent (hersinafter
defined) will be waived for the period between the Commencement Date
and the date on which Landlord delivers possession of the Premises to
Tenant.

No delay in delivery of possession of the Premises will extend the term.

{2401662 -2} Fage 2 of 29



4, RENT

A. Payment. Tenant will pay Landlord the annual rent in the equal consecutive
monthly instaliments stated in Exhibit "B" attached hereto and made a part hereof on or before
the first day of each month during the term of this Lease {the "Base Rent”). The Base Rent will be
paid in advance at the address specified for Landlord in the Basic Lease Information, or such
other place as Landlord designates, without prior demand and without any abatement, deduction
or setoff. The obligation to pay Rent is an independent, unconditioned covenant. [f the
Commencement Date occurs on a day other than the first day of a calendar month, or if the
expiration date occurs on a day other than the last day of a calendar month, then the Base Rent
for such fractional month will be prorated on a daily basis.

B. Additional Charges. Commencing on the Commencement Date, Tenant will pay
to Landlord without deduction or offset all amounts which this Lease requires Tenant to pay (the
‘Additional Charges”, and together with the Base Rent, the "Rent"), at the place where the Base
Rent is payable. Landlord wilt have the same remedies for a default in the payment of Additional
Charges as it has for default in the payment of Base Rent.

C. Late Payment. |f Tenant fails to pay any Rent on the date due and payable, such
unpaid amount will be subject to a late payment charge equal to the greater of: (i) five percent
(5%) of such unpaid amounts; or (i) Two Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($200.00). This late
payment charge is intended to compensate Landlord for its additional administrative costs
resulting from Tenant's failure, and has been agreed upon by Landlord and Tenant, after
negotiation, as a reasonable estimate of the additional administrative cost which will be incurred
by Landlord as a result of Tenant's failure. The actual cost in each inslance is extremely difficult,
if not impossible, to determine. This late payment charge will constitute liquidated damages and
will be paid to Landlord together with such unpaid amounts. The payment of this late payment
charge will not constitute a waiver by Landlord of any default by Tenant under this Lease.

D. Periodic Adjustment. Rent {o be adjusted in accordance with Exhibit “B"
attached.

E. Security Deposit. The Security Deposit shall be held by Landlord, without liability
for interest, as security for the timely performance by Tenant of all the terms of this Lease which
are to be observed and performed by Tenant. Landlord shall not be obligated to hold the Security
Deposit as a separate fund and may commingle the Security Deposit with other funds. If any sum
payable by Tenant to Landlord is unpaid, including, but not limited to, utility charges, Taxes and
Tenant's proportionate share of Landlord's Insurance, or if Landlord makes payments on behalf
of Tenant, or performs any of Tenant’s obligations under this Lease, then Landlord may, at its
option and without prejudice to any other remedy which Landlord may have on account thereof,
apply the Security Deposit as may be necessary to compensate Landlord toward the payment of
the sum payable by Tenant to Landlord for loss or damage sustained by Landlord due to such
breach on the part of Tenant, and Tenant shall, upon demand, restore the Security Deposit to the
original sum deposited. If Tenant complies with all of the terms of this Lease, the Security Deposit
shall be returned to Tenant within ninety (20) days following the expiration or earlier termination
of this Lease, less any sums payable by Tenant to Landlord.

5. TAXES

A. Obligation for Payment. Unless Landlord has exercised its rights pursuant to
paragraph 5 F, Tenant will pay all taxes directly to the taxing authority, including without fimitation

{02401662 2] Page 3 of 29



real estate and personal property taxes and assessments assessed, levied, confirmed, or
imposed during the term of this Lease (other than net income taxes) (collectively, “Taxes”)
whether or not now customary or within the contemplation of Landiord and Tenant:

i, upon, measured by, or reasonably attributable to the cost or valle of
Tenant's equipment, furniture, fixtures, and other personal property located
in the Premises or by the cost or vaiue of any leasehold improvements
made in or to the Premises by or for Tenant regardiess of whether title to
suich improvements is in Tenant or Landlord:

il upon or measured by the Base Rent, including without limitation any gross
receipts tax or excise tax levied by the federal government or any other
governmental body with respect to the receipt of Base Rent;

i, upen or with respect to the possession, leasing, operation, management,
maintenance, alteration, repair, use, or occupancy by Tenant of the
Premises or any portion of the Premises;

v. upon this transaction or any document to which Tenant is a party creating
or transferring an interest or an estate in the Premises;

V. upon the Premises and all personal property, furniture, fixtures, and
equipment, and all replacements, improvements, or additions to them,
whether owned by Landlord or Tenant; and

Vi, impositions based in whole or in part on Base Rent, whether made in
addition to or in substitution for any other Taxes,

B. Taxes Payable in Instaliments. Unless Landlord has exercised its rights under
paragraph 5 F, and if, by law, any Taxes may at the option of the taxpayer be paid in installments
{whether or not interest accrues on the unpaid balance of such Taxes), Tenant may exercise the
option to pay the Taxes (and any accrued interest on the unpaid balance of such Taxes) in
installments. In such event, Tenant will pay such installments as they become due during the
term of this Lease and before any fine, penalty, further interest or cost may be added to them.

C. Taxes for Period other than Term. Any Taxes, including Taxes which have been
converted into instaliment payments, relating to a fiscal period of the taxing authority, a part of
which period is included within the term and a part of which is included in a period of time prior to
the commencement or after the end of the term, will, whether or not such Taxes or instaliments
are assessed, levied, confirmed, imposed upon or in respect of, or become a lien upon the
Premises, or become payable, during the term, be adjusted between Landiord and Tenant as of
the commencement or end of the term, so that Tenant will pay that portion of such Taxes or
installment which that part of such fiscal period included in the term bears to such fiscal period,
and Landlord will pay the remainder.

D. Other Impositions. Tenant will not be obligated to pay local, state, or federal net
income taxes assessed against Landlord; local, state, or federal capital levy of Landlord; or sales,
excise, franchise, gift, estate, succession, inheritance, or transfer taxes of Landiord,

E. Right to Contest Taxes. Tenant will have the right to contest the amount or
vakdity, in whale or in part, of any Taxes by appropriate proceedings diligently conducted in good

{02401662 -2} Page 4 of 29



faith, only after paying such Taxes or posting such security as Landlord may reasonably require
in order to protect the Premises against loss or forfeiture. Upon the termination of any such
proceedings, Tenant will pay the amount of such Taxes or part of such Taxes as finally
determined, the payment of which may have been deferred during the prosecution of such
proceedings, together with any costs, fees, interest, penalties, or other related labilities. Landtord
will not be required to join in any such contest or proceedings unless the provisions of any law or
regulations then in effect will require that such proceedings be brought by or in the name of
lLandiord. if required, Landlord wili join in such proceedings or permit them to be brought in its
name; however, Landlord will not be subjected to any liability for the payment of any costs or
axpenses in connection with any such contaest or proceedings, and Tenant will indemnify Landlord
against and save Landlord harmless from any such costs and expenses,

F. Estimated Payments. If Landlord elects to do so, then, in each December during
the term or as soon after December as practicable, Landiord will give Tenant written notice of its
estimate of the Taxes payable under paragraph 5 A for the ensuing calendar year. On or before
the first day of each month during the ensuing calendar year, Tenant will pay to Landlord one-
twelfth (1/12) of such estimated amounts; however, if such notice is not given in December,
Tenant will continue to pay on the basis of the prior year's estimate untit the month after such
notice is given. If at any time or times it appears to Landlord that the Taxes payable under
paragraph 5 A for the current calendar year will vary from its estimate by more than ten percent
(10%), Landiord wiil, by written notice to Tenant, revise its estimate for such year, and subsequent
payments by Tenant for such year will be based upon such revised estimate.

G, Final Setflement. If Landlord has exercised its rights pursuant to paragraph 5 F,
then within ninety (90) days after the close of each calendar year or as soon after such ninety (80)
day period as practicable, Landlord will deliver to Tenant a statement of amounts payable under
paragraph 5 A for such calendar year prepared by certified public accountants designated by
Landlord, or prepared by Landlord and certified by one of its officers, and such certified statement
will be final and binding upon Landlord and Tenant, If such statement shows an amount owing by
Tenant that is less than the estimated payments previously made by Tenant for such calendar
year, the statement will be accompanied by a refund of the excess by Landlord to Tenant. If such
statement shows an amount owing by Tenant that is more than the estimated payments
previously made by Tenant for such calendar year, Tenant will pay the deficiency to Landlord
within thirty (30) days after the delivery of such statement.

6. UTILITIES

Landlord will provide sewer, water, gas, electricity, light, heat, and storm water management fo
the Premises during the term, without cost to Tenant. in no event shall Landlord be liable for the
quality, quantity, failure or interruption of any of the foregoing utility services to the Premises.

7. INSURANCGE AND WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

A. Tenant's Insurance., Tenant shall obtain and maintain for the life of this Lease
the following minimum insurance coverage. [f Tenant retains a contractor or subcontractor to
perform work at or on the Premises, Tenant shall also be responsible for assuring that each of its
contractors or subcontractors, and anyone employed directly or indirectly by any contractor or
subcontractor, provides adequate insurance for the work performed or products supplied by it.

Approval by Landlord. Approval of the insurance by Landlord shall not relieve or decrease
the lability of Tenant hereunder. It is to be understood that Landlord does not in any way

{02401652 -2} FPage 5 of 29



represent that the insurance or the limits of insurance specified herein are sufficient or adequate
to protect Tenant's interests or liabilities. An insurance company having less than an A-X rating
by The A, M. Best Company will not be considered acceptable. All certificates are subject to
acceptance by Landiord. Landlord shall be entitled to receive a full copy of the insurance
policy(ies) upan request and reserves the right to review financial statements and approve any
deductibles or SIR. Landlord has the right to adjust the limits and coverage of all such insurance
during the term of this Lease.

If Tenart neglects, refuses or fails to provide the insurance required under this Lease, or
if such insurance is cancelled for any reason, Landlord shall have the right but not the duty to
procure the same, and the cost thereof shall be due and payable as Additionat Charges together
with Base Rent.

Landiord reserves the right to request a copy of all policies and endorsements prescribed
herein.

i Commercial General Liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000
combined single limit each occurrence for bodily injury and/or property
damage arising out of the maintenance, use or occupancy of the Premises.
Such insurance will contain a provision that Landlord, although named as
an additional insured, will nevertheless be entitled to recover under the
policy for any loss, injury, or damage to Landlord, its agents, officers, and
employees, or the property of such persons. Such insurance will also, to
the extent obtainable, provide that no act or omission of Tenant which
would otherwise result in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance will affect
or limit the obligation of the insurance company to pay the amount of any
loss sustained. Policy to include:

(1)  Fire Legal Liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000.

(2) Contractual liability coverage insuring the indemnification provision
contained in paragraph 18 of this Lease.

(3) Landlord will accept any combination of primary CGL and Excess
or Umbreila policies to meet the minimum coverage requirements
above.

ii. Business Automobile Liability Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000
combined single limit each accident for bodily injury and/or property
damage. Said policy shall apply to alt owned, leased, hired and non-owned
vehicles used in connection with the Premises.

fii. Statutory Workers' Compensation coverage in compliance with  all
applicable state workers' compensation laws fo cover all employses
furnishing labor under the terms of this Lease and under the control of
Tenant. Employers’ Liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 per
accident / $1,000,000 per employee for disease will also be included, gither
under the Workers' Compensation policy or under the Commercial General
liability policy (Stop Gap) referenced under a. above, In Ohio, a copy of a
certificate of premium payment from the Industrial commission and Bureau

(02401662 -2} Page 6 of 29



B.

{02401662 -2}

of Workers Compensation, or a copy of the Certificate of Employer's Right
to Pay Compensation Directly.

Property Insurance written on a “Special Form” or equivalent basis in the

full ameunt of the replacement cost of any improvements and betterments

added by Tenant and contents now or after this date located on the
Premises estimated at $200,000.00. The coverage will be on a
replacement cost basis.

Property insurance shall include, without limitation, insurance against the
perils of fire (with extended coverage) and physical loss or damage
including, without duplication of coverage, theft, vandalism, malicious
mischief, debris removal including demolition occasioned by enforcement
of any applicable legal requirements. This property insurance shall apply
to the improvements and betterments and contemts of the Premises.

Employee Dishonesty/Crime Insurance. An Employee Dishonesty
insurance policy covering Tenant's employees for loss of or damage to
money, securities or other property resulting from theft, forgery or
alteration, computer fraud, or funds transfer, The following limits of liability
should apply. (a) Employee Dishonesty - $2,000,000; and (b) Client
Property Blanket Bond - $2,000,000. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for
any and all losses within the deductible, for insured losses, the cost to prove
the loss, accountants' fees, defense costs including attorneys’ fees and any
other fees associated with a claim. In lieu of a Client Property Blanket Bond,
the policy shall contain a Joint Loss Payee endorsement or other Third
Party coverage naming Landlord.

General Requirements: Tenant shall not enter or utilize the Premises untit it has
obtained the required insurance and has received written approval of such insurance by Landlord.
Tenant shall furnish evidence of such insurance in the form of a certificate (Accord or similar
form). The certificate shall provide the following:

The policy shall be written on an occurrence basis. If any insurance
specified above is written on a "Claims Made" (rather than an “occurrence”
basis), then, in addition, to the coverage requirements stated herein,
Tenant shall:

(1) Ensure that the Retroactive Date is shown on the policy, and such
date shall be before the Commencemeant Date of this Lease.

(2) Maintain and provide evidence of similar insurance for at least three
(3) years following the termination of this Lease; and

(3) If insurance is cancelled or non-renewed and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to
the Commencement Date of this Lease, Tenant shall purchase
‘extended repaorting” coverage for a minimum of three (3) years
after termination of this Lease,

Page 7 of 29



ii, Name Landlord as an additional insured for all fability coverage under
paragraph 7 A i (Commercial General Liability) and paragraph 7 A i
{Business Automobile Liability) above for claims arising out of operations
in conjunction with this Lease.

i, Contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of Landlord.

iv. Specify that the insurance is primary and non-contributory as respects any
insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by Landiord.

V. Contain a specific reference to the subject Lease.
vi. Specify all deductibles & Self-Insured Retentions (SIR), as applicable.

i, In the event the insurance should be changed or ¢cancelled, such change,
or cancellation shall not be effective until 15 days after Landlord has
received written notice of such change or cancellation from Tenant. Such
notice shall be mailed by certified mail, retumn receipt requested, fo
Landlord's Property Manager,

vii.  An insurance company having less than an A-X rating by The A, M. Best
Company will not be considered acceptable. All certificates are subject to
acceptance by the Landlord. The Landlord shall be entitled to recaive a full
copy of the insurance policy(ies) upon request and reserves the right to
review financial statements and approve any deductibles or SIR.

C. Landlord's Insurance. Landlord shall carry property insurance coverage on the
Building only ("Landlord's Insurance”), Tenant agrees that Tenant shall pay its proportionate
share of Landlord's Insurance, which may include the cost of insuring or providing additional
coverage for any deductibles; provided, however, that Tenant shall have no rights in said policy
or policies maintained by Landlord and shall not, by reason of such reimbursement, be entitled to
be a named insured thereunder. Tenant's proportionate share of Landlord's Insurance shall be
Additional Charges due under this Lease,

D. Waiver of Subrogation. With respect to first party property insurance, Landiord
and Tenant waive all rights to recover against each other or against the officers, directors,
shareholders, partners, joint ventures, employees, agents, customers, invitees, or business
visitors of each other for any loss or damage arising from any cause covered by any insurance
required to be carried by each of them pursuant to paragraph 7 or any other insurance or self-
insurance plan actually carried by each of them. Landiord and Tenant will cause their respective
insurers to issue appropriate waiver of subrogation rights endorsements to all policies of
insurance carried in connection with the Building or the Premises or the contents of either of them.

8. USES

A, Lawful Use Only. Tenant shall use the Premises for the purpose of operating a
credit union on a non-profit basis, which will not be accessible to the general public and which will
operate solely for the benefit of current and former employees of the Landlord (the “Permitted
Use"). Tenant shall not use or occupy, or permit any portion of the Premises to be used or
occupied,

{02401862 -2} FPage 8 of 29



i, in violation of any law, ordinance, order, rule, regulation, certificate of
occupancy, or other governmental requirement, or

i, for any disreputable business or purpose, or

i, in any manner or for any business or purpose that would increase the risks
of fire or other hazards, or that would in any way violate, suspend, void, or
increase the rate of fire or liability or any other insurance of any kind at any
time carried by Landtord upon all or any part of the Building in which the
Premises are located; or

iv. for any purpose other than permitted herein without the express written
consent of the Landlord.

Tenant will comply with all laws, ordinances, orders, rules, reguiations, and other
governmental requirements relating to the use, condition, or occupancy of the Premises, and all
rutes, orders, regulations, and reguirements of the board of fire underwriters or insurance service
office, or any other similar body, having jurisdiction over the Building in which the Premises are
located. Any increase in the cost of any insurance carried by Landiord attributable to Tenant's
activities, property, or improvements in the Premises or Tenant's failure to perform and observe
its obligations and covenants under this Lease will be payable by Tenant to Landlord, from time
to time, on demand. A schedule or "make-up" of rates for the Premises or Building of which the
Premises are a part issued by the body making its fire insurance rates will be, as between
Landlord and Tenant, conclusive evidence of the facts stated in it and of the items and charges
in the fire insurance rates then applicable. The final judgment of any court, or the admission of
Tenant, that Tenant has violated any law or requirement of governmental or insurance authorities
affecting the Premises or Building of which the Premises are a part will be conclusive evidence of
such violation as between Landlord and Tenant.

B. Right to Contest. Tenant will have the right to contest by appropriate proceedings
diligently conducted in good faith in the name of Tenant, or, with the prior consent of Landlord, in
the name of Landlord, or both, without cost or expense to Landiord, the validity or application of
any law, ordinance, order, rule, regulation or legal requirement of any nature. If compliance with
any such law, ordinance, order, rule, regulation, or requirement may legally be delayed pending
the prosecution of any proceeding without incurring any lien, charge, or liability of any kind against
the Premises, or Tenant's interest in the Premises, and without subjecting Tenant or Landlord to
any habifity, civil or criminal, for failure so to comply, Tenant may delay compliance until the final
determination of such proceeding. Even if such lien, charge, or liability may be incurred by reason
of any such delay, Tenant may so contest and delay, so long as

I such contest or delay does not subject Landlord to criminal liability, and

ii. Tenant furnishes to Landlord security, reasonably satisfactory to Landiord,
against any loss or injury by reason of any contest or delay.

Landlord will not be required to join any proceedings referred to in this paragraph unless
the provision of any applicable taw, rule, or regulation at the time in effect reguires that such
proceedings be brought by or in the name of Landlord, or both. In that event Landlord will join the
proceadings or permit them to be brought in its name if Tenant pays all related expenses.

02401662 -2) Page 9 of 29



C. Assignment and Subleasing. Tenant shall not assign this Lease or sublease the
Premises without the prior written consent of Landlord, which consent may be withheld in
Landlord’s sole discretion. Notwithstanding any assignment or subletting of the Premises, neither
Tenant nor Guarantor, if any, shall be released from any obligations, liabilities or covenants under
this Lease. Landlord shall have the right to accept or collect Rent from any assignee, subtenant
or other occupant for the account of Tenant without being deemed to have consented to an
assignment or other transfer; without releasing Tenant or waiving any right against Tenant; and
without accepting the payor as a permitted tenant, Any request for Landlord’s consent hereunder
shall be accompanied by payment of kEight Hundred Fifty and 00/100 Dollars ($850.00) for
Landlord’s administrative and attorneys' fees relating thereto.

D. Operating Covenant. Tenant shall keep the Premises open and operating for
business on Monday, Wednesday and Friday between 9:00 AM - 5:00 PM or on a schedule
mutually agreeable to Tenant and Landlord. Tenant will continuously operate its business therain
with diligence, fully staffed and stocked. Due to the difficulty or impossibility of determining
Landlord’s damages resulting from Tenant's failure to open timely or continuously aperate, should
Tenant at any time vacate, abandon, or desert the Premises or cease operating its business
therein for a period in excess of ten {10) consecutive days per calendar year, then Landlord shall
have, in addition to all other remedies, the right to collect not only the Base Rent and Additional
Charges, but also liquidated damages at the rate of Five Hundred and 00/100 Doltars {$500.00)
per day, for each and every day the Premises is not open for business.

9. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

Tenant will, at its sole cost and expense, maintain and keep the Premises in good repair,
including an ATM machine within the leased Premises, and will maintain said premises in a clean,
safe, secure and atiractive condition. All such repairs will be in quality and class equal to the
original work or instaltations. If Tenant fails to maintain and make such repairs, Landlord may
make them at the expense of Tenant and such expense will be collectible as Additional Charges
and will be paid by Tenant within fifteen (15) days after delivery of a statement for such expenses.
Notwithstanding the obligations assumed by Tenant under this paragraph, Landlord will retain at
its sole cost and expense the ohligation of replacing the foundation, roof, furnace, hoiler, central
air conditioning compressor and evaporator, and structural exterior walls when Landiord finds that
the need for such replacements are not the result of Tenant's failure to properly maintain and
repair or must be replaced because of a casualty.

10.  ALTERATIONS

Tenant wilt not make any alterations, additions, or improvements to the Premises without
Landlord's prior written consent, which consent Landlord may withhold in its sole discretion:
however, Landlord's prior written consent will not be necessary for any alteration, addition, or
improvement which:

A. costs less than Five Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($5,000.00) inciuding labor and
materials;

B. involves interior remodeling or changes which do not structurally change or modify
the Premises;

C. is made with due diligence, in a good and workmanlike manner and in compliance
with all laws; and

{02401662 -2} Page 10 of 29



i, is promptly and fully paid for by Tenant.

Any such alteration or improvement which costs more than Five Thousand and 00/100 Dollars
($5,000.00) shall be made under the supervision of an architect or engineer satisfactory to
Landlord and in accordahce with plans and épecifications and coét estimates approved by
Landlord,

Landlard may designate a supervising architect to assure compliance with the provisions
of this paragraph, and if it does, Tenant shall pay the supervising architect's charges. Subject ta
Tenant's rights in paragraph 12, all alterations, additions, fixtures, and improvements, whether
temporary or permanent in character, made in or upon the Premises by Tenant, will immediately
become Landlord's property and, at the end of the term of this Lease will remain on the Premises
without compensation to Tenant. By notice given to Tenant no less than ninety (90) days prior to
the end of this Lease, Landlord may require that any alterations, additions, fixtures and
improvements made in or upon the Premises be removed by Tenant. In that event, Tenant will
remove such alterations, additions, fixtures and improvements at Tenant's sole cost and will
restore the Premises to the condition in which they were before such alterations, additions and
improvements were made, reasonable wear and tear excepted,

11. MECHANICS’ LIENS

Tenant will pay or cause to be paid all costs and charges for work done by it or caused to
be done by it, in or to the Premises, and for all materials furnished for or in connection with such
work. Tenant will indemnify Landlord against and hold Landlord harmiess from all liabilities, liens,
claims, and demands on account of such work. If any such lien is fifed against the Premises,
Tenant will cause such fien to be discharged of record within ten (10) days after the filing of such
lien. If Tenant desires to contest such a lien, it will furnish Landiord, within such ten (10) day
period, proof of a court approved security amount deposited with the court pending final judgment
of any such contest, If a final non-appealable judgment establishing the validity or existence of a
lien for any amount is entered, Tenant will satisfy it at once. If Tenant fails to pay any charge for
which such a lien has been filed, and does not give Landlord such security, Landlord may, at its
option, pay such charge and related costs and interest, and the amount so paid, together with
reasonable attorneys' fees incurred in connection with it, will be immediately due from Tenant to
Landlord as Additional Charges. Nothing contained in this Lease is the consent or agreement of
Landlord to subject Landlord's interest in the Premises to liability under any lien law. if either
Landlord or Tenant receives notice that a lien has been or is about to be filed against the
Premises, or that any action affecting title to the Premises has been commenced on account of
work done by or for Tenant or {aber or materials furnished to or for Tenant, it will immediately give
the other written notice of such notice, At least fifteen (15) days prior to the commencement of
any work (including without limitation any maintenance, repairs, alterations, additions,
improvements, or installations which cost in excess of Five Thousand and 00/100 Dollars
($5,000.00)) in or to the Premises, by or for Tenant, Tenant will give Landlord written notice of the
proposed work and the names and addresses of the persons supplying labor and materiais for
the proposed work. Landlord will have the right to post notices of non-responsibility or similar
notices on the Premises in order to protect the Premises against any such liens.

12. SURRENDER OF PREMISES
At the end of this Lease, Tenant will surrender the Premises in good order and condition,

ordinary wear and tear excepted. If Tenant is not then in default, Tenart may remove from the
Premises any trade fixtures, equipment, and movable furniture placed in the Premises by Tenant,

(02401662 -2} Page 11 of 29



whether or not such trade fixtures or equipment are fastened to the Building. Tenant will not
remove any irade fixtures or equipment without Landlord's prior written consent if such trade
fixtures or equipment are used in the operation of the Buliding or if the removal of such fixtures or
equipment will impair the structure of the Building. Whether or not Tenant is then in default,
Tenant will remove such alterations, additions, improvements, trade fixtures, equipment, and
furniture as Landlord has requested in accordance with paragraph 10. Tenant will fully repair any
damage occasioned by the removal of any trade fixtures, equipment, furniture, alterations,
additions, and improvements. All trade fixtures, equipment, furniture, alterations, additions, and
improvements not so removed will conclusively be deemed to have been abandoned by Tenant
and may be appropriated, sold, stored, destroyed, or otherwise disposed of by Landlord without
notice to Tenant or to any other person and without obligation to account for them. Tenant will
pay Landlord alt expenses incurred in connection with Landlord's disposition of such property,
including without limitation the cost of repairing any damage to the Building or Premises caused
by removat of such property. Tenant's obligation to ohserve and perform this covenant will survive
the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

13.  ABANDONMENT AND HOLDOVER

If Tenant remains in possession of the Premises after the expiration or earlier termination
of this Lease, Tenant shall be bound by the terms and provisions of this Lease except that no
tenancy or interest in the Premises shall result, but such holding over shall be an unlawful detainer
and all such parties shall be subject to immediate eviction, and Tenant shall (with no additional
notice required by Landlord) pay to Landlord, as liquidated damages, a sum equal to one hundred
fifty percent (150%) of the Base Rent payable during the calendar month immediately preceding
the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease for any period during which Tenant shall hold
the Premises after the stipulated term of this Lease shall expire or may have terminated. If Tenant
vacates the Premises prior to the scheduled expiration of the term of this Lease, Tenant shall be
in default of this Lease, and if Tenant has not re-entered the Premises and resumed the operation
of the business set forth in paragraph 8 A of this Lease within the next thirty (30) consecutive
days, Tenant shall be deemed to have abandoned the Premises, and Landlord shall have the
right, but not the obligation, to take sole possession of the Premises on or after the tenth (10th)
day following the expiration of said thirty (30) day period and Landlord may relet said Premises in
accordance with the terms in paragraph 21 B hereof.

14. DAMAGE TO PREMISES

In the event that the Building or improvements now located on the Premises shall be so
damaged or injured from any cause whatever during the term of this Lease so as to render
untenantable all or any substantial part of the Premises, and if in the judgment of Landlord and
Tenant the Premises cannot within ninety (90) days be restored to their condition prior to such
damage or injury, then Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease as of the date of the
damage or injury by giving notice in writing to Landlord within thirty (30) days after such damage
or injury. A condition for the exercise of the right to termination by Tenant, shall be the enforceable
assignment to Landlord of Tenant's interests in all insurance proceeds payable as a result of said
damage or injury, exclusive of insurance proceeds relating to damage or injury to property
removabie by Tenant under the provisions of paragraph 12 and business interruption coverage
proceeds. Base Rent and Additional Charges due hereunder shall be prorated and paid as of the
date of said damage or injury. If the period of time agreed upon by the parties shall be in excess
of ninety (90) days, and Tenant shall not have elected, as aforesaid, to terminate this Lease, then
this Lease may not be terminated on account of such damage or injury, and the parties shall
pursuant to paragraph 9 repair, reconstruct, or restore the Premises to a condition equivalent to

(02401662 -2} Page 12 of 29



that of their former condition. The parties shall share pro rata in the proceeds of insurance in
proportion to their respective actual costs of the work.

15.  CONDEMNATION

A, Total Taking. If, by exercise of the right of eminent domain or by convevance
made in response {0 the threat of the exercise of such right (in either case, a "Taking"), all of the
Premises are taken, or if so much of the Premises are taken that the Premises (even if the
restorations described in paragraph 15 B were to be made) cannot be used by Tenant for the
Permitted Use, this Lease will end on the earlier of the vesting of title to the Premises in the
condemning authority, or the taking of possession of the Premises by the condemning authority
(in either case, the "Ending Date”). If the L.ease ends according to this paragraph 15 A, Rent will
be appropriately prorated to the Ending Date. The award in a Taking subject to this paragraph 15
A will be allocated according to paragraph 15 D,

B. Partial Taking. If, after a Taking, so much of the Premises remains that the
Premises can he used for the Permitted Use:

i this Lease will end on the Ending Date as to the part of the Premises which
is taken,

ii. Rent will be appropriately aliocated to the part of the Premises which is
taken and prorated to the Ending Date,

i, beginning on the day after the Ending Date, Rent for so much of the
FPremises as remains will be reduced in the proportion of the area of the
Premises remaining after the Taking to the area of the Premises before the
Taking,

iv. at its cost, Landlord will restore so much of the Premises as remains to a
sound architectural unit substantially suitable for the Permitted Use, using
good workmanship and new first class materials. Landiord's duty to so
restore shall not exiend to non-structural or interior walls or interior
surfaces, nor {o trade fixtures or equipment installed or used by Tenant. All
other costs for restoration shall be the obligation of Tenant,

V. upon the completion of restoration according to clause (iv), Landlord wiil
pay Tenant the lesser of the net award made to Landlord on account of the
Taking (after deducting from the total award aitorneys', appraisers' and
other costs incurred in conneaction with obtaining the award, and amounts
paid to the holders of mortgages affecting the Premises), or Tenant's actual
out-of-pocket cost of restoring the Premises, and

vi. Landiord will keep the balance of the net award.

C. Tenant's Award. In connection with any Taking subject to paragraph 15 A or 15
B, Tenant may prosecute its own claim by separate proceedings against the condemning authority
for damages legally due to it (such as the loss of fixtures which Tenant was entitled to remove,
and moving expenses) only so long as Tenant's award does not diminish or otherwise adversely
affect Landiord's award.

(02401662 -2} Page 13 of 29



D. Allocation of an Award for a Total Taking. If this Lease ends according to
paragraph 15 A, the condemnation award will be paid in the order in this paragraph 15 D to the
extent it is sufficient:

i. First, Landlord will be reimbursed for its attorneys' fees, appraisal fees, and
other costs incurred in prosecuting the claim for the award.,

i Second, Landlord will be paid compensation for lost Rent,

iil. Third, Tenant will be paid its adjusted book value as of the date of the
Taking of its improvements (excluding trade fixtures) made to the
Premises. In computing its adjusted book value, improvements will be
conclusively presumed to have been depreciated or amortized for federal
income tax purposes over their useful lives with a reasonable salvage
value.

iv. Fourth, the balance will be divided equally between Landiord and Tenant.
18. SUBORDINATION AND ATTORNMENT

A. This Lease and Tenant's rights under this Lease are subject and subordinate to
any conveyances made by Landlord as a part of any public/private joint venture, any ground lease
ar underlying lease, first mortgage, first deed of trust or other first lien, encumbrance or indenture,
together with any renewals, extensions, modifications, consolidations, and replacements of them,
which now or at any subsequent time affect the Premises or any interest of Landlord in the
Premises or Landlord's interest in this Lease and the estate created by this Lease (except to the
extent that any such instrument expressly provides that this Lease is supetior to it). This provision
will be self-operative and no further instrument of subordination will be required in order to effect
it. Nevertheless, Tenant will execute, acknowledge and deliver to Landlord, at any time and from
time to time, upon demand by Landlord, such documents as may be requested by Landiord, any
ground landlord or underlying lessor or any mortgagee, or any holder of a deed of trust or other
instrument described in this paragraph, to confirm or effect any such subordination. If Tenant fails
or refuses to execute, acknowledge, and deliver any such document within twenty (20) days after
written demand, Landlord, its successors and assigns will be entitled to execute, acknowledge,
and deliver any such document on behalf of Tenant as Tenant's attorney-in-fact. Tenant
constitutes and irrevocably appoints Landlord, its successors and assigns, as Tenant's attorney-
in-fact to execute, acknowledge, and deliver on behalf of Tenant any documents described in this

paragraph.

B. If any person sucteeds to Landlord's interest in the Premises, Tenant will pay to it
all Rent subsequently payable under this Lease. Tenant will, upon request of anyone so
succeeding to the interest of Landlord, automatically become the tenant of, and attorn to, such
successor in interest without change in this Lease. Such successor in interest will not be bound

by:
any payment of Rent for more than one (1) month in advance, or

i, any amendment or modification of this Lease: (a) not disclosed, including
the disclosure required by the Estoppel Certificate addressed in paragraph
24 D or, (b) made after Tenant is given written notice that the successor
has succeeded to Landlord's interests in the Premises, or

{02401662 «2} : Page 14 of 29



iii. any claim against Landlord arising prior to the date on which such
successor succeeded to Landlord's interest, or

iv. any claim or offset of Rent against Landlord.

Upon request by such successor in interest and without cost to Landiord or such successor
in interest, Tenant will execute, acknowledge, and deliver an instrument or instruments confirming
the attornment. The instrument of attornment will also provide that such successor in interest will
not disturb Tenant in its use of the Premises in accordance with this Lease. If Tenant fails or
refuses to execute, acknowledge, and defiver any such instrument within twenty (20) days after
written demand, such successor in interest will be entitled to execute, acknowledge, and deliver
any such document for and on behalf of Tenant as Tenant's attorney-in-fact. Tenant constitutes
and irrevocably appoints such successor in interest as Tenant's attorney-in-fact to execute,
acknowledge and deliver on behalf of Tenant any document described in this paragraph.

17. LANDLORD'S RIGHT OF ACCESS

Landlord, its agents, employees, and contractors may enter the Premises at any time in
response to an emergency, and at reasonable hours to peaceably:

A. inspact the Premises,

B. exhibit the Premises to prospective purchasers, lenders, or tenants,

c, determine whether Tenant is complying with its obligations in this Lease,
D. supply any service which this Lease requires Landlord to provide,

E. post notices of non-responsibility or similar notices, or -

F. make repairs which this Lease requires Landlord to make, or make repairs to any
adjoining space or utility services, or make repairs, alterations, or improvements to any other
portion of Landlord's adjacent premises, however, all such work will be done as promptly as
reasonably possible and so as to cause as little interference to Tenant as reasonably possible.

Except for claims based on Landlord's willful misconduct, Tenant waives any claim of
fmjury or inconvenience to Tenant's business, interference with Tenant's business, loss of
nccupancy or quiet enjoyment of the Premises, or any other loss occasioned by such entry.
Landlord wili at all times have a key with which to untock all of the doors in the Premises (exciuding
Tenants vaults, safes and similar areas designated in writing by Tenant in advance). Landiord will
have the right to use any means which Landlord may deem proper to open doors in the Premises
and to the Premises in an emergency in order to enter the Premises. No entry to the Premises by
Landlord by any means not amounting to gross negligence will be regarded as a forcible or
untawful entry into the Premises or a detainer of the Premises or an eviction, actual or
constructive, of Tenant from the Premises, or any part of the Premises, nor will any such entry
entitle Tenant {o damages or any abatement of Rent or other charges which this Lease requires

Tenant to pay.

18. INDEMNIFICATION

(02401662 -2) Page 15 of 28



To the fullest extent permitted by law, Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, indemnify,
defend, satisfy all judgments, and hold harmless Landlord and its agents, representatives, arid
employees from and against all claims, actions, judgments, costs, penalties, liabilities, damages,
losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorney's fees and worker's compensation
benefits, for Tenant's proportionate share and the proportionate share of any entity employed or
contracted by Tenant, arising out of or resulting from the performance of this Lease, including:

A the use or occupancy of the Premises by Tenant or any person claiming under
Tenant;

B. any activity, work, or thing done, or permitted or suffered by Tenant in or about the
Premises:

C. any acts, omissions, or negligence of Tenant or any person claiming under Tenant,

or the contractors, agents, employees, invitees, or visitors of Tenant or any such person;

D. any breach, violation, of nonperformance by Tenant or any person claiming under
Tenant or the employees, agents, contractors, invitees, or visitors of Tenant or any such person
of any term, covenant, or provision of this Lease or any law, ordinance, or governmental
requirement of any kind; or

E. (except for loss of use of all or any portion of the Premises or Tenant's property
located within the Premises which is proximately caused by the gross negligence or willful
misconduct of Landiord), any injury or damage to the person, property, or business of Tenant, its
employees, agents, contractors, invitees, visitors, or any other person entering upon the Premises
under the express or implied invitation of Tenant, providing that any such ¢laim, action, judgment,
cost, penalty, liability, damage, loss or expense is caused in whole or in part by the fault of Tenant
or any person or entity directly or indirectly employed by it. Such obligation shall not be construed
to negate, abridge, or otherwise diminish any other right or obligation of indemnity which would
otherwise exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph.

Nothing herein shall be construed as making Tenant liable for any claims, actions,
judgments, costs, penalties, liabilities, damages or losses and expenses causes by the gross
negligence and/or wilful misconduct of Landiord.

If any action or proceeding is brought against Landlord, its employees, or agents by reason
of any such claim, Tenant, upon notice from Landlord, will defend the claim at Tenant's expense
with counsel reasonably satisfactory to Landlord,

To the extent that any portion of this provision is found to be in viotation of any applicable
law, said portion(s) of this provision are stricken but all remaining portions of this provision shall
rernain in full force and effect.

19. WAIVER AND RELEASE

Tenant waives and releases all claims against Landlord, its employees, and agents with
respect to alt matters for which Landlord has disclaimed liability pursuant to the provisions of this
Lease. In addition, Landlord and Tenant agree that neither party, | its agents, and employees,
will be liable to the other party for any loss, injury, death, or damage (including consequential
damages) {o persons, property, or that party's business occasioned by theft, act of God, public
enemy, injunction, riot, strike, insurrection, war, courl order, requisition, order of governmental

(02401662 -2} Page 16 of 29



body or authority, fire, explosion, falling objects, steam, water, rain or snow, leak or flow of water
(including water from the transit system), rain or snow from the Premises or into the Premises or
from the roof, street, subsurface or from any other place, or by dampness or from the breakage,
leakage, obstruction, or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, appliances, plumbing, air
conditioning, or lighting fixtures of the Premises, or from construction, repair, or alteration of the
Premises or from any acts or omissions of any other Tenant, occupant, or visitor of the Premises,
or from any cause beyond either party’'s control,

20, QUIET ENJOYMENT

So long as Tenant pays the Rent, and performs all of its obligations in this Lease, Tenant's
possession of the Premises will not be disturbed by Landlord, or anyone claiming by, through or
under Landlord.

21. DEFAULT
A, Events of Default. The following occurrences are "events of default™

i Tenant defauits in the due and punctual payment of Rent, and such default
continues for five (5) days after notice from Landlord; however, Tenant will
not be entitled to more than one (1) notice for default in payment of Rent
during any twelve {12) month period, and if, within twelve (12) months after
any such notice, any Bent is not paid when due, an event of default will be
deemed to have occurred without further notice;

i Tenant vacates or abandons the Premises;

iit. This Lease or the Premises or any part of the Premises are taken upon
execution or by other process of law directed against Tenant, or are taken
upon or subjected to any attachment by any creditor of Tenant or claimant
against Tenant, and such attachment is not discharged within fifteen (15)
days after its levy,;

iv. Tenant files a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency or for reorganization or
arrangement under the bankruptcy laws of the United States or under any
insolvency act of any state, or is dissolved, or makes an assignment for the
benefit of creditors;

V. Involuntary proceedings under any such bankruptcy laws or insolvency act
or for the dissolution of Tenant are instituted against Tenant, or a receiver
or trustee is appointed for all or substantially all of Tenant's property, and
such proceeding is not dismissed or such receivership or trusteeship is not
vacated within sixty (60) days after such institution or appointment;

vi. Tenant fails fo take possession of the Premises on the Commencement
Date of the term; or

vii, Tenant breaches any of the other agreements, terms, covenants, or

conditions which this Lease requires Tenant to perform, and such breach
continues for a period of thinty (30) days after notice by Landlord to Tenant.

(02401662 -2} Page 17 of 28



B.

{02401682 -2}

Landlord's Remedies. |f any one or more events of default set forth in paragraph
21 A oceurs, then Landlord may, at its election, either:

Give Tenant written notice of its intention to terminate this Lease on the
date of such notice or on any later date specified in such notice, and, on
the date specified in such notice, Tenant's right to possession of the
Premises will cease and the Lease will be terminated (except as to Tenant's
liability set forth in this paragraph 21 B i. as if the expiration of the term
fixed in such notice were the end of the term of this Lease. If this Lease is
terminated pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph 21 B i., Tenant will
remain liable to Landlord for damages in an amount equal to the Rent and
other sums which would have been owing by Tenant under this Lease for
the balance of the term if this Lease had not been terminated, less the nat
proceeds, if any, of any re-letting of the Premises by Landlord subsequent
to such termination, after deducting all Landlord's expense in connection
with such re-letting, including without limitation, the expenses set forth in
paragraph 21 B ii. Landlord will be entitled to collect such damages from
Tenant monthly on the days on which the Rent and other amounts would
have been payable under this Lease if this Lease had not been terminated
and Landlord wilt be entitled to receive such damages from Tenant on each
such day. Alternatively, at the option of Landlord, if this Lease is terminated,
Landiord will be entitled to recover from Tenant; :

(1) the worth at the time of award of the unpaid Rent which had been
earned at the time of termination;

(2) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid
Rent which would have been earned after termination until the time
of award exceeds the amounts of such Rent loss that Tenant proves
could reasonably have been avoided;

{3) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid
Rent for the balance of the term of this Lease after the time of award
exceeds the amount of such Rent loss that Tenant proves could
reasonably be avoided: and

(4) any other amount necessary to compensate Landiord for all the
detriment proximately caused by Tenant's failure to perform its
obligations under this Lease or which in the ordinary course of
things would be likely to result from such failure.

The "woarth at the time of award" of the amount referred to in clauses (1)
and (2} is computed by allowing interest at the highest rate permitted by
law. The worth at the time of award of the amount referred to in clause (3)
is computed by discounting such amount at the discount rate of the Federal
Reserve Bank of Cleveland, Ohio, at the time of award. For the purpose of
determining unpaid Rent under clause (3), the monthly Rent reserved in
this Lease will be deemed to be the sum of the Base Rent and Additional
Charges due under paragraph 4 and the amounts last payable by Tenant
pursuant to paragraph 4 for the calendar year in which the award is made;
or

Page 18 of 29



{02401662 -2}

On ten (10) days’ notice, re-enter and take possession of the Premises or
any part of the Premises, and repossess the Premises as of Landlord's
former estate; and expel Tenant from the Premises and those claiming
through or under Tenant; and, remove the effects of both or either, without
being deemed guilty of any manner of trespass and without prejudice to
any remedies for arrears of Rent or preceding breach of covenants or
condttions. If Landiord elects to re-enter, as provided in this paragraph 21
B ii. or if Landlord takes possession of the Premises pursuant to legal
proceedings or pursuant to any notice provided by law, Landlord may, from
time to time, without terminating this Lease, re-let the Premises or any part
of the Premises in Landiord's or Tenant's name but for the account of
Tenant, for such term or terms (which may be greater or less than the
period which would otherwise have constituted the balance of the term of
thiz Lease) and on such terms and conditions (which may include
concessions of free rent, and the alteration and repair of the Premises) as
Landlord, in its sole discretion, may determine. Landiord may collect and
receive the rents for the Premises. Landlord will not be responsible or liable
for any failure to re-let the Premises, or any part of the Premises, or for any
failure to collect any rent due upon such re-letting. No such re-entry or
taking possession of the Premises by Landlord will be construed as an
election on Landlord's part to terminate this Lease unless a written notice
of such intention is given to Tenant. No notice from Landlord under this
Lease or under a forcible entry and detainer statute or similar law will
constitute an election by Landlord to terminate this Lease unless such
notice specifically says so. Landlord reserves the right following any such
re-entry or re-letting, or both, to exercise its right to terminate this Lease by
giving Tenant such written notice, and in that event the Lease will terminate
as specified in such notice.

If Landiord elects to take possession of the Premises according to this
paragraph 21 B ji. without terminating the Lease, Tenant will pay Landlord

(1) the Rent and other sums which would be payable under this Lease
if such repossession had not occurred, less

(2) the net proceeds, if any, of any re-letting of the Premises after
deducting all of Landlord's expenses incurred in connection with
such re-letting, including without limitation, all repossession costs,
brokerage commissions, legal expenses, attorneys' fees, expenses
of employees, alteration, remodeling, repair costs, and expenses of
preparation for such re-letting.

If, in connection with any re-letting, the new Lease term extends beyand
the existing term or the premises covered by such re-letting include areas
which are not part of the Premises, a fair apportionment of the rent received
from such re-letting and the expenses incurred in connection with such re-
letting will be made in determining the net proceeds received from such re-
letting. [n addition, in determining the net proceeds from such re-letting,
any rent concessions will be apportioned over the term of the new Lease.
Tenant will pay such amounts to Landiord monthly on the days on which
the Rent and alt other amounts owing under this Lease would have been

Page 19 of 29



payabie if possession had not been retaken and Landlord will be entitled to
receive the Rent and other amounts from Tenant on each such day; or

i, Pay when due amounts payable under this Lease or perform any of
Tenant's other obligations under the Lease within the time permitted for its
performance, upon such notice or without notice, as may be reasonable
under the circumstances and without waiving any of its rights under this
Lease. All amounts so paid by Landlord and all cost and expenses incurred
by Landlord in connection with the performance of any such obligations
(together with interest at the prime rate from the date of Landlord's payment
of such amount or incurring of each such cost or expense until the date of
full repayment by Tenant) will be payable by Tenant to Landlord on
demand. In the proof of any damages which Landlord may claim against
Tenant arising out of Tenant's failure to maintain insurance, Landlord will
not be limited to the amount of the unpaid insurance premium but rather
Landlord will also be entitied to recover as damages for such breach, the
amount of any uninaured loss (to the extent of any deficiency in the
insurance reguired by the provisions of this L.ease), damages, costs and
expenses of suit, including attorney's fees, arising out of damage to, or
destruction of, the Premises occurring during any period for which Tenant
has failed to provide such insurance.

C. Remedies Cumulative. Suit or suits for the recovery of the Rent and other
amounts and damages set forth in this paragraph may be brought by Landlord, from time to time,
at Landlord's election, and nothing in this Lease will be deemed to require Landlord to await the
date on which the term of this Lease expires. Each right and remedy in this Lease will be
cumulative and will be in addition to every other right or remedy in this Lease or existing at law or
in equity or by statute or otherwise, including, without limitation, suits for injunctive relief and
specific performance, The exercise or beginning of the exercise by Landiord of any such rights or
remedies will not preclude the simultaneous or later exercise by Landlord of any other such rights
or remedies. All such rights and remedies are cumulative and nonexclusive.

22 LLANDLORD'S LIEN

Landlord shall have and Tenant hereby grants to Landlord a continuing security interest
for all Rent and other sums of money becoming due hereunder from Tenant, upon all goods,
wares, equipment, fixtures, furniture, inventory, accounts, contract rights, chattel paper and other
personal property of Tenant situated on the Premises (collectively, the “Collateral’), and such
Coliateral shall not be removed therefrom without the consent of Landlord until all arrearages in
Rent as well as any and all other sums of money then due to Landlord hereunder shali first have
been paid and discharged. Products of Collateral are also covered. Following an event of a
default under this Lease, Landlord shall have, in addition to any other remedies provided herein
or by taw, alf rights and remedies under the uniform commercial code, including without limitation
the right to sell the Collateral at public or private sale upon five (5) days’ notice to Tenant. Any
statutory lien for Rent is not hereby waived, the express contractual lien herein granted being in
addition and supplementary thereto. Landlord and Tenant agree that a copy or other reproduction
of this Lease shall be sufficient to serve as a financing statement and that a copy or photographic
or other reproduction of this portion of this Lease may be filed of record by Landlord and have the
same force and effect as the original. This security agreement and financing statement also
covers fixtures located at the Premises and may be filed for record in the real estate records.
Tenant warrants that the Collateral subject to the security interest granted herein is not purchased

{0za0662 -2} Page 20 of 29



or used by Tenant for personal, family or household purposes. Tenant authorizes Landlord to file
financing statements of record to perfect Landlord's security interest in the collateral. Landlord’s
lien shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the lease, until all obligations of Tenant
have been fully performed.

23.  AFFIRMATIVE ACTION REQUIREMENTS

A. Executive Order 11246, During the performance of this Lease, Tenant agrees as

follows:

fii.

vi.

{02401662 -2}

Tenant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment baecause of race, color, religion, sex or national crigin, Tenant
will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that
employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race,
color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be
limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer,
recruitment or recruitment advertising; layeff or termination; rates of pay or
other forms of compensation;, and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. Tenant agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to
employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the
provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

Tenant will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by
or on behalf of Tenant, state that all qualified applicants will receive
consideration for employment without regard to race, ¢olor, religion, sex, or
national origin,

Tenant will send to each labor union or representative of workers with
which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or
understanding, a notice advising the labor union or workers' representative
of Tenant's commitments under section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous
places available to employees and applicants for employment.

Tenant will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of
the Secretary of Labor,

Tenant will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of
the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his
books, records, and accounts by Landlord and the Secretary of Labor for
purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules,
reguiations, and orders.

In the event of Tenant's noncempliance with the nondiscrimination clauses
of this Lease or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this Lease
may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and Tenant
may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance
with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as

Fage 21 of 29



B,

C.

Vii.

provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule,
regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by
law.

Tenant will include the provisions of paragraphs 23 A . through vii. in every -
sublease or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provision will
be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. Tenant will take such action
with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by
the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions including
sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event Tenant
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor
or vendor as a result of such direction, Tenant may reguest the United
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United
States.

EEO-1 Report. Tenant agrees that if the totai Base Rent and Additional Charges
due annually under this | ease equals or exceeds Fifty Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($50,000.00}
and the total workforce at the Premises equals or exceeds fifty (50) persons, then Tenant will
annually file with Landlord a completed EEO-1 Report (O .M .B. Standard Form 100). Such reports
are due March 31 for each year of the ferm.

Affirmative Action Plan. |f the annual Base Rent and Additional Charges and

employment at the Premises meet or exceed the thresholds set forth in paragraph 23 B, then
within the first thirty (30} days of the term, Tenant shall submit an Affirmative Action Plan meeting
the following requisites:

{02401662 -2)

An equal employment policy statement for the employment of minorifies
and women together with a description of the manner and to whom the
policy statement is circulated internally (within your company) and
externally (all sources used for recruitment), and the title of the person
responsible for the implementation of these policies;

Goals and Timetables for hiring minorities and women for the next year, or
duration of this Lease, whichever is greater, including:

(1) total employees expected to be employed in each job category (use
job categories shown in EE0-1 Report);

(2) total of each group of employees (Blacks, Hispanics, women, etc.)
in each job category;

(3) fabor market availability group information - availability of minorities
and women. Use this information to estabiish the goals required in
item "(5)" (contact State employment office to get this information);

(4) number of expected job opportunities. If not expected, goals

raguired in item "(5)" must still be established to allow for
unexpected hiring.

Page 22 of 29



(5) Goals (number of minorities and women to be hired and percentage
of total workforce). If goals are not reached within the period
specified, Tenant must describe its reasons for not meeting the
goals and demonstrate its good faith efforts used to mest the goals;
and ' ' '

ifi. A statement describing the development and execution of the program,
including the method {0 be used for recruiting job applicants and the
method used for evaluating the program. Recruiting efforts should be
directed towards schools, colleges, universities, newspapers, radio, state
employment offices, churches, social and employment agencies and other
soudrces appropriate for Tenant's needs, i.e., labor unions.

24. MISCELLANECUS PROVISIONS

A. No Offer Intended. The submission of this Lease to Tenant is not an offer to
Lease the Premises, or an agreement by Landlord to reserve the Premises for Tenant. Landlord
will not be bound to Tenant until Tenant has duly executed and deliverad duplicate original Leases
to Landlord and Landlord has duly executed and delivered one of those duplicate original Leazes
to Tenant.

B. Brokers. Landlord and Tenant warrant to each other that neither of them has
consulted or negotiated with any broker or finder with regard to the Premises or this Lease. Tenant
agrees to indemnify Landlord against any loss, liability, and expense (including attorneys' fees
and court costs) arising out of claims for fees or commissions from anyone with whom Tenant has

dealt with regard to the Premises or this Lease.

C. No Merger. The surrender of this Lease by Tenant or the cancellation of this
Lease by agreement of Tenant and Landiord or the termination of this Lease on account of
Tenant's default will not work a merger, and will, at Landlord's option, terminate any subleases or
operate as an assignment to Landiord of any subleases. Landiord's option under this paragraph
will be exercised by notice to Tenant and all known subtenants in the Premises.

D. Estoppel Certificates. Within ten (10) days after written request by Landlord,
Tenant will execute, acknowledge, and deliver to Landiord a certificate stating:

i, that this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect, or, if the Lease is
modified, the way in which it is modified accompanied by a copy of the
modification agreement,

ii. the date to which Rent and other sums payable under this Lease have been
paid,

i, that no notice has been received by Tenant of any default which has not
heen cured, or, if such a default has not been cured, what Tenant intends
to da in order to effect the cure, and when it will do so,

iv. that Tenani has accepted and occupied the Premises,

v, that Tenant has no claim or offset against Landlord, or, if it does, stating
the circumasatances which gave rise to the claim or offset,

{02401662 -2} Page 23 of 29



vi. that Tenant is not aware of any prior assignment of this Lease by Landlord,
or, if it is, stating the date of the assignment and assignee (if known to

Tenant), and
vii. such other matters as may be reasonably requested by Landiord.

Any such certificate may be relied upon by any prospective purchaser of the Premises
and any prospective mortgagee or beneficiary under any deed of trust or mortgage encumbering
the Premises. If Landlord submits a completed certificate to Tenant, and if Terant fails to object
to its contents within five (5) days after its receipt of the completed certificate, the matters stated
in the certificate will conclusively be deemed to be correct. Furthermore, Tenant irrevocably
appoints Landlord as Tenant's attorney-infact to execute and deliver on Tenant's behalf any
completed certificate to which Tenant does not object within five (5) days after its receipt.

E. No Waiver. No waiver of any condition or agreement in this Lease by either
Landlord or Tenant will imply or constitute a further waiver by such party of the same or any other
condition or agreement. No act or thing done by Landiord or Landlord's agents during the term of
this Lease will be deemed an acceptance of a surrender of the Premises, and no agreement to
accept such surrender will be valid unless in writing signed by Landlord. The delivery of Tenant's
keys to any employee or agent of Landlord will not constitute a termination of this Lease unless
Landlord has entered into a written agreement to that effect. No payment by Tenant, nor receipt
from Landlord, of a lesser amount than the Rent or other charges stipulated in this Lease will be
deemed to be anything other than a payment on account of the earliest stipulated Rent. No
endorsement or statement on any check, or any letter accompanying any check or payment as
Rent, will be deemed an accord and satisfaction. Landlord will accept such check for payment
without prejudice to Landlord's right to recover the balance of such Rent or to pursue any other
remedy available to Landlord. If this Lease is assigned, or if the Premises or any part of the
Premises are sublet or occupied by anyone other than Tenant, Landlord may collect Rent from
the assignee, subtenant, or occupant and apply the net amount coliected to the Rent reserved in
this Lease. No such collection will be deemed a waiver of the covenant in this Lease against
assignment and subletting, or the acceptance of the assignee, subtenant, or occupant as Tenant,
or a release of Tenant from the complete performance by Tenant of its covenants in this Lease.

F. Joint and Several Liability. If Tenant is composed of more than one signatory to
this Lease, each signatory will be jointly and severally liable with each other signatory for payment
and performance according to this Lease,

G. Authority. If Tenant signs this Lease as a corporation, each of the persons
executing this Lease on behalf of Tenant warrants to Landlord that Tenant is a duly authorized
and existing corporation, that Tenant is qualified to do business in the state of Ohio, that Tenant
has full right and authority to enter into this Lease, and that each and every person signing on
behaif of Tenant is authorized 1o do so. Upon Landlord's request, Tenant will provide evidence
satisfactory to Landlord confirming these representations,

H. Captions, Exhibits, Gender, and Number. The captions and table of contents
are inserted in this Lease only for convenience of reference and do not defing, limit, or describe
the scope or intent of any provisions of this Lease. The exhibits to this Lease are incorporated
into the Lease. Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the singuiar includes the plural, and
vice versa, and the masculine, feminine, and neuter adjectives include one another.

{02401662 -2} Page 24 of 29



I Entire Agreement. This Lease contains the entire agreement between Landlord
and Tenant with respect to its subject matter and may be amended only by subsequent written
agreement between them. Except for those which are set forth in this Lease, no representations,
warranties, or agreements have been made by Landlord or Tenant to one another with respect to
this Lease. ‘ '

J Severability. If any provision(s) of this Lease is found by a court of competent
junisdiction to be lllegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease will not be affected,
and in lieu of each provision which is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, there will be
added as a part of this Lease a provision as similar to such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable
provision as may be possible and be legal, valid, and enforceable.

K. Governing Law and Venue. This Lease will be governed by the law of the State
of Ohio and will be construed and interpreted according to that law. Venue on any action arising
out of this Lease will be proper only in the Cuyahoga County, State of Ohio, Court of Common
Fleas or in the case of Forcible Entry and Detainer actions, the Municipal Court having territorial
jurisdiction. Tenant shall maintain and operate the credit union in accordance with all laws of the
State of Ohio and the regulations of the Federal Credit Union Administration, a .3, Government
Agency,

L. Binding Effect. This Lease will inure to the benefit of, and will be binding the
successors and permitted assigns of Landlord and Tenant.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

(02401662 -2} Page 25 of 29



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this agreement on the date first written
above,

Witness: . _ TENANT:

CENTURY FEDERAL CREDIT UNION,
An Ohio not for profit financial cooperative

By:

Dave Wilde
CEQ

LANDLORD:

GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
Witness: TRANSIT AUTHORITY, a political subdivision
organized under Revised Code Chapter 306

BY:
India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager
Chief Executive Officer

Approved as to legal form

Janet E. Burney, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs

024011662 -2} Page 26 of 29



STATE OF OHIO )
) 85;
COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA )

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, came the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, a body politic, by India L. Birdsong Terry, its General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer, who acknowledged that she did execute the foregoing
instrument, on behalf of said Authority; that the same is her free act and deed as such officer; and
the free act and deed of the Authority.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal at Cleveland,
Ohio this day of , 2024,

NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF OHIO )
) 88
COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA )

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, came Century Federal
Credit Union, by its CEQ, Dave Wilde, who acknowledged that hefshe did execute the foregoing
instrument, on behalf of said corporation or other corporate entity; that the same is his/her free
act and deed, individually and as such officer; and the free act and deed of the corporation or
other corporate entity.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQOF, | have hereunto set my hand and official seal at Cleveland,
Ohio this day of , 2024,

NOTARY PUBLIC

{02401662 -2} Page 27 of 29



S e e SN—

P ot

o fa s R AR e
H i

i hlv”MM%uﬂm#wﬂ R TR
ROVHEYD 10WLSH HSQAYH
40 KOILYAIEEYHIY

A D v T PR L e = =
S TR & ATRST SAvis LiEaTe
P Lo i RBIEEREFF A LG N e i
& s ety Gieer et YRBYMFL Sy s srer B EEEE T EE
A ] e LKEDRIEE ONE SRIESSAN D . ¥ ML TES
. i i P ,
] H.,.,M;. S A : A ii sgmw 1 ) WY el TROND T @Yl

I

i

b
y

'if.".l}

o N
LLETLR P A P S

1 eased
Premised +/-

S PRAWRG
LOR WALL TYH

SRE DRAWING A-200
O umm{:}
SRR . vw‘
-]
PrrCr RN TR TR T Y R

#.‘".1'4.”

itaTrd

¥ i Kb T
Nl LA

Page 28 of 29

{024018682 -2}



EXHIBIT "B"

RENT PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Lease Years

Monthly Base

Water, Sewer

Annual Base

Annual Total

Rent and Storm Rent
Water Utility
Charge S
1-2 %$250.00 0 $3,000.00 _1.$3,000.00
Option $250.00 0 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 |

{02401662 -2}

Page 29 of 29




RESOLUTION NO. 2024-33

AUTHORIZING A LEASE BETWEEN THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND CENTURY FEDERAL CREDIT UNION FOR
OFFICE SPACE LOCATED AT THE HAYDEN DISTRICT GARAGE, 1661
HAYDEN AVENUE, EAST CLEVELAND, OHIO 44112

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authaority”) is the owner
of record of the tand and facility located at 1661 Hayden Avenue in East Cleveland, Ohio 44112,
which is known as the Hayden District Garage (“Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Property was acquired by the Authority on July 16, 1981 for the
construction of the Hayden District Garage; and

WHEREAS, a 570 square foot portion of the Property (the "Leased Premises”’) has been
leased to Century Federal Credit Union, an Ohio not for profit financial cooperative ("Century"),
since 2018 for the operation of a credit union office to serve Authority employees and their
families; and

WHEREAS, Section 470.03 (a) of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Authority
provides that leases permitting continuous use of Authority property for more than 3 years must
be approved by the Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS, Federal Transit Administration Circutar 5010.1E authorizes the Authority to
renew existing leases at rates and conditions based on current fair market values for simitar
public amenities located on comparable properties; and

WHEREAS, the Authority’s staff has determined the new lease terms and conditions to
represent the fair market value for comparable properties; and

WHEREAS, under the terms of the lease, Century will operate the Leased FPremises,
maintain the Leased Premises in a clean, safe, and attractive condition, and operate and
maintain an ATM at the Leased Premises for the convenience of Authority employees, which
represents additional compensation for the Leased Premises; and

WHEREAS, this amenity is an appropriate use for the Leased Premises and provides
benefits to GCRTA employees; and

WHEREAS, the Authority intends o offer Century a lease for the Leased Premises for a
term of two years at $3,000.00 per year with an option {o extend the term for one additional year
an the same price, terms and conditions and with a provision that the Authority has the right to
cancel the lease at any time and for any reason.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio.

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
execute a lease with Century for a term of two years, and to exercise an option to extend the
term for one additional year, for $3,000.00 per year for a portion of the property located at the
HMayden District Garage, 1661 Hayden Avenue, East Cleveland, Ohio and further known as

Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel Number 671-07-002.



Resolution No. 2024-33
Page 2

Section 2. That the rent of $3,000.00 per year, along with Century’s agreement to
operate the Leased Premises as an exclusive amenity for Authority employees, maintain the
Leased Premises in a clean, safe and attractive condition, and operate and maintain an ATM at
the Leased Premises, represents falr compensation for the Leased Premises as determined by

the Authority's staff.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: April 16, 2024

President

Altest:

Secretary-Treasurer



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-34

AUTHORIZING A SALARY ADJUSTMENT FOR ANTHONY A. GAROFOLI,
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF INTERNAL AUDIT

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article X, Section 6 of the Bylaws of the Greatar Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”), the Authority's Board of Trustees ("Board") is
responsible for making all personnel decisions regarding the Executive Director of Internal

Audit; and

WHEREAS, in 2024, the Board conducted an evaluation of the job performance of
Anthony A. Garofoli, Executive Director of Internal Audit and based on that evaluation, has
determined that a salary adjustment is warranted.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the annual base salary for Anthony A, Garofoli, Exacutive Director of
Internal Audit shall be increased from $156,714.77, to an annual base salary of $163,453.51,

Section 2. That the increased annual base salary for Anthony A. Garofoli will be
effective the pay period baginning April 14, 2024, and retroactive to January 1, 2024,

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: Aprit 16, 2024

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



jo 7 28ed

S HBET TEQLLLT ¥  werleL 5 BST'SER'RL § g8s'hEs 9IPSHEET 5 myEmR 5
HEET wAESY GLO'SHE FI9'5ER"T DEE'TBEE {9285k LBYBES T41'96
=000 - - - - - - -
WEED HIFEr ETOEDT LEFIGT 0599'60E 1£5T'2E] £5E° 00T FITEL
%000 - [TE+ET) TEH'ET - - - -
HEL0 - SEE'STY - OEE'ErS - - -
HOT'E HHTEE £A0°5EE BTE0A9 LBE'RLE £TS - £15
HTET RIGE 59917 1S LBT'YEE {9BFEED) LTTESP YESET
HWITT %5 BEL {590°055] E98°905°T BEL'ESS [T YL SEODTY
%600 {%EEEE) [SeT°LED 019°73L SOF'RL GIE'T HIOET BIFPE
WOED HLT'ET BEE'9E PLEEE TOT0RT o' GSESL 11618
181 HOT'LT SEQEL 7I0°53 LB (096'ET) Fia 43 i
%Zz'o {%00°E) lgzea) B7LIIT oo'sET D05 LE - 08
HEPD RS0 TY {560"995t BETLEE BHIT9E DLFeRE FSE's TIHFHR
%9853 {380-¢} {r1s'ay) LR E] BIE'ESSHG 3y tEE"BS'SE £6S'63LST
WEE'SE £1a0'0) 1FES DY) T hEL"EY EZ&°ERS 9 EEI'OHE PRSASE'ST Ea5'50e "5
HEG'E %GR IT S58TEFE L09°80E"S TITERL LRLNTS DEL6ED'E LISHTET
SOET I 962'SBE GEEELP'T SREGERE TEEGIT Tazsas PELTES
HEET HETSL GSEED LOCIFE SIEGLY'E O38°TET CO00ZET 09BTET
WETH ot Gbr'SEE Cans G B5E TL0FST ESETE PE89RT
WEET SYEET 0E'LET TIuETL'T DLELSET LE0EEZ FEFPLS S9STEL
%ERT (84750 {550'D9t) S LLRELET 5 ETgRSIT 5 [ESE'sa) L § FEL9EZ 13
QLo % JONTHIR ATHTHD [T FEIT IDNYHI [F2r4 PEOT
PRI YEW YHEW
IEWE 01 ¥Y34 HINQW 13850

GHNd TYHINID - HY34A HOId OL G3UVdNOD QIA3334 HEYD 40 L3043y

£Z0T TE HIHYIN ONY YZ0T 'TE HIUYIN GICNI GOIN3d JHL BOd

ALHOHENY LISMVYEL TWNGIOTY CNYTIATI BILVIAHD JHL

uoday anuanay

QRIS TYHINID - OIMTIIE HEYD TRLOE

HSYD 30 SEIUA0S YIHED GNY SENTNZSENEMIEE TYLOE

di Tdaa
5idIFIFH SNOANTTIZISIN
IRVESISEY DNILYHEE0 T3y
HZLP I TYI0 "SLVES IPEI034) DNVRAENIVIAL JAILNTATYE
SHILYW VIO ‘ILYLS “BHINE) ANZWISHTENIT S TNYHD
SENNFY WL 3N YOS D0 BN 4

HEET F0 535105 HAHI0 ONE S1NIaSHIBrITR

INNEATYE WIHLG THLOL
Y3KLD
INCTINE LSFEIINE
0D TN
SMOISSHAMIG 559T SERDIE DNNYR
SROSSIAINODSMOISSZINC SIS s 83 A0Y
BNIAIT BIEI0

INHAKIY KL I8N ARV STI0S TVLGL
Wl IR0 B SITS
“HINIATE XYL T30 N 53105

SIUVSE YITNIASSV TYLOL
SIHILINAL IHACH
SSWdTE
SOBVIAYY S [NIOTS
SIS LWL ST
S3dvd 3D
T5IHVS BINF5SYd




740 T a8ey

Haday anuanay

WLLR LEBE"WER"E § BST'SER'sL $ ELEOETL & H2E'ET THLGPS'E $ SENDREET ¥ SHTISEsT § GHNA TYINID - Q3AKI3Y HSYD 19400
“SETBET FITIRET 0L ERETZ S DT VHST'TA] {Zre'aeed 9136 EEE'EEE HEWD 40 53JENGCS HIHLO ONY SMRISHAEINTY 1Y L0L
- - - - - - - - 2HY TeRII33
- 0996508 O93°E0E - PELTL T2 - SEJIFDTE STEOINYTIISTR
- - - - - - - - JINYLSISEY DRIEVFIJO Twd30aS
- 9EESTY 9gE'SES - - - - - [HIEYME 1007 "I1%1S T3] TN NIV IAENIAT S
%00 19E00ETE LBE'GLE LR DOGT [t g | [oraTeEt £T5 EEE'EEE [HDEW3% 19T "I17LS "Twd3034) ENIVEISUTHENIE LNVES
- Frarl LBZ9ES - - FESET PES'EE - SORAIIY ¥ SMNYE0Ed OANIINS
THEYD A0 S2EN05 EIHID OV SINZIASHIEAEE
[4518T} {990°78E; 86L 856 S5'OFE'T WEE'T 5168 SENOTE W T ANKNINTH HIHLD THLGL
1R L) {racteel [LETR L5°G6T £y 1] [TETt8) BEFET BES8E YIHIG
1%T6'E) fz08's} Z0E'D%E 0505 [361LTH Frd g al TIE'TE SEEES FNOZKI 1ST4ILNE
HLE'IE tTRBE L4030 EEE'BL (5644 ET) g9z} ZRTIT TIF'SD DI 19 LHTE
%S0T 18745} il BTLDET WITHEE 205'99 D05 (R 25012 SNOISSIREEDD 5531 SLESIY DMIvers
IHEGET 1062 "+ST] T 'TSE YEF'ETS W 6T IS2WE YR EISIT SRS SIMINCSNOIESI N0 S2US U HIAD Y
FRANEATY §3HI0
T SE6BLFE EE6'E55ES ES0°19 HIT'ST DIZ IR EBS B4L"ST EEEWSETT SIS SNELVHI0 TR EGL
%077 STEBeL'T BIE'ECT RS Y5079 WSTET 09z TIE'E £6LB3L"ST EEEHSETT WL IS 8 S3TYE
FNFASH XVL 351 OV STT08
SL0LT £97051"E TOI'TEE"L BER LD W0eT YHTTOE £ISEAT EEEHSET SIS HFSNISSYd IWECL
WIDTE SET'BEE CET'RERT LS 9T PLEET FIT7ED CO0a0s ONLTAIEL TN
HEDERT BF5'RIT OEESLHT £ITE09 HED'SE TZE'0E I38TET SERI0Z £8%d-t
BSEEE Gy 'GE BlLBHE LYo %1898 TZE'0R FER9Et o0t SONYIRYYS 1NIANLS
HSZ'8 ZOT'BFE DEELSE"E FITROR"E WEFTE G0E'5BT $558°76L 95L"T0% 53195 LIS S50
(gars TTH [TE5'DoE) §  TEFIT FEFSSST  $ {08 iwz0'es] $ IE9NL 4 BELEsE 3 SIEV HEVD
BILYVI UIGNTESEd
T IEAK FINTEHTA THMETY E3SHENE FINYEN AL IRFHETA YL EISHHEA
3190 01 ¥v3L HLNOW ENTHEND

FZOT "TE€ HOHYIN GIGNT Q01H3d 3HL K02
QNN TPHINGD - 139008 L GIAV4IN0D GIAIFITY HEYD 20 150434
ANBOHLINY JISNYHL IVNOIDIH ONYI3ATES ¥3LVIND SHE




e ESE EEE'ST Q00008+ 0EL SHIEIENIE SO HH SRS SEUEMLL SEOEMUL
SallFS BLE LIBEL 00200 BEL SHILMENOIS 4OETUH TS PCOTISHEL  EZTDTTLEL
Skl'e a9 BEL'EE D05 REY + ¥ELE SOYIC0IN 12318 DHIHES SZOZIRE0L  ITOZAATI0L
bl £93 SEE'S Q2B LIS'E FEOL SIWOICoIN 13418 g1HA SCGALEiol  Z208ri2i
SblF ISt L1E'BE CIR'EEL L 64 ST IC0IN N251S TG SCATiHY  TEOTAFDIDL
YlEF ieg LBEHEL farand’s S60% SO 1330S gH4 SeldiefB  ZEDEEE
SalD 509 CET'ES 00G'000°5 1 SE0E SVCOIM 1248 =3 E] SCO/9Te  TTOZAEM
HNEEE E] SLE'IEE 000" 160" 5L F608 SECOIN 1330S g1Hd A IFATIA L R i P A
F9GE 555 PL9BLE B 266G £ SMYIO0IN 1240LS DWTHS SZNET LS STOTFTS
1AL ZEv P51 STT1EE'F HLIES SMICOH 154ELS 8043 SECEICLIE  TEOEHE
LT 1 BT GZLFPE'Z o5 SMYICOIN 1330S F1HS VECLIGESS LEOTBEE
Wis'E E - % LIE'RFLER & £ OO 40 31918 QIHO MYES-HOIWIW WO vT0DLF  PEOSERE

ONAA H3AYH Va0
WEEE ZRE'RIT & OHItS ANIWIDIHO0ANT M WioL
158 £ - & FOL0G % £ DiHO 20 3L w1S QEHO W¥1S YEOLILF  FEOCIREE
TN g - £ BLS'LZE 3 £ dIIMEHNYG AR HI2 A9H FEOEIL RO TN LHIMIIEOHAHE e
Yty - 3 IPE'558'8 H QNN IINVENSHETYLOL
Tl E - OFDEN: E HelE AT I3 A3M e PEOLIEEE
%l15'% £ - B3 095578 3 E OIHG 20 31918 QEHO HYs YEDESLIP PEOIGLT

QRO FONTENSNE
EY'R o5g'or $ ELS'SELSE & ClNY TYHINID TVLIOL
TOLE £ - FLEGLLG E HATE AT HIS A3 PEDLLE FEOLIBREIC
Sl t £ - L5L'BLy £ HNYE RCLON LENTH AMNGZOY XYL S3WS FEOLILY  FEOLIGEE
WECF £ - LIE'TGT E BNYE Ond ANGGIDY AQDESND Dkd PIODILIP  PEOZIBERD
HOLE £ - L3L'GEE E MR AZSH OnEE ALAKLDY J3ACIENT #2028/ $20T/68E
%hitg £ LEH'Iv I EE E CH3C 40 319iE QIO WS YEOLLr  PEOZMBER
e Gy 0sZ'av DGO G00E S6QE SAOYVIGOIN 134USE 2H SZ0LEERr  TOOZRTY
B0 L (3:14 0¥ UG O09'E S6OE SYICOE 1331S gHS FENTLLEE TTOTMLENE
SoL6°E £ - 5 2EL've 8 £ HANYE A LA ALY INYHDIHESING PEDILY  FEOTGES ONRE TYHINZD
TSP - 3 B6LZ0E Y % QNS ANIWIHILTY ONOB TYEDL
SHE ¥ £ - 3 BELEDST ¥ H] £ MNYE HOESNILNOH LW ASNOwE YOI PEDZIGEE QNG LNIWI LT ONOE
Q1314 ALRnLviE  LSIMIENE TVAON L SAYD HOILNEILSNE LNZANHLISNE 3ILvg EXRc] aQMNRd
IDVHEAY 0L SAVa GINHODY sk Wi ALMNLYA 3SYHIENd

Z 1ol abeg

Jovdany

PITGE ‘1L HONYW 20 SY
SINSWLSIANI AMNSYIHL J0 AHOINSAN
ALTHOHINY LISNYHL TYNOIDTY ONYISATSTS H30v3ED



Teloer 18T

281G LS Ly3LESERE § SONNAD TV IYL0L ONYHS
50E 695805 § sE6°i6g'98L % GNId 3ANZ3SIY TYLOL
%108 € - 06" 1 ZX L e CIHO 205 31W1S OIHO g¥1s PIOCIEY  FEOLMGENE
%iB L £ - FRG'AFE £ HNYE AT U3 AT BI0LIEE  FZOLETIE
wars $6T B0o'EL IS T5% SO T3S SWaHA YEDSILZTITE  CEOLFTLS
HATG 1+ 2800t 0000 G660 SSLEND3S JCLTH SWIHL BEZOZMGLG  EZOLGLG
%G Lt Fic-Na GOGgat'aL SED SME 100N 13451 ETHA OIS ot g2 s
HLZG £FG Fslog:Hg GOOM0araL 154 S3ELHNO3S JOLTHH 2kH4 CZOEISTIZ  SEOTIILR
SEO0'G £FG PYEET GIoIac's 184 STIENDES JOLTIHH JWH SECLMERE  EI0EEER
WHELS £IS il e QI0C's +i6 SMYI00IN 131 = SZGEiieis  EICEMLER
BEEEG LZG BESGE G0000's 201 SMYIOMHN LS 2L SEOEILINE EEOELLT
%EDS £EL SEEEL LESTRER (B SNVI00IN 341Ls G YEZOTIRED  EI0LSLIE
%515 87 LG b GOO0n'S GEOL SNYIOIN 1341LS BHA SLOEMLEN  BEGEHEN
ALT 632 CEES S0S'CH6'F GE0L SNEI00N FE4ILS S5 Wel AXNSYSEL 8N PEOZICLILY  LEOESLILE
BETE Biy ST QG GEGL SAYTIOMN 4L 45 w0f B HS STOZIEEIE ZEDEITENG
%86 G ZT ¥yt SHLFEE ' SE0L SNYTOXN 3341LS 49wy g4 FIOSIBIZL  LEOEMSIEL
BOLE £1E BOLZL Qoo 0" ESE  SILMHNSAS JOLTEH i YEDZIRER  ZTOEALHE
A LES K- SN GoO0Ic's L2Ts]8 SNYI0HN 34118 HiH4 STOEMOEA  ZZDEMOES
%O E LEy Ty 3 00G'S SEGL SNYID2N F341ES K3 CEOZIL  ZEGICM
WEYT 655 05819 QUGIG'S GEOL SN TON T341ES SH SEOEMFLY  ZE0EMPLIY

amnd 3AN3SIH
ShEaE oLL'SEL % ori's0z’er 4§ AN TWEIEYD Vi IWL0L
%EET 15 FFEY) PET TR 22T SN 00N 334158 #73H4 GIOEIAZIG  TEOFLEM
%G1 i92 1944 SIESYR'L T SNy ODIN 134118 AH4 FEOTISEIE 2RO
%85 BF GZL'ES BELPEE Y £l SFILHASES JdOETIH FLOM ANNSYIHL 3N FEOTHOISYY  EECTIEG
%ifd £ - 3 519°402'C 3 £ HMWE ATH HOE A3 FEOSILY  PEOIISEIE CHNd VLD vy
Ynabib - g EOE'TLE L $ CHIE NOESNId 710l
Wb G T £ - G PO L £ O3 30 35VIS Q=G BYLES PEOZILF  PEOTHETE
Wil € - 3 PEL'E § £ HNWE AZH BT ASY PIOZFLE  PTOEISTE QMO NOISNId
Y lZ'F PEE'EH S OF'ERLLSE & GHNA HOL1YE Tvo0T Tviol
%iEL £ - ETH'EMH € HNYE AZH HIT A-NISYE HOLYD YEOZILF  rEOZISE
Sifi'h £ - E20'59 £ HNwE A3 HI3-LHvHD FEOSIY  PREOZTIEIE
BEL £ - 0T ELT £ AZIMS-HNYE AT HIA ATHOLYIN TYD0 VEOZILF  YEOZGTIE
Y £ - QG Gy £ ENTE HOLOMNLLMNAEH IHNCTOV XYL 83 WS PEOZILE  YEORIGTIE
SEE T ¥g £92°E ORGI0E GHOE SNYTODN 134128 H3d4d YEOTICH LEOESHF
WAETD 0Fe 2Z6's G0 GO0E GEQE SO N TS a1H4 PEIZIOEE  LEOTHIRIE
WLGD L 52701 AE"GO0'E GEAE SOV YN IH3118 a7H4 YEOTIDEM  1ZOEMOEE
w%EFQ S0 zzp'e AEG00'S GHOL SOV IO 125158 a7H4 YEOTISTIE  E0ZIGTS
%00g Lad ea'oz OG0 G00'G SHOE SOV IS 123118 A7H4 YTNZANE SE0ZrAe
%8S fi8 ¥¥'IZZ Qo0 L0's LEL  SIAIHASES JOLTIH DKITHZE SZOZIBLE  TEOTMOTIE
RELT FIG B20'9F LIEREITRIEY al:] SO0 13218 aIH4 SEURNLE  TEOTMEE
WHEES il BES'BE aCa'B0's b1 ] SIS 13418 2044 GEDEILLILL  SEDZL L TWoD-ORNd HOLWE Tra0T
QU3la AMALYE  LSENIIN TYHONIEd sAavd HOLLALLILSNE ANIWAHLSHE ALVa I1va aufid
ADVHIAY OF BAYO 3NV TYiod e FARALYIN ISYHIEND

IDvHIANY

7 1oz abeg

¥IOT “VE HOUVE JO SY
SLNINLSIAKI AHNSYIHL 20 AUOLINIAN
ALHOHINY LSNYEL TYNCISIY ONYIIAITD HILyaun



e

SOL°LEYS PRINDSY 2pISY 105 Aoy
BELTOE'YS {rZ0z 4oj apisy 195§ aduEteg JEEMND
PV ETEY [FE g T3]
D5'a2r's $ | seeses's 3 [ D00'566'L $ szi'per 5| sTiOks s - $ SZlAbd $  ODO'SOE'GE g spuog jeIoL
o00-'¥55'¢ nesazek anosoE e IS PIE G5 FEE - 05'¥EL o0C0gE'E OE0E DI ey W2 SERR-g10L SHuag
GOO0'B6S: 0GS'gGE L QOOGLE'L COS L BOS'4rE - 005"t Q0C'0s8's LBOE 220 A X3 SHeS-0L0E SSHIg
05L'ssR' SLEOELY 200'598'E SLBS0E 528508 - &s9's08 QOC'GEZ'EL P20T 290 A ¥R §AES-SLOZ SaEAg
a02'iZEL $]ose'ess'L § | 000065 E £ O0SER% % | oee'zn 8| - & Dge'se £ oboost's §  520€ R0 AIY MEL SBIES-WRLNZ S3HAG
¥ZOT | roziRl PTOZI T FIDRILEL YO LY PEOTIUG PIOZILM EZOTHITL aeg SpLCE
Jusmannbay nusiaynbay 1B|qeieg FAGRAES ALBE ANy fageheg 1ageieg Burpuzsing Aprnyepy
e Eey w AWRIEE 19F] | [l TR TIET 152183l B3ARS WD {ediBLiES 15aEEH| {ededuldd |Bjoy HG ]

FEOT "LE HOBYW 20 SV
SALYLS ORY 3INGZHIS 3535 18930
ALHOHENY EISNYHL TPNOIDEE ONYI3AFTD H3LYINS



%310

PHaLA Aeg £ pund Asuol Linsea)) Sy sienbe pes), e o

"S|pg Aareseal} U0 g Jo) spiaek Juseanba vodnes shesane Buinoye @

A SELOT %060 WRANEEIORNE S3A0 SAT1A IDVHIAY VIY
UGE T %G G T wE'HOEL § SAURIESLE % Ll %PES Weky 983008y $  LBO'SELOCEE £ 319G Ol "w3A
%BEE'G BIFG WA F LOG'95"L EES'ESL'48E H38W3I33d
WETG HEES SRS ¥ QLLUERL L FrL AL T HATIADN
f Tera %EES WRFY FL TN d GIE"APFELE HITALOC
%EES AT S Ao FEB'LEEL POOTAGT LEE H38BWILL3S
%EZ'G 0ZT'E BT ¥ E9P'RESE S09'692'THE Htala )
LS %E1'G LAY YOO'96E"L iE1Z55'2aC ATET
WLl %A0G OTY PEFIGLL ZLELPETEE gty
WES ¥ HEE'T SO EPFELYL EHE'65H'THE AN
%5 ¥ w%IEF e PEE'SEF' L SUZ'862'098 TS
%ETF L AN (B> T LG LBE g2E %ELS %EEG wEr BSF'GYE'L £1B'00C°56E HOHYE
WEF T WS SLOE'E SEZE'GED"L EELE9E'TLE %8s %EES HBEPE LEg'51E" ME'RZZ00T Adyridgad
WEL T BTt WELE PGSR0 L $ _ SRE'D0UEIE § el S %EES WHT ¥ A5F'eEL'L §  BPL'SGSSEE 3 AT
#0734 FASRETTY GRETTY [EETTE] IONYIVE PR =Y # 0IFEA ERETFY FELE] IONYIYE HINOW
IV EVONYIS 3OVHIAY ASIHIINI TOVHIAY LMWASNON  THYQHYLS AOFHIAY LS iM AOVEIAY
€202

¥EOT

FTOZ 1S HOUVIN HONOYHL 31%G OF #v3aA
SONVITHOIE3d INIWLSIAN] S0 AHYNINNS
ALBEOHLIOY LISNYHL TYNCISEYE SNV ISAIID HaLvIEs



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRAMNSIT AUTHORITY
REPORT ON INVESTMENT EARNINGS {(CASH BABIE)

AS OF MARCH 31, 2024

BOND RETIREMENT FUND
HUINTINGTON MONEY MARKET
TOTAL MARCH
2024 YEAR TC DATE
2023 YEAR TO DATE

GENERAL FUND
HUNTINGTON-BALES TAX ACCOLINT
STARCHIO
FreB
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT
PNG CUSTODY ACCOUNT
MERCHANT AGCOUNT-KEY BANK SWEEFR ACCOUNT
TOTAL MARCH
2024 YEAR TQ DATE
2623 YEAR TO DATE

INSURANCE FLIND
STARQHIO
TOTAL MARCH
2024 YEAR TC DATE
203 YEAR TO DATE

LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
KEY BAMK SWEEF ACCOUNT
STARQHIO

TOTAL MARCH
2024 YEAR TO DATE
2023 YREAR TOQ DATE

LOCAL MATCH FUND
STAROMIO-LOCAL MATCH
FHLMC
FFCR
FHLB
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT

TOTAL MARCH
2024 YEAR TO DATE
2023 YEAR TQ DATE

PENSION FLIND
STARQHIO
KEY BANK SWEEF ACCOUNT
TOTAL MARCH
2024 YEAR TQ DATE
2023 YEAR TD DATE

EMPLOYEE ACTIVITY ACCOUNT
KEY BANK MONEY MARKET
TOTAL MARCH
2024 YEAR TO DATE
2023 YEAR TO DATE

RTA CAPITAL FUND
FHLB
FHLB
KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT
TOTAL MARCH
024 YEAR TO DATE
2023 YEAR TO DATE

Page 1 of 2

10,112.07

10.112.07
21,541,485
42,886.71

3,655.98
51,243.86
6,250.00
14,163.92
5811.07
268,65

61,393 46

23B,717.86
203.214.57

39.492.13

35,492.13

CRA-SERT
56G,948.50

111,82
413.28

a24.77

1,357.48
1.737.82

195,303.77
136.600.00
48,750.00
19,740.00
§,077.34

407,471 11

1.616,012.04
B11,533.63

£,483.79
14.14

6,497 .91

19,110.78
14,732.33

517,89

R=cdir]

517.89

1,484 24
56.40

16,187.50
14,522.50
2,850.34

33.580.34

0147 77
45,383.20



GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
REPORT ON INVESTMENT EARNINGS (CASH BASIS)
AS OF MARCH 31, 2024

RESERVE FLIND

STARCGIHIC 5 344.419.88

FHLMC 281 400.00

KEY BANK SWEEP ACCOUNT 303,21

TOTAL MARGH ] G26,123.09

2024 YEAR TO DATE 1,615,8414.15

2023 YEAR TO DATE B27.765.34
THTAL ALL FUNDS

MARGH 24 5 1,205,692.84

2024 YEAR TO DATE 3 5,6484,13%0,00

2023 YEAR TO DATE g 2,004,258.60

2024 YEAR

) MARGH TO DATE
IN+EREST RECEIVED {CASH BASIS) 5 1,205,692.84 5 3,654,130.00
ACCRUED INTEREST:

BEGINNING: (1,798.017.05) {1,285,725.00}

ENDING 1,841, 783.00 1,941,783.00
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME EARNED 3§ 1,349,458,79 3 4,200,1588.00
AVERAGE INVESTMENT BALANCE (COST BASIS): 3 385,500,913 3 383.745,091
AVERAGE YHELD ON INVESTMENTS: 4. 80% 4. Ad%

Page 2 af 2



54 Y05 4007001 BEU'EAS'LEE % LFELESTIEE 8
58 BrEE poTAH 000°606'01LE BFE'GRL T
£ %4671 %l9T 518081701 BEE'08L'CE
£ 56285 %OE'5E BB0°DE8'5Y1 B60'026'6¥E
£ %465 %200 Bl8'4ZE BL9'L7E
£ %EE'Y el T PESBEE L & ELPE6 L0F 0L
ALlHNLYY (AR EIES WLOL ANNONY TFdIOM A
FOVHIAY ADVHEAY 40 AINF T 3d A0vd
¥20Z Lt HOYVYIN SV

OMNO41ld0d INJWLSIANI 40 NOILISOAINOD

GHORIOG FUDWISSAUL |BYD ]
SSRUNDSS UBWLSADD) "S
WR0OoY 2lEy upsry sBuleg
MG HES
WNosoy daams yUEE Aoy
WNoI2Yy ENEep AsUop
SEBELTI) S



“UCELLETLE [PUSIHBRE H)
OF-0Z0L "On UO[ENI0say SAIISAUL 10 DERD PUB B FURPE00UE InTRISIEILY TA20d |3a84) ATRIOU3Y Jasuel | [2E0Eay PULIEAE|D J3IERI0 3Y) 40 SUGNHNESY pUR Sa|nsE PIHIpOD 243 40 &59 JesdeyD) 01 mya F5e|d

TTOZ "£T yriepy PREp ABGUspy JUBUR “¥ o) LORID Alosiapy FEISUOISS|EELUCT 53T DU
BOFTEQT JBQUISE UOILIOS UOISSIRELILGT ST OIU0
OZOT '3 AEW: PRLED [SHE)fy (2857 - PAS) plojuag Busy [Aeaus 03 uckAIts ARISIADY FIR1E UOISSIRILIGT: SHY QI
F-FZL0-IN - EQ0T S30A0GN WIHIEICH [2eaid)a)] UDISSIEERLIOS SHUTY 1YL
{3) pue {0)E0 20t SLODRSS 2P0 pasIASY CIUYD
Yzia BOLRALIDS L 2] 0F SIRNPEAPA)| BgEINdOE 108 Papace HLH3Y $1 UCIBWICHLA SIGT

AL0N

alpay By Fueg slaeH Oweg

JENSITEY pung ‘ YUC[[E A0 M3 D ueg
SIURIISAAU-OM0 YIS
JA3AMIBILN

UNCOS B} 59|25 PUB jUBWINAY puch $UBH UCIFUIEENE

N0y QU255 © BEMEE g3

{HE3 3R] PUB TUNGIZY [RIBDISA] KUER Jhld

Saaras Fuueq e Haeg Az

drEsuon Bjad 30 ainaEp UGN ESLL (RIFUEUE] fYueg
. PTOT "TE YREW Jo 5y

sdgsuonelay jeEuUenly pue Suyueg
AILEGYINY BSURE] JEUD SR PUBLBADL) JaTERID





